
PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 
5500 S 5th Ave | Pocatello, Idaho 83204 | 208.236.7230 | www.bannockcounty.us 

 

Page 1 of 5 
*Agenda is subject to change up to 48 hours before the meeting 

AGENDA 

BANNOCK COUNTY 

PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL MEETING 

OCTOBER 22, 2025 – 5:15 PM 

The public meeting will be held in Conference Room 1, Office of Planning and Development 

Services, 5500 S 5th Ave, Pocatello, ID 83204.  
_______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Any citizen who wishes to address the Council, must first complete a sign-up sheet and give 

their name and address for the record. If a citizen wishes to read documentation of any sort to 

the Council, they must have a copy available to submit as part of the record. There will be a 

three (3) minute time limitation for presentations by citizens. The purpose of this agenda is to 

assist the Council and interested citizens in the conduct of this public meeting. Citizens should 

examine the agenda for the item of their interest. However, citizens are advised that only 

Public Hearings allow for public comment during the discussion / consideration process. 

Citizens have an opportunity to be heard by the Council if the item meets the criteria as 

described in the agenda. You must sign in at the start of the meeting to be recognized. 

_______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

RECESS:  The Council Chair or Vice Chair may call a recess, as they deem necessary, to allow 

Council members and participants a brief rest period.  

_______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Bannock County complies with requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act. Special 

accommodations can be provided with three (3) days advance notice by calling 208.236.7230, 

emailing development@bannockcounty.gov, or coming into the office. 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 1. ROLL CALL AND DISCLOSURE OF CONFLICT OF  

  INTEREST – EX-PARTE COMMUNICATION AND  

  SITE VISIT 

 Disclose any communication, including who was there and 

the basic substance of conversation. Disclose if a site visit 

was made, location(s) of the site visit and what was seen. 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO.  2. PRELIMINARY BUSINESS 

a) Agenda Clarification and Approval (Action Item) 

 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025

Page 1 of 254

http://www.bannockcounty.us/


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL MEETING 

OCTOBER 22, 2025 

Page 2 of 5 
*Agenda is subject to change up to 48 hours before the meeting 

AGENDA ITEM NO.  3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES (ACTION ITEM) 

a) September 17, 2025 

 

PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS 

(The procedure used for conducting the public hearings is at the end of this agenda.) 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO.  4.  SUBDIVISION CONCEPT PLAN – DEETER RIDGE 

ESTATES:  Pursuant to Section 302 of the Bannock 

County Subdivision Ordinance, Stewart Ward proposes 

development for ten (10) residential lots and one (1) open 

space lot.  The subject property is parcel RPR3803029304. 

The affected lots total 23.21 acres generally located off of 

2 ½ Mile Road, a county-maintained road.  The 

development proposes individual well and septic systems. 

Type of action: Decision. (ACTION ITEM) 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO.  5. VARIANCE FROM §327 – BUILDING BULK AND  

PLACEMENT STANDARDS: John Good requests a 

variance for a side yard setback for a covered awning.  The 

current side yard setback is 20’ and the applicant is 

proposing a 0’ side yard setback.  The affected property is 

labeled as parcel RPRRRBE001500 and is currently 

addressed as 131 E. Cindy Avenue, Inkom, ID 83245. The 

procedures and standards for evaluating a variance 

petition are found in §540 of the Bannock County Zoning 

Ordinance; approval or denial of this request shall be in 

accordance with standards prescribed therein. Type of 

action: Decision. (ACTION ITEM) 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO.  6. SUBDIVISION CONCEPT PLAN – TOM’S HOLLOW 

SUBDIVISION: Pursuant to Section 302 of the Bannock 

County Subdivision Ordinance, Stewart Ward proposes a 

lot line adjustment / subdivision replat for two (2) parcels, 

Lot 3 and Lot 4, Block 1 of Coyote Hollow Subdivision.  

The subject properties are parcels RPRRCHS000400 and 

RPRRCHS000300. The two affected lots total 10.16 acres 

generally located off of Pidcock Road, a county-

maintained road.  The development proposes individual 

well and septic systems. Type of action: Decision. 

(ACTION ITEM) 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025

Page 2 of 254



PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL MEETING 

OCTOBER 22, 2025 

Page 3 of 5 
*Agenda is subject to change up to 48 hours before the meeting 

AGENDA ITEM NO.  7. CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT – CAMPGROUND: Bob  

Jones petitions for a conditional use permit to create a 

campground, restaurants, laundry facility, waterpark, 

housing, retail, and amphitheater, on approximately 

118.11 acres. The affected property is known as parcel 

RPR4227019600 and is currently unaddressed. Proposed 

hours of operation are 24 hours, seven days a week; 

private well and septic are being proposed. At the hearing, 

the Council shall evaluate the proposed use against 

criteria established in §530 of the Zoning Ordinance. Type 

of action: Decision. (ACTION ITEM) 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO.  8. VARIANCE FROM §475.13 DRIVEWAYS & §490  

RESOURCE AND NATURAL FEATURES PROTECTION 

DEVELOPMENT RESTRICTIONS: Wyatt Radke requests a 

variance from the driveway standards to increase the 

maximum allowable driveway grade from 10% to 13% and 

increase the restriction of percentage of steep slopes that 

may be disturbed. The affected properties are labeled as 

parcel RPRRMNV001000 and parcel RPRRMNV000902 

and are currently unaddressed. The procedures and 

standards for evaluating a variance petition are found in 

§540 of the Bannock County Zoning Ordinance; approval 

or denial of this request shall be in accordance with 

standards prescribed therein. Type of action: Decision. 

(ACTION ITEM) 

 

BUSINESS ITEMS 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO.  9. PRELIMINARY PLAT APPROVAL – CHESTNUT HILL 

SUBDIVISION: Stewart Ward requests preliminary plat 

approval for tax parcels RPRRCIN000401 and 

RPRRCIN000301 in accordance with procedures and 

standards established in the Subdivision and Zoning 

Ordinances. Type of action: Decision. (ACTION ITEM) 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO.  10. VARIANCE EXTENSION REQUEST: Dustin Holsten 

requests an extension to a lot size variance that was 

approved by the Planning and Development Council on 

June 18, 2025. (ACTION ITEM)     

_______________________________________________________________________________ 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025

Page 3 of 254



PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL MEETING 

OCTOBER 22, 2025 

Page 4 of 5 
*Agenda is subject to change up to 48 hours before the meeting 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO.  11. ITEMS OF INTEREST 

a) Update on recommendations to Commissioners 

b) Discussion of upcoming hearing items 

c) Announcements 
 

AGENDA ITEM NO.  12. CITIZEN COMMENTS 

     This time has been set aside to hear items from the  

     audience, not listed on the agenda. Items which appeared  

somewhere else on the agenda will not be discussed at 

this time. The Council is not allowed to take any official 

action at this meeting on matters brought forward under 

this agenda item. You must sign in at the start of the 

meeting in order to be recognized. Note: Total time 

allotted for this item is fifteen (15) minutes, with a 

maximum of three (3) minutes per speaker. 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO.  13. WORK SESSION 

a) 2026 Council Meeting Schedule 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO.  14. ADJOURN 

_______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

The application for each item will be available to the public by request at Planning and 

Development Services office and on the department’s website at 

www.bannockcounty.us/planning. Written testimony of fewer than two (2) pages must be 

received by the Planning and Development Services office no later than October 14, 2025. 

Written testimony may also be sent to development@bannockcounty.gov. Any written 

testimony not received by the deadline must be brought to the council meeting and presented 

at the public hearing. All submitted testimony shall be considered public record. 

Discriminatory testimony shall not be permitted. Written testimony must comply with 

standards established in §560.7 of the Bannock County Zoning Ordinance. 

_______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

PUBLIC HEARING PROCEDURE 
 

1. A presentation is made by the applicant.  
2. An explanation of the subject of the hearing is presented by the Planning and 

Development Service staff. (No time limit) 
3. Testimony is given by the audience in favor of the proposal and then neutral on the 

proposal and against the proposal. Questioning of the participants, and rebuttals are 
entertained by the Planning and Development Council  

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025

Page 4 of 254

http://www.bannockcounty.us/planning


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL MEETING 

OCTOBER 22, 2025 

Page 5 of 5 
*Agenda is subject to change up to 48 hours before the meeting 

4. The applicant may rebut the arguments offered by the opposition.  
5. The Planning and Development Council discusses the hearing subject; they may direct 

questions to the staff, the applicant and the audience during this stage of the hearing 
process.  

6. The hearing is closed to oral testimony from the applicant and the audience. The 
hearing process is concluded.  

 

The Council accepts oral testimony and may accept limited written testimony from those in 
attendance, but only if the parties have filled out the testimony sign-in sheet. If you have 
submitted written testimony as part of the packet, you cannot also give an oral testimony 
unless it is to read the written testimony into the record. In order to keep a clear audio 
recording of this hearing, when testifying, a person must come to the podium and state their 
full name and address. Comments will not be accepted from the audience seats and 
discriminatory testimony shall not be permitted. There shall be no booing, hissing, or cheering. 
_______________________________________________________________________________ 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025

Page 5 of 254



AGENDA ITEM NO. 3 

Approval of Minutes 

 September 17, 2025 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025

Page 6 of 254



Page 1 of 4

BANNOCK COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT  
COUNCIL DRAFT Meeting Minutes |September 17, 2025

BANNOCK COUNTY PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL

DRAFT MEETING MINUTES | September 17, 2025 

BANNOCK COUNTY STAFF PRESENT:  Hal Jensen, Planning Director.  

Ward calls the meeting to order at 5:15 p.m.  

1.  ROLL CALL AND DISCLOSURE OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST:

Present Council Members:  Stewart Ward, Ed Ulrich, and Chad Selleneit 

2.  PRELIMINARY BUSINESS AGENDA CLARIFICATION AND APPROVAL: 

Hal Jensen, Planning Director, recommend approval of public hearing meeting being moved from 
October 15, 2025, to October 22, 2025.   

Selleneit makes motion to approve agenda as outlined.    Ulrich seconds.  All in favor. 

Ulrich makes a motion to ratify the public hearing date to October 22, 2025.  Selleneit seconds.  
All in favor.  

3.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

 Ulrich makes motion to approve minutes as written for August 20, 2025.   

 Ward seconds.  All in favor. 

4.  PUBLIC HEARING: 

 Selleneit makes motion to open public hearing.   Ulrich seconds.  All in favor. 

5.  VARIANCE FROM §337 – BUILDING BULK AND PLACEMENT STANDARDS – ACTION 
ITEM:

Michael Hess requests a variance for a side yard setback for a shed.  The current side yard setback 
is 10’ and the applicant is proposing a 5’ side yard setback.  The affected property is labeled as 
parcel RPRRWE1000100 and is currently addressed as 14955 Kensington Ln., Chubbuck, ID 83202.  

Michael Hess, 14955 Kensington Ln., Chubbuck, ID 83202.  Would like to put up a 10x20 shed 
behind existing fence.  Would like to place shed 5’ from property line.  Letter from neighbor south 
of applicant has no issues.  Neighbor across the street did the same thing and has no issues.  
Provided copy of neighbor letter and City of Chubbuck letter.   

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025

Page 7 of 254



Page 2 of 4

BANNOCK COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT  
COUNCIL DRAFT Meeting Minutes |September 17, 2025

STAFF 

Hal Jensen, Planning Director, you have the staff report.  If you have any questions, I will be glad 
to answer them.  Property is located in Westfield Estates.  We have a development agreement 
with the City of Chubbuck because of the connection to city sewer.  Eventually, they will be 
annexed.  The letter from the City of Chubbuck recognizes that their current ordinance is 5’ from 
property line for a storage structure.  Therefore, they are not opposed to this knowing that 
someday this will be in their jurisdiction.   

Ward, “This is Phase 1, correct?” 

Hal Jensen, “This is Phase 1.”   

Hal Jensen, so that council knows, we apologize that people in Phases 1, 2, and 3 continue to 
come to us for variances. Phases 4-8 in Westfield Estates now have a blanket exception of 5 feet.  
At one point, we talked with the developers and asked them if they would go and secure every 
neighbor and every property owner and have their name and come and have a public hearing 
and it became so cumbersome that we chose this is the best route.   

PUBLIC TESTIMONY 

Public testimony in favor: None. 

Public testimony neutral: None. 

Public testimony opposed:    None. 

Ward makes motion to close public hearing.  Ulrich seconds.  All in favor. 

FINDINGS 

1. The applicant has shown there is not a reasonable alternative. 
This is based on: 

This is in line with the City of Chubbuck ordinances and follows the blanket variance 
for phases 4 through 8 of the Westfield Subdivision.  

2. The variance is not in conflict with the public interest. 
This is based on: 

The public interest is in the development of the subdivision per City of Chubbuck 
standards. This subdivision was built to those standards.  

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025

Page 8 of 254



Page 3 of 4

BANNOCK COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT  
COUNCIL DRAFT Meeting Minutes |September 17, 2025

3. The variance will not adversely affect adjacent property. 
This is based on: 

Letters of support from the adjoining neighbor and the neighbor across the street. 
The variance request is in line with phases 4 through 8 of the subdivision and the City 
of Chubbuck ordinance.  

4. If the variance is not granted, the applicant will suffer undue hardship caused by the 
physical characteristics of the site. 
This is based on: 

Following Bannock County ordinance will unnecessarily incumber the back yard.  

Selleneit, based on the record and discussion this evening, I move to approve the request by 
Michael G. Hess requesting a variance for a 5’ side yard setback, as described in the application 
materials, as supplemented with additional information attached in the staff report, according 
to testimony received, and to adopt the proposed findings and order for signature by the Chair 
or Vice-Chair. 

Ulrich seconds. 

Roll call.  Ward – yes.  Selleneit – yes. Ulrich – yes. 

Motion approved 3-0.   

6.  ITEMS OF INTEREST: 

Hal, Jensen, Planning Director, Tristan and I will be going to commission on Tuesday with a 
progress report on the alternative energy component of the new ordinance that will include 
solar, wind, and nuclear.  Discussed upcoming full docket on October 22, 2025, and council 
members are available for this hearing.  

7.  CITIZEN COMMENTS: 

None. 

8.  WORK SESSION: 

None. 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025

Page 9 of 254



Page 4 of 4

BANNOCK COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT  
COUNCIL DRAFT Meeting Minutes |September 17, 2025

9.  MEETING ADJOURNED 

The public meeting was held in Conference Room 1, Office of Planning and Development Services, 
5500 S. 5th Avenue, Pocatello, ID 83204. 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 10 of 254



PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 11 of 254



AGENDA ITEM NO. 4 

Subdivision Concept Plan –  

Deeter Ridge Estates 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 12 of 254



PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 
5500 S 5th Ave | Pocatello, Idaho 83204 | 208.236.7230 | www.bannockcounty.gov 

 

STAFF REPORT 
CONCEPT PLAN – Deeter Ridge Estates 

Page 1 of 10 

 

 

CONCEPT PLAN– DEETER RIDGE ESTATES 

PUBLIC HEARING: OCTOBER 22, 2025 

STAFF REPORT 

 

FILE #:        SCP-25-2        

LOCATION: A portion of RPR3803029304, currently addressed as 10961 W. 2 ½ Mile 

Road, Chubbuck, ID 83202. 

 

APPLICANT:   OWNER: 

Dioptra   Spring Creek Homes LLC Spring Creek Homes LLC and 

Stewart Ward   620 Pheasant Ridge Drive BKKP Properties LLC 

4880 Clover Dell Road Pocatello, ID 83202  13104 W. Tyhee Road 

Pocatello, ID 83202      Pocatello, ID 83202 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends approval with the following conditions:  

 

1. All existing structures shall be removed or meet setback requirements.  Setback 
measurements shall be depicted on Preliminary Plat.  

2. Subdivision construction plans shall include structures being removed. 
3. Provide written comments from North Bannock Fire District at Preliminary Plat. 
4. All subsequent plats shall state “All lots shall access directly from Dundee Drive and are 

restricted from access off of 2 ½ Mile Road.” 
5. All subsequent plats shall state “This subdivision is in area of concern for elevated levels 

of nitrate.” 
6. All subsequent plats shall depict the cul-de-sac right-of-way to be no less than a 60’ 

radius.  
7. All subsequent plats shall depict a 15’ utility easement, outside of the right-of-way, on 

each side of Dundee Drive.  
8.  Proof of notification to vacate easements shall be provided with Preliminary Plat to 

meet Idaho Code 50-1306A.  
9. Provide location of central mail boxes on the preliminary plat and final plat.  
10. Provide location of school bus stop on the preliminary plat and final plat. 
11. Provide written comments from DEQ resolving what method of septic discharge is 

being approved for this development.  
12. Proof of irrigation rights shall be provided at Preliminary Plat.  If irrigation rights exist, 

rights must be distributed to each lot and maintenance addressed within the CC&R’s. 
13. Right-of-way shall be 60 feet wide and shall have a cul-de-sac with a 60-foot radius. A 

15-foot-wide utility easement shall be provided on all sides of the proposed right-of-
way, located outside of the right-of-way boundaries. 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 13 of 254

http://www.bannockcounty.gov/


STAFF REPORT 
CONCEPT PLAN – Deeter Ridge Estates 

Page 2 of 10 
 

14. Detailed Base Flood Elevation Study provided at Preliminary Plat.  All subsequent plats 
shall depict data from said study.  
 

Council may wish to add additional conditions as needed.   

 

REQUEST & BACKGROUND:  Stewart Ward proposes development for ten (10) residential 

lots and one (1) open space lot.  The subject property is a portion of parcel RPR3803029304. 

The affected lots total 23.21 acres generally located off of 2 ½ Mile Road, a county-maintained 

road.  The development proposes individual well and septic systems. There will be 10 buildable 

lots between 1.01 and 1.06 acres in size. This subdivision is located ~ 0.49 miles from the City of 

Chubbuck boundary.   

 

CONCEPT PLAN PROPOSAL SUMMARY: 

TOTAL AREA: 27.98 +/- acres 

BUILDING LOTS: 10 residential dwelling lot 

DWELING UNIT DENTISY: 1 dwelling unit per 2.798 acres 

BUILDING LOT SIZE: ~ 1.01 acres to 1.03 acres 

WATER & SEWER: individual well and septic systems 

STORMWATER SYSTEM:  To be determined 

UTILITIES:  Power located along 2.5 Mile Road 

FIRE PROTECTION: North Bannock Fire District 

ROADS/ACCESS: Interior subdivision road via 2 ½ Mile Road, a county-maintained road 

 

SITE CHARACTERISTICS AND ZONING: 

ZONE: Multiple Use (MU) 

DESIGNATION: Residential Suburban (RS) 

PROPERTY SIZE: ~27.98 acres  

VIEWS: The property is visible from the north, east, south and west 

IMPACT AREA: City of Chubbuck 

FLOOD ZONE: A 

TERRAIN: Sloped from north to south  

EXISTING STRUCTURES: Accessory structures 

 

SURROUNDING LAND USES AND ZONING 

NORTH: The sites are within the Multiple Use zoning district and consist of residential uses. 

EAST: The sites are within the Multiple Use zoning district and consist of interstate and bare 

ground. 

SOUTH: The sites are within the Multiple Use zoning district and Residential Suburban zoning 

district and consist of bare ground and residential uses. 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 14 of 254



STAFF REPORT 
CONCEPT PLAN – Deeter Ridge Estates 

Page 3 of 10 
 

WEST: The sites are within the Residential Suburban zoning district and consist of residential 

uses and bare ground. 

 

 

COMMUNITY IMPACT ANALYSIS: 

1. Total population at built out will be a total of 32.  (10 lots x3.2 persons per household.) 
2. Population five to 17 years of age will be 7.68.  (32 population x 24%) 
3. Water usage will be 1,000 gal per day per household, total project at build out will be 

1,200 gal. per day per lot.  
4. Sewage produced per unit will be 208 gallons a day and total for project will be 

approximately 2,500 gallon per day.  
5. Tax generated for average size lot is estimated to be approximately $4,600 per lot 

assuming a dwelling and land value of $400,000. 
6. Cost to provide services is not known. 

 

APPLICABLE LAWS AND PLANS: 

1. Idaho Code §67-65, LOCAL LAND USE PLANNING ACT – SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE 
2. 2040 Bannock County Comprehensive Plan 
3. Bannock County Zoning Ordinance, 1998-1 

a. §350 MULTIPLE USE DISTRICT 
b. §330 RESIDENTIAL SUBURBAN DISTRICT 

4. Bannock County Subdivision Ordinance, 1997-4, specifically: 
a. §302 CONCEPTUAL OR MASTER PLAN REVIEW 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 15 of 254



STAFF REPORT 
CONCEPT PLAN – Deeter Ridge Estates 

Page 4 of 10 
 

 
SITE MAP 

 
ZONING MAP 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 16 of 254



STAFF REPORT 
CONCEPT PLAN – Deeter Ridge Estates 

Page 5 of 10 
 

 
US FISH & WILDLIFE WETLANDS MAP 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 17 of 254



STAFF REPORT 
CONCEPT PLAN – Deeter Ridge Estates 

Page 6 of 10 
 

 
FEMA MAP 

 
EXPLORER CONTOUR MAP 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 18 of 254



STAFF REPORT 
CONCEPT PLAN – Deeter Ridge Estates 

Page 7 of 10 
 

CONCEPT PLAN REVIEW CRITERIA §302.E 

The concept plan for a subdivision may be approved only if the reviewing authority shall find 

that it satisfies the following criteria: 

 

1. The proposed tentative plan is in conformance with the Bannock County 
Comprehensive Plan; is in conformance with all applicable provisions of this 
Ordinance, other County Ordinances, and Idaho Code.  

 
Staff Findings 
Staff has identified the following applicable goals and policies (others may be identified 
by the Council) The Bannock County Comprehensive Plan states:  
Goal 1.2: A balance of urban and rural amenities to attract families. 
Goal 2.2: Development that fosters economic growth while maintaining the rural 
character of the county.  

Strategy 2.2.4:  Allow rural developments to offer a mix of lot sizes to support 
people with diverse incomes, uses, and needs.  
Strategy 2.2.5: Continue to ensure that developments, rezones, and land uses 
align with the Future Land Use Map and its associated characteristics and 
descriptions as illustrated in Figure 7. 

Goal 3.3: A rural atmosphere with a variety of housing and commercial development 
opportunities.  

Strategy 3.3.1: Manage density requirements where growth opportunities exist 
while considering the desire for open space. 

Goal 4.4: Protected natural resources.  
Strategy 4.4.2: Continue responsible natural resource management.  
Strategy 4.4.3: Support responsible use and management of surface and ground 
water.   
 

Bannock County Zoning Ordinance: 
Although not required, the developer has proposed an open space subdivision.  The 
land is currently zoned Multiple Use and designated as Residential Suburban through a 
minor land division, instrument number 22403372. Under the Residential Suburban 
zoning district, a maximum density of one dwelling per acre with an open space 
subdivision is permitted.   
Applicant has proposed 10 residential building lots and one open space lot, resulting in 
an overall proposed density of one dwelling per 2.798 acres, which complies with the 
Residential Suburban density requirements.  
There are existing concrete feed troughs located within the boundaries of the proposed 
subdivision. These structures should be removed or brought into compliance with 
setback requirements specified in §337. 

 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 19 of 254



STAFF REPORT 
CONCEPT PLAN – Deeter Ridge Estates 

Page 8 of 10 
 

Bannock County Subdivision Ordinance: 
The proposed subdivision name “Deeter Ridge Estates” has been reviewed.  The 
proposed road name “Dundee Drive” has been reviewed.  No duplications found.  
Per Idaho code 50-1307: Plats of towns, subdivisions or additions must not bear the 
name of any other town or addition in the same county, nor can the same word or 
words similar or pronounced the same, be used in making a name for said town or 
addition, except the words city, place, court, addition or similar words, unless the same 
is contiguous and laid out and platted by the same party or parties platting the addition 
bearing the same name, or a party files and records the written consent of the party or 
parties who platted the addition bearing the same name. All plats of the same name 
must continue the block numbers of the plat previously filed. 
There are wetlands located within the proposed open space.  Per §409.A.2: Wetlands 
shall not be filled nor dredged.  
There may be steep slopes over 15% located within the parcel.   
Per §404.B: All lots which meet the following criteria shall be marked with an "R" and 
indicated by shading on the preliminary and final plats. An "R" placed next to the lot 
number and the reasons for the restrictions: floodplain, steep slope, subwater, drainage 
easement, etc., shall be noted on the plat. 
Per §404.B.1: Steep Slopes: Lots with a slope in excess of 20 percent grade over 25 
percent of the lot. Such areas will be shaded on the plat, with explanation of the 
restriction on the face of the plat. 
Applicant has proposed no fire suppression and preventions measures.  Council may 
consider require applicant to provide proof of further discussion with local fire district.  
Applicant should be aware that per §407: In all subdivisions, the electric, gas, telephone, 
and other utility lines shall be installed underground from the lot boundary to any 
structure(s). If power is not already existing, applicant shall install power to the lot 
boundaries. The power shall be installed outside the road right-of-way except for 
crossings. Distribution power lines may be above ground with the Council’s approval. 
Applicant has proposed interior roads.  Council should consider restricting access from 
2 ½ Mile Road.  
 
Other Bannock County Ordinances and comments: 
The proposed development is located within flood zone A.  Per Bannock County Flood 
Damage Prevention Ordinance, a detailed base flood elevation study is required and 
must be provided to Staff. Elevation data is to be depicted on the plat. 
South East Idaho Health Department indicated this development has elevated levels of 
nitrates.  Council may require a note to be indicated on the plat.  Council may consider 
requiring the applicant to show proof of further discussion with DEQ to resolve the type 
of septic system that will be installed for this development.  
 
 
 
 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 20 of 254



STAFF REPORT 
CONCEPT PLAN – Deeter Ridge Estates 

Page 9 of 10 
 

Idaho Code:  
Developer will need to research Idaho Code to ensure all provisions have been met.  The 
Concept submittal does not have enough information to ensure this has been met.  
 

2. The proposed roads and bridges will be designed and constructed according to the 
Section 402 of this Ordinance.  If a design deviation is requested, it shall equal or 
exceed those standards for its purpose. 
 
Staff Findings  
The applicant has proposed to create a new road via 2 ½ Mile Road, a county-
maintained road.  The proposed right-of-way will need to be no less than 60’ wide at all 
points with a 60’ radius cul-de-sac.  There will need to be a 15’ public utility easement 
on each side of the proposed road, outside of the right-of-way.  
No design deviations have been requested.  
Subdivision Ordinance §402.B.7: Driveways serving more than two residences, or other 
non-agricultural buildings, without regard to length, must be built to the standards in 
402.A.  
Per Subdivision Ordinance §404.G, REVERSE FRONTAGE: All lots in subdivisions of 
more than four lots shall access to an interior subdivision road or street. If a road is 
proposed, road must meet the standards of §402. 
 

3. The proposed partitioning of land does not prohibit the extension of dedicated 
streets or roads. 
 
Staff Findings 
The proposed subdivision will connect with 2 ½ Mile Road, a county-maintained road. It 
does not appear there are any dedicated streets or roads that could be extended at this 
time. The parcel to the west is privately owned. Applicant may consider communicating 
with the owner to the west to see if there is a need for future access. The terrain would 
not allow the road to extend to the south.  The interstate is located to the east of the 
proposed development.  
 

4. The proposed partitioning will not conflict with legally established easements or 
access within or adjacent to the proposed land partition.  
 
Staff Findings 
Using Bannock County GIS maps and existing record of survey, there is a 20’ 
transmission line easement on the south boundary line.  There are 10’ access and 
irrigation mainline easement, a 40’ pressure irrigation easement, and a 90’ access and 
public utility easement along the east boundary line.  
Applicant has proposed to vacate the 90’ access and public utility easement.  Council 
may require additional documentation from all utility companies to remove the existing 
utility easements.  The developer should research to find all existing easements and 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 21 of 254



STAFF REPORT 
CONCEPT PLAN – Deeter Ridge Estates 

Page 10 of 10 
 

depict them on the plat, according to Bannock County Subdivision Ordinance 
§302.A.2.b. 
 

5. The blocks of lots are located and laid out to properly relate to adjoining or nearby 
lot or parcel lines, utilities, streets, or other existing or planned facilities.   
 
Staff Findings 
Applicant has proposed one block that is laid out to maximize the buildable space, 
while preserving the natural drainage way.  Many subdivisions in this area are designed 
in a similar fashion. The building lots are clustered with one interior road. The lots are 
proposed to be placed within close proximity to existing roads, other subdivisions, and 
utilities.  Council may consider if a 90’ access easement may be beneficial to allow 
growth and connectivity to the west for future development.  
 

6. The proposed property is physically suitable for the type and proposed density of 
development and conforms to existing zone standards. 
 
Staff Findings 
The land is currently used as bare ground.  The proposed buildable lots are relatively flat 
with sloping toward the south and are adjacent to other residential uses.   
Per Bannock County Zoning Ordinance §333, single-family dwellings, duplex, accessory 
uses which are customarily incidental to residential uses, livestock on one acre or more, 
and noncommercial recreational facilities are permitted uses in this district.  
 

AGENCY COMMENTS: 

1. Idaho Department of Water Resources – August 13, 2025 
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS: 

1. None received at the time of this report. 
 

REPORT BY:     REPORTED DATE: October 7, 2025 

Alisse Foster, Subdivision Planner                     *Staff comments in this report are based solely upon 

alissef@bannockcounty.gov                  evidence available at the time of the report.  

                     Additional information may be brought to light at or 

                     before the hearing. 

EXHIBITS:  

1. Application and Concept Plan 
2. Predevelopment Review Comments 
3. Agency/Public Comments (if any) 
4. Floodplain Engineering Study 
5. Referenced Ordinance and Plans-on file 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 22 of 254

mailto:alissef@bannockcounty.gov


 

EXHIBIT 1 

Application & Site Plan 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 23 of 254



Bannock County, ID October 8, 2025

SCP-25-2
Subdivision Concept
Plan Application
Status: Active
Submitted On:
8/19/2025

Primary Location

10961 W 2 45659 MILE
POCATELLO, ID 83202

Owner

MARY L DUNDAS
10961 W 2 1/2 MILE RD
POCATELLO, ID
832020000

Applicant

Stewart Ward
208-237-7373
stewart@dioptrageomatics.com
4880 Clover Dell Rd

Pocatello, ID 83202

Owner/Developer Information

Are the Owner and Developer the same?

Owner Name*

Spring Creek Homes and BKKP Properties

Street Address*

13104 W. Tyhee Road

City*

Pocatello

State*

Idaho

Zip Code*

83202

Email Address*

springcreekhomes.nick@gmail.com

Phone Number*

208-241-1980

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 24 of 254

alissef
Text Box



alissef
Text Box

alissef
Text Box

alissef
Text Box

alissef
Text Box

alissef
Text Box

alissef
Text Box

alissef
Text Box

alissef
Text Box



Site Information

Proposed Subdivision Name*

Deeter Ridge Estates

Parcel Number(s)*

RPR3803029304

Number of Lots *

11

Quarter

SW

Section

25

Township

5 S

Range

34 E

Subdivision Information

Current zoning*

Multiple Use

Proposed uses of the property*

Residential Subdivision

Description of improvements proposed to be made or
installed, and the time such improvements are
proposed to be made or completed.*

Standard development improvements
including new roadway, utility extensions
etc. New access road will be from 2-1/2
Mile Road

Proposed and/or existing deed restrictions, if any,
including easements and rights-of-way.*

N/A

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 25 of 254



Statement describing proposed water supply, sewage
disposal, and drainage.*

Individual Wells and Septic

Proposed utilities and location/placement of utilities.*

Utilities are available in 2.5 Mile Road.
Extension will be required in proposed
interior access road.

Proposed fire suppression and prevention measures.*

TBD

Proposed road name(s)*

Deeter Drive

Will this be an Open Space designed subdivision?*

Yes

Will you be requesting any design deviations?*

No

Will this be a phased subdivision?*

No

Comments from Reviewing Agencies*

Yes - See Attachment

Subdivision Pre-development Meeting

Pre-development Meeting Date

08/06/2025

Comments from Pre-development Meeting

Yes - See Attached

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 26 of 254



Engineer/Planner/Surveyor Information

Engineer/Planner/Surveyor Name

Dioptra LLC

Email

stewart@dioptrageomatics.com

Phone Number

208-237-7373

Acknowledgement

I hereby acknowledge that I have read this
application and state that the information on this
application is correct to the best of my knowledge. *

Electronic Signature [Typed Name of Applicant]*

Stewart Ward

Date of Signature*

08/19/2025

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 27 of 254

alissef
Text Box





I-
15

 F
.A

.P
. 2

(1
) 

72

2-1/2 MILE RD.

4880 Clover Dell Rd.
Chubbuck, ID 83202

Ph.208-237-7373
www.dioptrageomatics.com

DEETER RIDGE ESTATES

DEETER RIDGE ESTATES

LEGEND

COUNTY RECORDERS CERTIFICATE

BASIS OF BEARING

CURVE TABLE

SURVEYORS CERTIFICATE

Concept Plan 

D
U

N
D

E
E

 D
R

IV
E

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 28 of 254

AutoCAD SHX Text
26

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
35

AutoCAD SHX Text
36

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RADIUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARC LENGTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHORD LENGTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHORD BEARING

AutoCAD SHX Text
DELTA ANGLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text
914.93'

AutoCAD SHX Text
417.62'

AutoCAD SHX Text
414.01'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 84°02'59" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
26°09'10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C2

AutoCAD SHX Text
150.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
221.61'

AutoCAD SHX Text
202.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 42°39'38" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
84°39'01"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C3

AutoCAD SHX Text
75.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
388.10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
78.95'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 05°00'51" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
296°29'11"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C4

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.33'

AutoCAD SHX Text
19.47'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 65°53'34" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
58°14'35"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C5

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.33'

AutoCAD SHX Text
19.47'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 55°51'51" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
58°14'35"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C6

AutoCAD SHX Text
914.93'

AutoCAD SHX Text
191.40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
191.06'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 76°52'50" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
11°59'11"

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 00°20'07" E  2635.99'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 89°58'39" E  2648.02'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 89°59'34" E  631.73'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 19°10'56" W  710.98'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 33°09'10" W  206.28'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 89°56'02" W  626.71'

AutoCAD SHX Text
347.78'

AutoCAD SHX Text
363.19'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 89°58'39" W  245.47'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 70°53'15" W  212.22'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 70°58'24" W 102.24'

AutoCAD SHX Text
26

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 19°08'18" E  899.35'

AutoCAD SHX Text
535.31'

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
Flood Plain Limits

AutoCAD SHX Text
Flood Plain Limits

AutoCAD SHX Text
Barn

AutoCAD SHX Text
House

AutoCAD SHX Text
Shed

AutoCAD SHX Text
(R1-S 89°59'26" E 5288.83' to E 1/4)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(R1-N 00°19'56" E  2636.06')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(R1-N 89°55'35" W  626.66')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(R1-535.34')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(R1-N 19°09'25" E  899.37'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(R1-S 33°10'14" W  206.48')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(R1-347.63')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(R1-363.23')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(R1-S 19°09'25" W 710.86')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(R1-306.66')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(R1-S 89°59'26" E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(R1-N 89°50'57" W 249.18')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(R1-S 70°52'03" W  213.96')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(R1-N 70°48'59" W 99.94')

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.01 Acres

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.01 Acres

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 00°20'07" W  1006.32'

AutoCAD SHX Text
306.73'

AutoCAD SHX Text
Open Space

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lot 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lot 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lot 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lot 10

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lot 9

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lot 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lot 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lot 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lot 7

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lot 8

AutoCAD SHX Text
4625

AutoCAD SHX Text
4575

AutoCAD SHX Text
4600

AutoCAD SHX Text
4630

AutoCAD SHX Text
4635

AutoCAD SHX Text
4640

AutoCAD SHX Text
4600

AutoCAD SHX Text
4605

AutoCAD SHX Text
4610

AutoCAD SHX Text
4615

AutoCAD SHX Text
4620

AutoCAD SHX Text
4625

AutoCAD SHX Text
4630

AutoCAD SHX Text
4635

AutoCAD SHX Text
4640

AutoCAD SHX Text
4585

AutoCAD SHX Text
4590

AutoCAD SHX Text
4595

AutoCAD SHX Text
4580

AutoCAD SHX Text
4570

AutoCAD SHX Text
4565

AutoCAD SHX Text
4625

AutoCAD SHX Text
4620

AutoCAD SHX Text
4615

AutoCAD SHX Text
4610

AutoCAD SHX Text
4605

AutoCAD SHX Text
4595

AutoCAD SHX Text
4590

AutoCAD SHX Text
4585

AutoCAD SHX Text
4580

AutoCAD SHX Text
Open Space

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.03 Acres

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.06 Acres

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.02 Acres

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.02 Acres

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.01 Acres

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.01 Acres

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.02 Acres

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.03 Acres

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.22 Acres

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.22 Acres

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 84°59'09" W  340.91'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 00°20'07" W  533.40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 00°20'07" W  419.56'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 00°20'07" W  465.83'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 22°41'30" W  291.51'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 65°49'32" W  277.33'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 86°42'49" W  529.56'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 00°20'07" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
207.59'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 00°20'07" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
252.99'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 00°20'07" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
258.28'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 39°30'47" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
240.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 89°39'53" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
111.29'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 00°20'07" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
188.88'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 00°20'07" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
214.97'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 74°51'46" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
206.86'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 89°40'04" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
200.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 89°40'04" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
200.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
164.98'

AutoCAD SHX Text
189.61'

AutoCAD SHX Text
174.97'

AutoCAD SHX Text
245.83'

AutoCAD SHX Text
220.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
136.53'

AutoCAD SHX Text
123.60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
85.30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
185.38'

AutoCAD SHX Text
214.48'

AutoCAD SHX Text
231.87'

AutoCAD SHX Text
192.97'

AutoCAD SHX Text
220.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
97.75'

AutoCAD SHX Text
84.74'

AutoCAD SHX Text
175.39'

AutoCAD SHX Text
289.82'

AutoCAD SHX Text
262.81'

AutoCAD SHX Text
453.68'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text
C2

AutoCAD SHX Text
C3

AutoCAD SHX Text
C4

AutoCAD SHX Text
C5

AutoCAD SHX Text
C6

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sheet:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Project:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Scale:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drawn By:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text
25047

AutoCAD SHX Text
RTB

AutoCAD SHX Text
July 2025

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
 1 OF 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
(R1-)

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
200

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATED IN SW 1/4 AND NW 1/4 SECTION 25, TOWNSHIP 5 SOUTH, RANGE 34 EAST, OF THE BOISE MERIDIAN, IN THE COUNTY OF BANNOCK.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Set 5/8" Rebar with Plastic Cap PLS ?????

AutoCAD SHX Text
Found 1/2" Rebar as noted

AutoCAD SHX Text
Found 5/8" Rebar as noted

AutoCAD SHX Text
Found monument as noted

AutoCAD SHX Text
Record Bearing and Distance per ROS Instr. #22403372

AutoCAD SHX Text
Parcel Boundary

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lot Lines

AutoCAD SHX Text
Adjoining Parcels

AutoCAD SHX Text
Easements

AutoCAD SHX Text
Road Centerline

AutoCAD SHX Text
Deed Ties

AutoCAD SHX Text
Section Line

AutoCAD SHX Text
364.04'

AutoCAD SHX Text
Basis of Bearing per Idaho State Plane Coordinate System - East Zone.  GPS observation combination factor: 1.0002579939. Origin:Lat: N 42°55'40.02279"      Long: W 112°27'59.13559"      Height: 4458.102' All distances are US Survey Feet.

AutoCAD SHX Text
I, Rodney T. Burch, a Licensed Professional Land Surveyor in the state of Idaho do hereby certify that this plat is an accurate representation of this survey completed under my supervision.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10900

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Southwest Corner Section 25. Found 1" Iron Pin per CP&F Inst. 22310256

AutoCAD SHX Text
West 1/4 Corner Section 25. Found 2" Aluminum Cap Monument per CP&F Inst. 20915150

AutoCAD SHX Text
Center 1/4 Corner Section 25. Found RR Spike Monument per CP&F Inst. 22310255

AutoCAD SHX Text
Garry Ratzlaff Deed Inst. No. 22110192

AutoCAD SHX Text
Gary Gibson Deed Inst. No. 21103137

AutoCAD SHX Text
Vicki Hamlin Deed Inst. No. 95009929



EXHIBIT 2 

Pre-Development Documents 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 29 of 254



Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 30 of 254



Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 31 of 254



Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 32 of 254



Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 33 of 254



Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 34 of 254



Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 35 of 254



Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 36 of 254



Outlook

RE: Bannock County Lot Line Adjustment

From Sean Harris <sharris@cityofchubbuck.us>
Date Tue 2025-08-12 10:22 AM
To Rodney Burch <rodneyb@dioptrageomatics.com>

The City of Chubbuck has no comments.
 
Regards,
 
 

Sean Harris | Development Services Manager
290 E. Linden Avenue
Chubbuck, ID 83202
Office Voice: 208-237-2430 ext 108
Text Only: 208-221-4586
 
Community Services Department – Development Services Division
 
 
From: Rodney Burch <rodneyb@dioptrageomatics.com>
Sent: Monday, August 11, 2025 2:40 PM
To: anitah@bannockcounty.us; Jeremy Messick <jeremym@bannockcounty.us>; Kiel Burmester
<kielb@bannockcounty.us>; David Bollinger <david.bollinger@bia.gov>; Danny Miller <dkmiller@blm.gov>;
Mellisa Warren <mdwarren@blm.gov>; Hannah Sanger <hsanger@pocatello.us>; Ken Keller
<kkeller@phd6.idaho.gov>; Adam Hill <ahill@sbtribes.com>; lkniffin@stribes.com; Gary Billman
<gbillman@IDL.idaho.gov>; Pat Brown <pbrown@idl.idaho.gov>; Katy Bergholm
<Katy.Bergholm@deq.idaho.gov>; Carolyn Weiler <Carolyn.Weiler@deq.idaho.gov>; Allan Johnson
<allan.johnson@deq.idaho.gov>; Becky Johnosn <becky.johnson@idfg.idaho.gov>; James Cafalo
<james.cefalo@idwr.idaho.gov>; Gary Peck <gpeck@idahopower.com>; Flo Ghighina
<Flo.Ghighina@itd.idaho.gov>; Corey Krantz <Corey.Krantz@itd.idaho.gov>; James Murphy
<james.murphy@intgas.com>; Phillip Colborn <phillip.colborn@intgas.com>; Cali Johnson
<portneufswcd@gmail.com>; Ryan Cook <ryan.cook@rockymountainpower.net>; Russell Christ
<Russell.Christ@sparklight.biz>; Kim Obele <kim.obele@usda.gov>; James Joyner
<james.m.joyner@usace.army.mil>; Nate Matlack <nate.matlack@usda.gov>; Michael Rieske
<michael.rieske@williams.com>; Brenda Marshall <brenda.marshall@williams.com>; Merlin Miller
<mmiller@cityofchubbuck.us>; Brian Curtis <chief@northbannockfire.us>; Mori Byington
<mori@bannockplanning.org>; Sean Harris <sharris@cityofchubbuck.us>; Richard Thompson
<rthompson@sbtribes.com>; Timothy Gardner <timothy.gardner@bia.gov>; Martin Sorenson
<Martin.Sorenson@bia.gov>; Jonathon Balls <ballsjo@sd25.us>; Dr. Douglas Howell <howelldo@sd25.us>; Holly
Jackson <holly.jackson@portneuflibrary.org>; Josh Barnes <josh.barnes@portneuflibrary.org>

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 37 of 254



Outlook

Re: [EXTERNAL] RE: Bannock County Lot Line Adjustment

From Sorenson, Martin W <Martin.Sorenson@bia.gov>
Date Wed 2025-08-06 4:06 PM
To Rodney Burch <rodneyb@dioptrageomatics.com>
Cc David Bollinger <david.bollinger@bia.gov>; Timothy Gardner <timothy.gardner@bia.gov>

Good afternoon,

Fort Hall Irrigation has no infrastructure in this proposed development.

Thanks,

Martin Sorenson M.S., P.E.
Civil Engineer
DOI: BIA - Fort Hall Irrigation Project

From: Rodney Burch <rodneyb@dioptrageomatics.com>
Sent: Wednesday, August 6, 2025 4:00 PM
To: anitah@bannockcounty.us <anitah@bannockcounty.us>; Jeremy Messick <jeremym@bannockcounty.us>; Kiel
Burmester <kielb@bannockcounty.us>; Bollinger, David <David.Bollinger@bia.gov>; Danny Miller
<dkmiller@blm.gov>; Davis, Melissa D <melissadavis@blm.gov>; Hannah Sanger <hsanger@pocatello.us>; Ken
Keller <kkeller@phd6.idaho.gov>; Adam Hill <ahill@sbtribes.com>; lkniffin@stribes.com <lkniffin@stribes.com>;
Gary Billman <gbillman@IDL.idaho.gov>; Pat Brown <pbrown@idl.idaho.gov>; Katy Bergholm
<Katy.Bergholm@deq.idaho.gov>; Carolyn Weiler <Carolyn.Weiler@deq.idaho.gov>; Allan Johnson
<allan.johnson@deq.idaho.gov>; Becky Johnosn <becky.johnson@idfg.idaho.gov>; James Cafalo
<james.cefalo@idwr.idaho.gov>; Gary Peck <gpeck@idahopower.com>; Flo Ghighina
<Flo.Ghighina@itd.idaho.gov>; Corey Krantz <Corey.Krantz@itd.idaho.gov>; James Murphy
<james.murphy@intgas.com>; Phillip Colborn <phillip.colborn@intgas.com>; Cali Johnson
<portneufswcd@gmail.com>; Ryan Cook <ryan.cook@rockymountainpower.net>; Russell Christ
<Russell.Christ@sparklight.biz>; Kim Obele <kim.obele@usda.gov>; James Joyner
<james.m.joyner@usace.army.mil>; Nate Matlack <nate.matlack@usda.gov>; Michael Rieske
<michael.rieske@williams.com>; Brenda Marshall <brenda.marshall@williams.com>; Merlin Miller
<mmiller@cityofchubbuck.us>; Brian Curtis <chief@northbannockfire.us>; Mori Byington
<mori@bannockplanning.org>; Sean Harris <sharris@cityofchubbuck.us>; Richard Thompson
<rthompson@sbtribes.com>; Gardner, Timothy J <Timothy.Gardner@bia.gov>; Sorenson, Martin W
<Martin.Sorenson@bia.gov>; Jonathon Balls <ballsjo@sd25.us>; Dr. Douglas Howell <howelldo@sd25.us>; Holly
Jackson <holly.jackson@portneuflibrary.org>; Josh Barnes <josh.barnes@portneuflibrary.org>
Cc: Stewart Ward <stewart@dioptrageomatics.com>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] RE: Bannock County Lot Line Adjustment
 
 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 38 of 254



Some people who received this message don't often get email from rodneyb@dioptrageomatics.com. Learn why this is important

Outlook

RE: Bannock County Lot Line Adjustment

From Colborn, Phillip <phillip.colborn@intgas.com>
Date Tue 2025-08-12 8:33 AM
To Rodney Burch <rodneyb@dioptrageomatics.com>

Rodney,
 
IGC would ask for a PUE to be added for JUT.
 
Thanks
 
Phil
 
From: Rodney Burch <rodneyb@dioptrageomatics.com>
Sent: Monday, August 11, 2025 2:40 PM
To: anitah@bannockcounty.us; Jeremy Messick <jeremym@bannockcounty.us>; Kiel Burmester
<kielb@bannockcounty.us>; David Bollinger <david.bollinger@bia.gov>; Danny Miller <dkmiller@blm.gov>;
Mellisa Warren <mdwarren@blm.gov>; Hannah Sanger <hsanger@pocatello.us>; Ken Keller
<kkeller@phd6.idaho.gov>; Adam Hill <ahill@sbtribes.com>; lkniffin@stribes.com; Gary Billman
<gbillman@IDL.idaho.gov>; Pat Brown <pbrown@idl.idaho.gov>; Katy Bergholm
<Katy.Bergholm@deq.idaho.gov>; Carolyn Weiler <Carolyn.Weiler@deq.idaho.gov>; Allan Johnson
<allan.johnson@deq.idaho.gov>; Becky Johnosn <becky.johnson@idfg.idaho.gov>; James Cafalo
<james.cefalo@idwr.idaho.gov>; Gary Peck <gpeck@idahopower.com>; Flo Ghighina
<Flo.Ghighina@itd.idaho.gov>; Corey Krantz <Corey.Krantz@itd.idaho.gov>; Murphy, James
<james.murphy@intgas.com>; Colborn, Phillip <phillip.colborn@intgas.com>; Cali Johnson
<portneufswcd@gmail.com>; Ryan Cook <ryan.cook@rockymountainpower.net>; Russell Christ
<Russell.Christ@sparklight.biz>; Kim Obele <kim.obele@usda.gov>; James Joyner
<james.m.joyner@usace.army.mil>; Nate Matlack <nate.matlack@usda.gov>; Michael Rieske
<michael.rieske@williams.com>; Brenda Marshall <brenda.marshall@williams.com>; Merlin Miller
<mmiller@cityofchubbuck.us>; Brian Curtis <chief@northbannockfire.us>; Mori Byington
<mori@bannockplanning.org>; Sean Harris <sharris@cityofchubbuck.us>; Richard Thompson
<rthompson@sbtribes.com>; Timothy Gardner <timothy.gardner@bia.gov>; Martin Sorenson
<Martin.Sorenson@bia.gov>; Jonathon Balls <ballsjo@sd25.us>; Dr. Douglas Howell <howelldo@sd25.us>; Holly
Jackson <holly.jackson@portneuflibrary.org>; Josh Barnes <josh.barnes@portneuflibrary.org>
Cc: Stewart Ward <stewart@dioptrageomatics.com>
Subject: Re: Bannock County Lot Line Adjustment
 

** WARNING: EXTERNAL SENDER. NEVER click links or open attachments without positive
sender verification of purpose. DO NOT provide your user ID or password on sites or forms
linked from this email. **

 
 
Dear agency contacts,
 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 39 of 254

mailto:rodneyb@dioptrageomatics.com
https://aka.ms/LearnAboutSenderIdentification


Outlook

Re: Bannock County Lot Line Adjustment

From Douglas Howell <howelldo@sd25.us>
Date Mon 2025-08-11 2:44 PM
To Rodney Burch <rodneyb@dioptrageomatics.com>

The PCSD does not have any concerns related to this project. 
Sincerely,
Douglas Howell, Superintendent

On Mon, Aug 11, 2025 at 2:40 PM Rodney Burch <rodneyb@dioptrageomatics.com> wrote:

Dear agency contacts,
 
Per Bannock County ordiance, I am attempting to contact you a second time related to a proposed
10 resdiential lot and 1 open space lot development on the same parcel located south of 2.5-mile
road and west of I-15. 
 
I have attached the Concept Plan for the proposed development.
 
Again, if possible, please return your comments by Wednesday, August 13th.
 

Thanks

 

Rodney Burch, PLS

Office: 208-237-7373

4880 Clover Dell | Chubbuck, ID 83202

www.dioptrageomatics.com

Land Surveying | 3D Scanning | Land Planning | Aerial Mapping

 

 
Bannock County Planning & Development Council

October 22, 2025
Page 40 of 254

mailto:rodneyb@dioptrageomatics.com
http://www.dioptrageomatics.com/


Outlook

RE: Bannock County Lot Line Adjustment

From Marshall, Brenda <Brenda.Marshall@williams.com>
Date Thu 2025-08-07 8:51 AM
To Rodney Burch <rodneyb@dioptrageomatics.com>

Hi Rodney,
 
Williams Northwest Pipeline is clear of this development.
 
Brenda Marshall
 
Land Representative
Williams – Northwest Pipeline
1301 S. Locust Grove Road
Meridian, Idaho 83642
(208) 870-0149 mobile
 
From: Rodney Burch <rodneyb@dioptrageomatics.com>
Sent: Wednesday, August 06, 2025 4:01 PM
To: anitah@bannockcounty.us; Jeremy Messick <jeremym@bannockcounty.us>; Kiel Burmester
<kielb@bannockcounty.us>; David Bollinger <david.bollinger@bia.gov>; Danny Miller <dkmiller@blm.gov>;
Mellisa Warren <mdwarren@blm.gov>; Hannah Sanger <hsanger@pocatello.us>; Ken Keller
<kkeller@phd6.idaho.gov>; Adam Hill <ahill@sbtribes.com>; lkniffin@stribes.com; Gary Billman
<gbillman@IDL.idaho.gov>; Pat Brown <pbrown@idl.idaho.gov>; Katy Bergholm
<Katy.Bergholm@deq.idaho.gov>; Carolyn Weiler <Carolyn.Weiler@deq.idaho.gov>; Allan Johnson
<allan.johnson@deq.idaho.gov>; Becky Johnosn <becky.johnson@idfg.idaho.gov>; James Cafalo
<james.cefalo@idwr.idaho.gov>; Gary Peck <gpeck@idahopower.com>; Flo Ghighina
<Flo.Ghighina@itd.idaho.gov>; Corey Krantz <Corey.Krantz@itd.idaho.gov>; James Murphy
<james.murphy@intgas.com>; Phillip Colborn <phillip.colborn@intgas.com>; Cali Johnson
<portneufswcd@gmail.com>; Ryan Cook <ryan.cook@rockymountainpower.net>; Russell Christ
<Russell.Christ@sparklight.biz>; Kim Obele <kim.obele@usda.gov>; James Joyner
<james.m.joyner@usace.army.mil>; Nate Matlack <nate.matlack@usda.gov>; Michael Rieske
<michael.rieske@williams.com>; Marshall, Brenda <Brenda.Marshall@williams.com>; Merlin Miller
<mmiller@cityofchubbuck.us>; Brian Curtis <chief@northbannockfire.us>; Mori Byington
<mori@bannockplanning.org>; Sean Harris <sharris@cityofchubbuck.us>; Richard Thompson
<rthompson@sbtribes.com>; Timothy Gardner <timothy.gardner@bia.gov>; Martin Sorenson
<Martin.Sorenson@bia.gov>; Jonathon Balls <ballsjo@sd25.us>; Dr. Douglas Howell <howelldo@sd25.us>; Holly
Jackson <holly.jackson@portneuflibrary.org>; Josh Barnes <josh.barnes@portneuflibrary.org>
Cc: Stewart Ward <stewart@dioptrageomatics.com>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] RE: Bannock County Lot Line Adjustment
 
***CAUTION! EXTERNAL SENDER*** STOP. ASSESS. VERIFY!! If suspicious, STOP and click the Phish Alert Button

Dear agency contacts,
 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 41 of 254



 

 

 

444 Hospital Way #300 
Pocatello, ID 83201 • (208) 236-6160 

Brad Little, Governor 
Jess Byrne, Director 

  

August 13, 2025 

 

 

Rodney Burch, PLS 

Dioptra Geomatics 

4880 Clover Dell 

Chubbuck, ID 83202 

rodneyb@dioptrageomatics.com 
 
Subject: Subdivision Concept Plan – 10-Lot Spring Creek Homes – Burch  
 

Dear Mr. Burch:  

 

The Idaho Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) has reviewed the subject document and 

would like to offer the following comments: 

 

The proposed site is directly adjacent to the North Pocatello Nitrate Priority Area, which 

indicates that groundwater in the area has elevated levels of nitrate. 

 

The proposed site overlies the ground water capture zones for several nearby private wells and 

the following public water systems: 

 

• D and M Water Association Wells #1, #2, #3, and #4 

• Equestrian Estates Subdivision Wells #1 and #2 

• Lacey Vista Water Corporation Wells #1 and #2 

• Smith Road Water Users Association Wells #1 and #2 

• Space Acres Water Users Association Wells #1S and #2N 
 

The document provided indicates that the development is proposed to dispose of wastewater 

via individual septic systems. DEQ is concerned that the number of lots and the density of the 

lots has the potential to pollute groundwater and affect the nearby public water system wells, 

as well as nearby private wells and wells within this proposed subdivision. As such, the 

developer is required to meet Idaho Administrative Code 58.01.11.400.01 (Idaho Groundwater 

Quality Rule) which states: 

 

Releases Degrading Ground Water Quality: No person shall cause or allow the release, 

spilling, leaking, emission, discharge, escape, leaching, or disposal of a contaminant into 

the environment in a manner that:  

 

a. Causes a ground water quality standard to be exceeded; 
b. Injures a beneficial use of ground water; or 
c. Is not in accordance with a permit, consent order or applicable best 

management practice, best available method or best practical method. 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 42 of 254

mailto:rodneyb@dioptrageomatics.com


 

 

To demonstrate that the septic discharge from the subdivision will be in compliance with the 

above rule, the developer must choose to do one or more of the following: 

 

• Perform a Level 1 Nutrient-Pathogen Evaluation to demonstrate that the combined 

septic systems from the subdivision will not cause a groundwater quality standard to be 

exceeded at the proposed lot density. 

• Decrease lot and/or septic system density, according to modeling results, to a point 

where the data shows no significant impact on groundwater quality. 

• Require individual septic systems to have additional treatment technology (extended 

treatment, aeration, evaporation, incineration, etc.) for nitrate reduction, upon the 

demonstration that such technologies will be effective and protective of groundwater. 

• Construct a community wastewater treatment system, such as a community 

evaporative lagoon. 

• Combine the individual homes to one or more community septic system(s) (Large Soil 

Absorption System or LSAS), which will also require groundwater modeling and 

engineering. A centralized system will provide infrastructure for future connection to 

sewer when sewer services are extended to the area. 

• Other best management practices as approved upon consultation with DEQ. 

 

Regarding drinking water, public water systems are generally more protective of the 

environment and public health and DEQ strongly recommends that the subdivision connect to 

an existing public water system or establish their own community water system. If the 

developer decides to create a new public water system, such system must be designed and 

constructed to meet the Idaho Rules for Public Drinking Water Systems (IDAPA 58.01.08). The 

developer should contact DEQ for information and direction regarding public drinking water 

systems.  

 

Our general recommendations for land development projects are also attached.  

If you have questions or comments, please contact me at (208) 236-6160 or via email at 

Allan.Johnson@deq.idaho.gov. 

 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Allan Johnson, P.E.  
 
Regional Engineering Manager 
DEQ Pocatello Regional Office 
 

EDMS# 2025AGD3888 

 

Attachments: DEQ General Recommendations for Land Development Projects. 

 

c:  Katy Bergholm, Regional Administrator, DEQ Pocatello Regional Office 

 Ken Keller, Environmental Health Director, Southeast Idaho Public Health 

 Hal Jensen, halj@bannockcounty.us, Planning Director, Bannock County Planning and 
Development 

 
Bannock County Planning & Development Council

October 22, 2025
Page 43 of 254

mailto:Allan.Johnson@deq.idaho.gov
mailto:halj@bannockcounty.us


 

General Recommendations 

The following comments are generally applicable to land development projects or other land use activities 
with the potential to cause impacts to ground water, air quality or surface water. DEQ provides this guidance 
in lieu of more site-specific comments when information regarding the land use proposal is limited.  

Engineering  

DEQ recommends consolidation of drinking water and/or wastewater services wherever feasible, especially 

in areas where ground water used for public drinking water supplies is potentially impacted. DEQ considers 

the following alternatives generally more protective of ground water resources than using individual well and 

septic systems for each lot, and we recommend that the county require the developer to investigate the 

following options:  

• Provide either a centralized, community drinking water or centralized community wastewater 
system or both, or  

• Connect each lot to an existing community drinking water system or to an existing community 
wastewater system or both. 

In accordance with Idaho Code 39-118, construction plans & specifications prepared by a professional 

engineer are required for DEQ review and approval prior to construction if the proposed development is to 

be served by either a community drinking water or sewer system. DEQ requires that a water system serving 

10 or more connections is constructed and operated in compliance with IDAPA 58.01.08, “Idaho Rules for 

Public Drinking Water Systems.” 

Air Quality 

New emission sources are generally required to follow applicable regulations for permitting or exempting 

new sources. These are outlined in the Rules for the control of Air Pollution in Idaho.  

Of particular concern is IDAPA 58.01.01.200-228 which establishes uniform procedures and requirements for 

the issuance of “Permits to Construct”. 

Sections 58.01.01.220-223 specifically may be used by owners or operators to exempt certain sources from 

the requirements to obtain a permit to construct.  

Land development projects are generally required to follow applicable regulations outlined in the Rules for 

the control of Air Pollution in Idaho. Of particular concern is IDAPA 58.01.01.650 and 651 Rules for Control of 

Fugitive Dust.  

Section 650 states, “The purpose of sections 650 through 651 is to require that all reasonable precautions be 

taken to prevent the generation of fugitive dust.”  

Section 651 states “All reasonable precautions shall be taken to prevent particulate matter from becoming 

airborne. In determining what is reasonable, consideration will be given to factors such as the proximity of 

dust emitting operations to human habitations and/or activities and atmospheric conditions which might 

affect the movement of particulate matter. Some of the reasonable precautions may include, but are not 

limited to, the following: 

01. Use of Water or Chemicals. Use, where practical, of water or chemicals for control of dust in the 

demolition of existing building or structures, construction operations, the grading of roads, or the 

clearing of land.  

02. Application of Dust Suppressants. Application, where practical of asphalt, oil, water, or suitable 

chemicals to, or covering of dirt roads, materials stockpiles, and other surfaces which can create 

dust. 

03. Use of Control Equipment. Installation and use, where practical, of hoods, fans and fabric filters 

or equivalent systems to enclose and vent the handling of dusty materials. Adequate containment 

methods should be employed during sandblasting or other operations. 
Bannock County Planning & Development Council

October 22, 2025
Page 44 of 254



 

04. Covering of Trucks. Covering, when practical, open bodied trucks transporting materials likely to 

give rise to airborne dusts. 

05. Paving. Paving of roadways and their maintenance in a clean condition, where practical. 

06. Removal of Materials. Prompt removal of earth or other stored materials from streets, where 

practical.” 

Surface Water Quality 

Land disturbance activities associated with development (i.e. - road building, stream crossings, land clearing) 

have the potential to impact water quality and riparian habitat. 

If this project will ultimately disturb one or more acres and there is a possibility of discharging stormwater or 

site dewatering water to Surface Waters of the United States, the operator may need to submit a Notice of 

Intent (NOI) for coverage under the Idaho Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (IPDES) 2022 Construction 

General Permit (CGP). NOIs can be submitted via the IPDES E-Permitting System 

(https://www2.deq.idaho.gov/water/IPDES/). The 2022 IPDES CGP requires a Storm Water Pollution 

Prevention Plan (SWPPP), implementation of Best Management Practices (BMPs) to reduce the sediment and 

other pollutants discharged and requires regular site inspections by persons trained and knowledgeable 

about erosion, sediment control, and pollution prevention. 

Site contractors should remove equipment and machinery from the vicinity of the waterway to an upland 

location prior to any refueling, repair, or maintenance. After construction is completed, disturbed riparian 

areas should be re-vegetated. 

Waste Management - Hazardous Material - Petroleum Storage 

With the increasing population in southeast Idaho, to ensure sufficient solid waste capacity and service 

availability. It is recommended that subdivision developers be instructed to contact the appropriate solid 

waste collection provider and landfill for solid waste disposal coordination.   

Accidental surface spills of hazardous material products and petroleum hydrocarbon products (i.e., fuel, oil, 

and other chemicals) are most associated with the transportation and delivery to work sites or facilities. The 

following Idaho, storage, release, reporting and corrective action regulations may be applicable: 

• Hazardous and Deleterious Material Storage IDAPA 58.01.02.800  

• Hazardous Material Spills, IDAPA 58.01.02.850  

• Rules and Standards for Hazardous Waste IDAPA 58.01.05  

• Petroleum Release Reporting, Investigation and Confirmation IDAPA 58.01.02 .851  

• Petroleum Release Response and Corrective Action IDAPA 58.01.02.852  
 

Please note, The Idaho Release, Reporting and Corrective Action Regulations, IDAPA 58.01.02.851; require 

notification within 24 hours of any spill of petroleum product greater than 25 gallons and notification for the 

release of lesser amounts if they cannot be cleaned up within twenty-four (24) hours. The cleanup 

requirements for petroleum are also contained in these regulations. 

For reporting requirements of hazardous substances please see Idaho Statute Title 39 Chapter 7, Hazardous 

Substance Emergency Response Act including section 39-7108 Notification of Release is Required. 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 45 of 254

https://www2.deq.idaho.gov/water/IPDES/


EXHIBIT 3 

Agency Comments 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 46 of 254



Outlook

Proposed Deeter Ridge Estates Subdivision

From Cefalo, James <James.Cefalo@idwr.idaho.gov>
Date Thu 10/2/2025 9:36 AM
To Bannock County Planning and Development <development@bannockcounty.gov>

1 attachment (6 KB)
Outlook-horizontal;

This email is regarding the proposed Deeter Ridge Estates subdivision.  The Department of Water
Resources received notice of the proposed subdivision on September 29, 2025.  According to the notice,
the proposed subdivision will be comprised of 10 lots, with each lot approximately one acre in size.  The
development proposes individual well and septic systems.  The Department provides the following
comment:

Pursuant to the recent amendments to Sections 42-111 and 42-227, Idaho Code, which became effective
on July 1, 2025, individual domestic wells in new subdivisions in the Upper Snake River Basin are limited
to in-home use only.  Individual domestic wells in new subdivisions cannot be used to water lawns,
gardens, or other landscaping, unless the property owners acquire ground water irrigation rights
authorizing such use.  Currently, there is a moratorium on processing or approving new ground water
irrigation rights in the Upper Snake River Basin.  If Bannock County approves the proposed subdivision
with individual domestic wells, it will be a dry subdivision (no lawns or other landscaping), unless the
property owners hold irrigation water rights from some other source or are able to obtain and move
existing ground water irrigation rights. 

James Cefalo

James Cefalo  |  Regional Manager
900 N Skyline Drive, Idaho Falls, ID 83402
(208) 525-7161  |  www.idwr.idaho.gov
 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 47 of 254



 

Phone: 208 359-5353             101 E Main St #204, Rexburg Idaho 83440-1917            www.grwei.com 

Memorandum 
 
To: Stewart K. Ward 
 Dioptra LLC 
  
From: Gerald R Williams, P.E. 
 
Date: September 24, 2025   
 
Re: Floodplain on Parcel RPR3803029304, 

10961 W 2 ½ Mile Rd, 
Pocatello, ID 83202 

 

 
September 24, 2025

General Project Description and Purpose The project is located on the south side of W 2 ½ Mile Rd just 
west of I-15 northeast of Chubbuck, ID. The desire is to subdivide the 26.64 acre parcel. However, a portion 
of it is mapped by FEMA as a Zone A floodplain without any 100-yr base flood elevations (BFEs). In order 
to subdivide a parcel larger than 5 acres, the BFEs must be established. Reference is made to the map below. 
 

 
  

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 48 of 254



 

Phone: 208 359-5353             101 E Main St #204, Rexburg Idaho 83440-1917            www.grwei.com 

100-Year Flood Rate Before modeling floodplain hydraulics on the site to establish BFEs, the 100-year 
flow rate, which was not determined in previous FEMA-approved studies, must be estimated. WEI used the 
USGS StreamStats program to identify the watershed, which is only 0.89 square miles. Reference is made 
to Exhibit 1. For this location, StreamStats regression analysis equations apply, and StreamStats provided 
a 1% annual chance (100-year) flow of 149 cfs. Reference is made to the StreamStats report attached to the 
end of this memorandum. 
 
Upstream of the site is I-15, and upland of that a frontage road. The surfaces of both roads are elevated 
substantially above the natural grade and as such act as dams, impounding all runoff that is in excess of the 
culvert capacity. This is shown on Exhibit 2. The two impoundment areas act as detention basins and 
potentially act to reduce the peak flow reaching the site. Whether it does or not was not analyzed, as WEI 
instead, possibly conservatively, assumed the full 149 cfs passes through the frontage road and I-15 culverts. 
 
Vertical Datum and Information FEMA flood information for this area is all on the NAVD 1988 vertical 
datum which is the datum used for all information provided below and on exhibits. Terrain data used was 
from a LiDAR digital elevation model (DEM). 
 
Hydraulic Modeling The Army Corps of Engineer’s HEC-RAS program was used to create a 2D model 
of flow on the site.  
 
100-Year Flood Level The BFE flood levels per WEI’s hydraulic floodplain modeling within the site is 
shown on Exhibit 3. This is NOT a LOMR remapping project, so the FEMA zone A floodplain mapping 
remains effective, but when establishing BFEs, the endpoints create the model floodplain limits, and so the 
limits are shown for information purposes only. In the future, anything outside of WEI’s limits but inside 
FEMA’s could, though a LOMA application to FEMA, be removed from the regulatory floodplain. 
 
 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 49 of 254



Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 50 of 254



Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 51 of 254



Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 52 of 254



EXHIBIT 4 

Ordinance Excerpts 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 53 of 254



Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 54 of 254



Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 55 of 254



Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 56 of 254



Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 57 of 254



Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 58 of 254



Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 59 of 254



Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 60 of 254



Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 61 of 254



Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 62 of 254



Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 63 of 254



Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 64 of 254



Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 65 of 254



FINDINGS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 66 of 254



BANNOCK COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL 
FINDINGS AND ORDER: PERMIT SCP-25-2 

Page 1 

 

 

 

BANNOCK COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL 
FINDINGS AND ORDER 

 

CONCEPT PLAN – DEETER RIDGE ESTATES 

PUBLIC HEARING: OCTOBER 22, 2025 

 

FILE #:   SCP-25-2        

LOCATION: A portion of RPR3803029304, currently addressed as 10961 W. 2 ½ Mile Road, Chubbuck, 

ID 83202. 

 

APPLICANT:     OWNER: 

Dioptra      Spring Creek Homes LLC  Spring Creek Homes LLC and BKKP Properties LLC 

Stewart Ward     620 Pheasant Ridge Drive 13104 W. Tyhee Road    

4880 Clover Dell Road  Pocatello, ID 83202   Pocatello, ID 83202   

Pocatello, ID 83202 

 
REQUEST & BACKGROUND:  Stewart Ward proposes development for ten (10) residential lots and one (1) 

open space lot.  The subject property is a portion of parcel RPR3803029304. The affected lots total 23.21 acres 

generally located off of 2 ½ Mile Road, a county-maintained road.  The development proposes individual well 

and septic systems. There will be 10 buildable lots between 1.01 and 1.06 acres in size. This subdivision is 

located ~ 0.49 miles from the City of Chubbuck boundary.   

FINDINGS: 
 

JUSTIFICATION FOR THE DECISION/CRITERIA, STANDARDS AND FACTS RELIED UPON 
 

SITE CHARACTERISTICS AND ZONING: 

ZONE: Multiple Use (MU) 

DESIGNATION: Residential Suburban (RS) 

PROPERTY SIZE: ~27.98 acres  

VIEWS: The property is visible from the north, east, south and west 

IMPACT AREA: City of Chubbuck 

FLOOD ZONE: A 

TERRAIN: Sloped from north to south  

EXISTING STRUCTURES: Accessory structures 

 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 67 of 254



BANNOCK COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL 
FINDINGS AND ORDER: PERMIT SCP-25-2 

Page 2 

NOTICE AND TESTIMONY REQUIREMENTS: 

Notice of the public hearing was completed according to statutory requirements. Public comment was taken 

according to statutory requirements.  

REQUIRED FINDINGS FOR CONCEPT PLAN – REVIEW CRITERIA, §302.E 

1. The proposed tentative plan [is] [is not] in conformance with the Bannock County Comprehensive 
Plan; [is] [is not] in conformance with applicable provisions of this Ordinance, other County 
Ordinances, and Idaho Code.  

_________________________________________________________________________________________               

_________________________________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

2. The proposed roads and bridges [are] [are not] designed and constructed according to Section 402 of 
the Subdivision Ordinance. A design deviation [was] [was not] requested and [was] [ was not] 
granted to equal or exceed these standards for its purpose.  

_________________________________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 REQUIRED FINDINGS FOR DESIGN DEVIATION/VARIANCE: 
i. That literal interpretation and enforcement of the regulation [would] [would not] result in 

practical difficulty or unnecessary physical hardship inconsistent with the objectives of these 
standards. 
__________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
ii. That there [are] [are not] extraordinary site characteristics applicable to the property involved or 

to the intended use of the property, which does not generally apply to other properties. 
__________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
iii. That literal interpretation and enforcement of the regulation [would] [would not] deprive the 

applicant of privileges enjoyed by the owners of other properties.  
__________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

iv. That the granting of the variance [will] [will not] constitute a grant of special privilege inconsistent 
with the limitations on other properties. 
__________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 68 of 254



BANNOCK COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL 
FINDINGS AND ORDER: PERMIT SCP-25-2 

Page 3 

v. That the granting of the variance [will] [will not] be detrimental to the public health, safety, or 
welfare or be materially injurious to properties or improvements in the vicinity. 
__________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

3. The proposed partitioning of land [does] [does not] prohibit the extension of dedicated streets or 
roads. 

_________________________________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

4. The proposed partitioning [will] [will not] conflict with legally established easements or access within 
or adjacent to the proposed land partition.  

_________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
5. The blocks of lots [are] [are not] located and laid out to properly relate to adjoining or nearby lot or 

parcel lines, utilities, streets, or other existing or planned facilities. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
6. The proposed property [is] [is not] physically suitable for the type and proposed density of 

development and [does] [does not] conform to existing zone standards. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
(If adding approval conditions) with the following conditions of approval,  

 _________________________________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 69 of 254



BANNOCK COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL 
FINDINGS AND ORDER: PERMIT SCP-25-2 

Page 4 

ORDER: CONCLUSION AND DECISION 

The Planning and Development Council, pursuant to the aforementioned, finds that the request for Deeter 

Ridge Estates Concept Plan, as described in the application, shall be [approved] [denied] [tabled]. 

Motion by ________________________, seconded by ________________________to adopt the foregoing 
Findings and Order. 

 

ROLL CALL: 

Councilperson Dimick Voted [Yes] [No]  [Absent/Recused] 
Councilperson Madsen 
Councilperson Selleneit 

Voted [Yes] [No]  [Absent/Recused] 
Voted [Yes] [No]  [Absent/Recused] 

Councilperson Ulrich Voted [Yes] [No]  [Absent/Recused] 
Councilperson Ward Voted [Yes] [No]  [Absent/Recused] 

 

Motion carried by a _______ to _____ vote. 

Dated this ______________ day of ___________________, 2025. 

 
             __________________________________________________ 
             Signed by (Chairperson) (Vice Chair) 
 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT CERTIFICATE 
State of Idaho) 
S.S. 
County of Bannock) 
 
On this _____ day of _______________, in the year of 2025, before me ____________________________, a 
notary public, personally appeared ______________________________, personally known to me to be the 
person  whose name  is subscribed to the within instrument, and acknowledged to me that (she) (he) 
executed the same. 
 
S             ______________________________________________ 
E             Notary Public 
A              My Commission Expires on _____________ 20____ 
L      

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 70 of 254



MOTION 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 71 of 254



 

EXAMPLE MOTION 
 

Based on the record and the discussion this evening, I move to [approve] [deny] [table] the 
request for the Deeter Ridge Estates Concept Plan as described in the application materials as 
supplemented with additional information attached in the staff report and according to 
testimony received, and to adopt the proposed findings and order for signature by the Chair or 
Vice-Chair. 

(IF ADDING APPROVAL CONDITIONS) with the following conditions of approval, 
 
1. …. 
 
2. …. 
 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 72 of 254



AGENDA ITEM NO. 5 

Variance – John Good 

Side yard setback 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 73 of 254



PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 
5500 S 5th Ave | Pocatello, Idaho 83204 | 208.236.7230 | www.bannockcounty.gov 

 

STAFF REPORT 
VARIANCE PERMIT- GOOD 

Page 1 of 6 

 

 

VARIANCE PERMIT 

PUBLIC HEARING: OCTOBER 22, 2025 

STAFF REPORT 

 

FILE #:  VAR-25-13        

LOCATION:  RPRRRBE001500 and is currently addressed as 131 E. Cindy Avenue, 

Inkom, ID 83245 

APPLICANT:    OWNER: 

John R. Good     John R. Good   

131 E. Cindy Avenue    131 E. Cindy Avenue 

Inkom, ID 83245    Inkom, ID 83245 

         

RECOMMENDATION: Bannock County Planning and Development recommends the following: 

• Denial, or;  

• Approval with the following conditions: 

1. The structure shall comply with all applicable fire separation and building code 
requirements for walls located on or near the property line, including fire-rated wall 
construction and restrictions on window and door openings. 

2. No windows, vents, or other wall openings shall be permitted within the zero-lot-line 
wall. 

3. Jackson Creek Fire District review and approval shall be required prior to issuance of a 
building permit. 

4. Roof eaves, gutters, and downspouts shall not encroach over the property line unless 
an easement or written consent from the adjacent property owner is provided and 
recorded. 

5. No structure or footing shall encroach across the property line. 
6. An engineered drainage plan shall be submitted and approved by the County Engineer 

ensuring that no runoff from roofs or impervious surfaces flows onto adjacent 
properties. 

7. A privacy fence or landscaping buffer shall be required along the property line to 
mitigate visual or privacy impacts to the neighboring property. 

 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 74 of 254

http://www.bannockcounty.us/


STAFF REPORT 
VARIANCE PERMIT - GOOD 

Page 2 of 6 
 

REQUEST & BACKGROUND:  John Good requests a variance for a side yard setback for a 

covered awning.  The current side yard setback is 20’ and the applicant is proposing a 0’ side yard 

setback.   

SITE CHARACTERISTICS AND ZONING: 

ZONING: Residential Rural 

PROPERTY SIZE: ~ 1.60 acres  

VIEWS:  The property is visible from Cindy Avenue and Leta Drive 

EXISTING STRUCTURES:  Residential dwelling and residential accessory structure 

AREA OF CITY IMPACT:  Inkom 

VARIANCE:  Variance was approved for this shop in 2021 when it burned down.  Variance was 

for 17’ instead of 20’. 

 

SURROUNDING LAND USES AND ZONING 

NORTH: The site is within the Residential Rural zoning district and consists of residential uses.  

EAST: The site is within the Residential Rural zoning district and consists of residential uses.  

SOUTH: The site is within the Residential Rural zoning district and consists of residential uses 

and bare ground.  

WEST: The site is within the Residential Rural zoning district and consists of residential uses.  

 

APPLICABLE LAWS AND PLANS: 

1. Idaho Code §67-6516, Variance – Definition – Application – Notice – Hearing. 
2. Bannock County Comprehensive Plan, 2025-27 
3. Bannock County Zoning Ordinance, 1998-1, specifically: 

a. §320 RESIDENTIAL RURAL DISTRICT  
b. §327 BUILDING BULK AND PLACEMENT STANDARDS 
c. §540 VARIANCES 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 75 of 254



STAFF REPORT 
VARIANCE PERMIT - GOOD 

Page 3 of 6 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SITE MAP 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 76 of 254



STAFF REPORT 
VARIANCE PERMIT - GOOD 

Page 4 of 6 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ZONING MAP 

STANDARDS FOR GRANTING A VARIANCE (ZONING ORDINANCE §540.4) 

The Planning and Development Council may grant a variance if it makes affirmative findings on 
each of the following standards: 
 
A. The applicant has shown that there is no reasonable alternative. 

Staff Findings of Fact 
The applicant is requesting approval to replace an awning on the west side of the shop, 
located directly on the property line. The original structure was destroyed by fire, and the 
proposed replacement will be constructed in the same location, but extended slightly in 
length. There is an existing covered awning on the east side of the garage, which limits 
alternative placement options. Additionally, the applicant indicates that the new awning 
will be constructed up against an existing retaining wall.  Council should consider that the 
applicant has provided rationale, indicating no feasible alternative placement, and that 
the replacement is intended to restore a previously existing structure with minimal 
change in footprint. 
 

B. The variance is not in conflict with the public interest. 
 
Staff Findings of Fact 
The applicant has stated that the placement of the awning does not impact the public 

interest.  Applicant is willing to install a drain to prevent rain and snow runoff from 

encroaching on neighboring parcel to the west.  Staff finds that the requested variance 

does not appear to be in conflict with the public interest, as no public comments have 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 77 of 254



STAFF REPORT 
VARIANCE PERMIT - GOOD 

Page 5 of 6 
 

been received at the time this report was prepared. Council should consider the 

applicant’s justification and any public testimony to determine whether any aspect of the 

proposed variance is inconsistent with the public interest. 

C. The variance will not adversely affect adjacent property.  

Staff Findings of Fact 
 The applicant has stated that a rain gutter and snow blockers will be installed to prevent 

runoff from impacting the neighboring property to the west. The rain gutter will be 

directed to drain entirely onto the applicant’s property. Council should evaluate whether 

any aspect of the requested variance conflicts with the interests of the adjacent property 

owner, taking into consideration the applicant’s proposed mitigation measures and any 

public testimony received. 

D. If the variance is not granted, the applicant will suffer undue hardship caused by the 

physical characteristics of the site. 

Staff Findings 
 The applicant has stated that the previous structure was lost due to a fire and that 

 additional storage space is now needed. Due to site limitations, there are no 

 alternative locations to construct the replacement awning without the requested 

 variance. Council should consider the information provided and determine 

 whether denial of the variance would result in an undue  hardship, based on the 

 physical characteristics and constraints of the site. 

IDAHO CODE REGARDING VARIANCE PERMITS 
IC 67-6516:  VARIANCE — DEFINITION — APPLICATION — NOTICE — HEARING. Each 

governing board shall provide, as part of the zoning ordinance, for the processing of applications 

for variance permits. A variance is a modification of the bulk and placement requirements of the 

ordinance as to lot size, lot coverage, width, depth, front yard, side yard, rear yard, setbacks, 

parking space, height of buildings, or other ordinance provisions affecting the size or shape of a 

structure or the placement of the structure upon lots, or the size of lots. A variance shall not be 

considered a right or special privilege, but may be granted to an applicant only upon a showing 

of undue hardship because of characteristics of the site and that the variance is not in conflict 

with the public interest. Prior to granting a variance, notice and an opportunity to be heard shall 

be provided to property owners adjoining the parcel under consideration and the manager or 

person in charge of the local airport if the variance could create an aviation hazard as defined in 

section 21-501, Idaho Code. Denial of a variance permit or approval of a variance permit with 

conditions unacceptable to the landowner may be subject to the regulatory taking analysis 

provided for by section 67-8003, Idaho Code, consistent with the requirements established 

thereby. 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 78 of 254



STAFF REPORT 
VARIANCE PERMIT - GOOD 

Page 6 of 6 
 

AGENCY COMMENTS: 

 1. None at time of report 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS: 

 1. None at time of report 

 

REPORT BY:     REPORTED DATE: October 8, 2025 

Annie Hughes Williams, Zoning Planner *Staff comments in this report are based solely 

annieh@bannockcounty.gov   upon evidence available at the time of the report.  

208-236-7230     Additional information may be brought to light  

      at or before the hearing. 

 

EXHIBITS: 

1. Application and Site Plan 
2. Applicable Laws (on file with Staff) 
3. VAR-21-2 Findings 
4. Evidence of Notices (on file with Staff) 
5. Agency/Public Comments (if any) 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 79 of 254

mailto:annieh@bannockcounty.


EXHIBIT 1 

Application & Site Plan 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 80 of 254



Parcel & Variance Information

Application for Variance

Certification

Variance Application

VAR-25-13
Submitted On: Aug 26, 2025

Applicant

  John Good
 
 

Primary Location

131 E CINDY AVE
INKOM, ID 83245

Parcel Number

RPRRRBE001500

My property is zoned:

Residential Rural

What variance are you requesting? Please select all that apply: Rear yard setbacks

--

Side yard setbacks

true

Riparian area setbacks

--

Right-of-way setbacks

--

Lot size

--

Other

--

Please describe your variance request in detail:

Building directly on the property line. Structure was existing before and burned down and now rebuilding it. 

Narrative addressing how your application meets criterion 1: The applicant has shown there is no reasonable alternative.

Yes. It will be in the same place as the previous structure. Just a little bit longer. 

Narrative addressing how your application meets criterion 2: The variance is not in conflict with the public interest.

No it does not. 

Narrative addressing how your application meets criterion 3: The variance will not adversely affect adjacent property.

I am not sure. I am putting a rain gutter and snow blockers. 

Narrative addressing how your application meets criterion 4: If the variance is not granted, the applicant will suffer undue hardship
caused by the physical characteristics of the site.

Yes. Previous structure burned down and more storage space is needed. 

Electronic Signature [Typed name of applicant]

John Good

I agree that my electronic signature above is equivalent to a
handwritten signature and is binding for all purposes related to
this transaction

true

Date

08/26/2025

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 81 of 254



Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 82 of 254



Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 83 of 254



Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 84 of 254



Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 85 of 254



Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 86 of 254



Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 87 of 254



Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 88 of 254



EXHIBIT 2 

VAR-21-2 Recorded Findings 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 89 of 254



Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 90 of 254



Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 91 of 254



Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 92 of 254



EXHIBIT 3 

Ordinance Excerpts 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 93 of 254



BANNOCK COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE NO. 1998-1  Recorded #98004542  

Page 24 of 151 

 

320 RESIDENTIAL RURAL DISTRICT (RR) 

 
321 PURPOSE: 
 

The Residential Rural zoning district is established to provide low density, single–family 
residential areas in rural settings.  RR districts require lot sizes or sufficient open space to 
maintain a semi–rural setting. 

 
322 CHARACTERISTICS OF LAND IN THIS DISTRICT: 
 

The Residential Rural designation is to be applied to existing neighborhoods with larger, 
rural sized lots, and for areas of underdeveloped land which will serve as buffer areas 
between Agriculture districts and urbanizing areas.  Factors to be considered in 
designating land for RR districts should include, but not be limited to, availability of county 
services and roads, types of surrounding land uses, and suitability of land to safely handle 
individual well and sewage systems on lots 5 acres or more in size, or higher densities with 
central or municipal water and sewer systems. 

 

323 USES PERMITTED - WITH STAFF REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF SITE PLAN 

   (SECTION 503)  
 

A.  All uses listed as permitted in the RS district, except attached housing unless such 
housing is in an open space designed subdivision. 

 
B.  Commercial Agricultural uses for use on the premises, buildings, and structures, except 

hog farms, feed lots, and agricultural support uses. 
 

C.  State licensed day care homes or centers with up to six client children. 
 
324 USES CONDITIONALLY PERMITTED: 
 

The following land uses may be permitted conditionally in the RR district subject to 
conditions established in this section and elsewhere in this Ordinance. 

 
A.  All uses permitted by conditional use permit in the Residential Suburban district, except 

attached housing unless such housing is in an open space designed subdivision. 
 
325 PARKING STANDARDS: 
 

All residential development shall meet the parking standards set forth in the Residential 
Suburban District Section 335 inclusive. 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 94 of 254



BANNOCK COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE NO. 1998-1  Recorded #98004542  

Page 25 of 151 

 

326 SUBDIVIDING IN THE RESIDENTIAL RURAL DISTRICT:  The following methods of 
subdividing are permitted in the RR zone: 

 
A.  Open Space Designed Subdivision (see design standards of Subdivision Ordinance) 

with density of one dwelling to 2.5 acres. 
 

Open Space designed subdivisions are required in the RR zone if one or more of the 
following apply: 

 
1.  A proposed subdivision’s average net lot size is less than five acres; 

 

2.  If 25% or more of the subdivision is above 5000' elevation. 
 
  3.  If the proposed subdivision includes important wildlife habitat. 
 

B.  Conventional:  Five-acre minimum lot size if individual well or septic systems are used.  
Such subdivisions are prohibited from further division. 

 
C.  Planned Unit Development provided that municipal water and sewer are provided and 

limited to locations within Area of City Impact; density may be up to one dwelling per ½ 
acre; for residential uses or for mixed-use developments which include neighborhood 
commercial uses subordinate to residential uses in the same development. (Amendment 
#19 Ordinance #2008-4) 

 
1.   Minimum size for a planned unit development in the RR district shall be ten acres and 

the maximum size is 100 lots or dwelling units and 100 acres. (Amendment #19 
Ordinance #2008-4) 

 
D.  All subdivisions on a city boundary must apply to be annexed into that city which has 

designated that land to be within its “Area of City Impact.” 
 

1.  In the event the City declines in writing, to annex the development, the County shall 
hear the application in accordance with its Area of Impact Agreement with the City, or 
Idaho Code shall apply if none exists. 

 
 
 
 
 

 

REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 95 of 254



BANNOCK COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE NO. 1998-1  Recorded #98004542  

Page 26 of 151 

 

327  TABLE OF BUILDING BULK AND PLACEMENT STANDARDS: 
The following table sets forth building bulk and placement standards for the Residential 
Rural District: 

 
RESIDENTIAL RURAL DISTRICT 

 
MINIMUM SETBACKS (FT) 

  

FROM LOCAL 
ROAD R-O-W 

FROM ARTERIAL 

OR COLLECTOR 

 R-O-W 

 

REAR YARD 

 

SIDE YARD 

 

MAXIMUM 

STRUCTURE HT. 

PERMITTED USES:      

Single–family Residence
  

30 50 30 10 35 

Two-family Residence 30 50 30 10 35 

Residential Accessory  
 Structures 

30 50 20 20 35 

Agricultural Structures 30 50 20 20  

Farm Animal Structures 30 50 30 30 15 

Commercial Agriculture 
 Accessory Structures for  
 Farm Animals 

 
100 

 

100 

 
100 

 
100 

 
- 

Non-Residential Buildings 30 50 20 20 - 

(Amendment 63, Ordinance 2024-02) 
 
Setback for all structures shall be 100’ from any stream or riparian area 
 
Minimum Lot Size: Five acres; see Section 326.  Larger lot sizes may be required by the Health 
Department. 
 
 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 96 of 254



BANNOCK COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE NO. 1998-1  Recorded #98004542  

Page 26 of 151 

 

327  TABLE OF BUILDING BULK AND PLACEMENT STANDARDS: 
The following table sets forth building bulk and placement standards for the Residential 
Rural District: 

 
RESIDENTIAL RURAL DISTRICT 

 
MINIMUM SETBACKS (FT) 

  

FROM LOCAL 
ROAD R-O-W 

FROM ARTERIAL 

OR COLLECTOR 

 R-O-W 

 

REAR YARD 

 

SIDE YARD 

 

MAXIMUM 

STRUCTURE HT. 

PERMITTED USES:      

Single–family Residence
  

30 50 30 10 35 

Two-family Residence 30 50 30 10 35 

Residential Accessory  
 Structures 

30 50 20 20 35 

Agricultural Structures 30 50 20 20  

Farm Animal Structures 30 50 30 30 15 

Commercial Agriculture 
 Accessory Structures for  
 Farm Animals 

 
100 

 

100 

 
100 

 
100 

 
- 

Non-Residential Buildings 30 50 20 20 - 

(Amendment 63, Ordinance 2024-02) 
 
Setback for all structures shall be 100’ from any stream or riparian area 
 
Minimum Lot Size: Five acres; see Section 326.  Larger lot sizes may be required by the Health 
Department. 
 
 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 97 of 254



BANNOCK COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE NO. 1998-1  Recorded #98004542  

Page 131 of 151 

 

B.  A conditional use permit shall be required for the reconstruction of a structure 
housing a pre–existing conditional use if the structure is destroyed by fire or other 
calamity, to a greater extent than 50 percent.  The extent of damage or partial 
destruction shall be based upon the ratio of the estimated cost of restoring the 
structure to its condition prior to such damage or partial destruction to the estimated 
cost of duplicating the entire structure as it existed prior thereto.  Estimates for this 
purpose shall be made by or shall be reviewed and approved by the Building 
Inspector and shall be based on the minimum cost of construction in compliance with 
the Building Code. 

 
540 VARIANCES: 
 
540.1 PURPOSE:  A variance shall not be considered a right but may be granted to an 

applicant upon a showing of undue hardship related to physical characteristics of the 
site, and then only if the proposal is not in conflict with the public interest. 

 
A.  Application for a variance shall be filed by the owner of the subject property with 

the Planning Director at least 30 days prior to the public hearing.  The application 
shall include the information necessary to enable the Planning and Zoning 
Department to make a complete analysis of the variance request. 

 
B.  The Planning Director may request additional information necessary to enable a 

complete analysis and evaluation of the variance request, and a determination as to 
whether the circumstances prescribed for the granting of a variance exist. 

 
C.  The application shall be accompanied by a fee established by the Board of County 

Commissioners.  A single application may include requests for variances from more 
than one regulation applicable to the same site, or for similar variances on two or 
more adjacent parcels with similar characteristics. 

 
D.  The applicant shall also provide the Planning Director with the names and 

addresses of the owners of property that abuts the applicant's parcel. 
 
540.2 PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE: 
 

Notice of the variance request shall be given to adjoining property owners at least 
seven days before the date of the public hearing. 

 
540.3 ACTION BY THE PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL: 
 

A.  The Planning and Development Council shall act upon the application within forty–
five days following the close of the public hearing on a variance.  The Planning and 
Development Council may grant a variance as the variance was applied for or in 
modified form, or subject to conditions, or the application may be denied.  A variance 
may be revocable, may be granted for a limited time period, or may be granted 
subject to conditions as the Planning and Development Council may prescribe. 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 98 of 254



BANNOCK COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE NO. 1998-1  Recorded #98004542  

Page 132 of 151 

 

 
540.4 STANDARDS: 
 

The Planning and Development Council may grant a variance if it makes affirmative 
findings of fact on each of the following standards: 

 
  1.  The applicant has shown that there is no reasonable alternative. 
 
  2.  The variance is not in conflict with the public interest. 
 
  3.  The variance will not adversely affect adjacent property. 

4.  If the variance is not granted, the applicant will suffer undue hardship caused by 
the physical characteristics of the site. 

 
540.5 EFFECTIVE DATE OF VARIANCE: 
 

A decision of the Planning and Development Council on a variance shall be effective 
ten (10) days after the date on which action is announced unless an appeal has been 
filed pursuant to Section 540.6. 

 
540.6 APPEAL TO BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS: 
 

The appeal procedure is the same as the procedure in Section 550 
 
540.7 LAPSE OF VARIANCE: 
 

A.  Unless a longer time period shall be specifically established as a condition of 
approval, a variance shall lapse six months following the date on which the variance 
is issued, unless prior to the expiration of the six months, a building permit and a 
zoning permit are issued. 

 
B.  A variance subject to lapse may be renewed by the Planning and Development 

Council for an additional period of six months, provided that prior to the expiration 
date, a written request for renewal is filed with the Planning and Development 
Council. 

 
C.  The Planning and Development Council may grant or deny an application for 

renewal upon a showing by the applicant that circumstances beyond his control 
caused the delay. 

 
540.8 SUSPENSION AND REVOCATION: 
 

A.  Upon violation of any applicable provision of this Ordinance or, if granted subject to 
conditions, upon failure to comply with conditions, a variance shall be suspended 
upon notification to the owner of the use or property subject to the variance. 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 99 of 254



BANNOCK COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE NO. 1998-1  Recorded #98004542  

Page 133 of 151 

 

B.  The Planning and Development Council  shall hold a public hearing within 40 days 
of such notification, in accord with Section 560, and if not satisfied that the 
regulation, general provision, or condition is being complied with, may revoke the 
variance or take such action as may be necessary to ensure compliance with the 
regulation, general provision, or condition. 

 
 
540.9 MINOR VARIANCES AND PROCEDURES: 
 

A minor variance may be approved by the Planning Director subject to the following 
limitations: 

 
A.  A minor variance may not reduce a requirement by more than ten percent of its 

original standard, except in situations where proposed building additions would 
conform to established setbacks. 

 
B.  The applicant shall furnish the Planning Director with written consent from abutting 

property owners before the Director approves a minor variance. 
 

C.  If a minor variance request is denied, the applicant may appeal by proceeding 
through the regular variance process. 

 
550 APPEALS OF PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL'S DECISIONS: 

A.  The Board of County Commissioners shall serve as the decision–making body for 
appeals of decisions of the Planning and Development Council.  The Planning and 
Development Council's decision may be appealed to the Board of County 
Commissioners by the applicant or any other aggrieved person within ten days after 
the date on which the decision is made.  Notice of the appeal shall be filed with the 
Planning Director. 

 
B.  A transcript of the Planning and Development Council's consideration of the 

request shall be provided by the County at the expense of the appellant.  The Board 
of County Commissioners shall determine the fee per page to be charged for 
transcripts.  The appellant shall pay the estimated cost of the transcript to the County 
in advance, and be refunded money or owe additional money when the transcript 
has been prepared, and the actual cost determined. 

 
C.  Not more than 30 days following the preparation of transcripts, the Board of County 

Commissioners shall meet to consider the appeal.  The hearing shall not be a public 
hearing, but shall be open to the public.  The hearing shall be an “on the record 
review.” During the hearing, County staff shall be available to present the application 
and answer questions; however, comments will not be received from the audience.  
The Board of County Commissioners shall consider such findings, reports, minutes, 
comments, and recommendations as are forwarded to them by the Planning and 
Development Council in rendering their decision. Any applicant or other affected 
person may request a reconsideration of the Board of County Commissioners’ 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 100 of 254



FINDINGS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 101 of 254



BANNOCK COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL 
FINDINGS AND ORDER: PERMIT VAR-25-13 

Page 1 

 

 

 

BANNOCK COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL 
FINDINGS AND ORDER 

 

VARIANCE PERMIT- JOHN R. GOOD 

PUBLIC HEARING: OCTOBER 22, 2025 

 

FILE #:    VAR-25-13        

LOCATION:  RPRRRBE001500 and is currently addressed as 131 E. Cindy Avenue, Inkom, ID 83245 

APPLICANT:    OWNER: 

John R. Good      John R. Good   

131 E. Cindy Avenue    131 E. Cindy Avenue 

Inkom, ID 83245     Inkom, ID 83245 

 

REQUEST & BACKGROUND:  John Good requests a variance for a side yard setback for a covered awning.  

The current side yard setback is 20’ and the applicant is proposing a 0’ side yard setback.   

 

FINDINGS: 

 

 JUSTIFICATION FOR THE DECISION/CRITERIA, STANDARDS AND FACTS RELIED UPON 

 
SITE CHARACTERISTICS AND ZONING: 

 

ZONING: Residential Rural 

PROPERTY SIZE: ~ 1.60 acres  

VIEWS:  The property is visible from Cindy Avenue and Leta Drive 

EXISTING STRUCTURES:  Residential dwelling and residential accessory structure 

AREA OF CITY IMPACT:  Inkom 

VARIANCE:  Variance was approved for this shop in 2021 when it burned down.  Variance was for 17’ instead 

of 20’. 

 

NOTICE AND TESTIMONY REQUIREMENTS: 

Notice of the public hearing was completed according to statutory requirements. Public comment was taken 

according to statutory requirements.  

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 102 of 254



BANNOCK COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL 
FINDINGS AND ORDER: PERMIT VAR-25-13 

Page 2 

 

REQUIRED FINDINGS FOR VARIANCE PERMIT, §540 

1. The applicant has shown there [is] [is not] a reasonable alternative. 
 

This is based on:  

                              

                              

                              

 
2. The variance [is] [is not] in conflict with the public interest. 

 
This is based on:  

                             

                             

                              

 
 

3. The variance [will] [will not] adversely affect adjacent property.  
 
This is based on:  

                             

                             

                                

4. If the variance is not granted, the applicant [will] [will not] suffer undue hardship caused by the physical 
characteristics of the site. 
 

 This is based on: 

                             

                             

                              

Conditions: 

                             

                             

                              

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 103 of 254



BANNOCK COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL 
FINDINGS AND ORDER: PERMIT VAR-25-13 

Page 3 

 

ORDER: CONCLUSION AND DECISION 

The Planning and Development Council, pursuant to the aforementioned, finds that the request by John R. 

Good for a variance for a 0’ side yard setback, as described in the application, shall be [approved] [denied] 

[tabled]. 

Motion by ________________________, seconded by ________________________to adopt the foregoing 
Findings and Order. 

ROLL CALL: 

Councilperson Dimick Voted [Yes] [No]  [Absent/Recused] 
Councilperson Madsen Voted [Yes] [No]  [Absent/Recused] 
Councilperson Selleneit Voted [Yes] [No]  [Absent/Recused] 
Councilperson Ulrich Voted [Yes] [No]  [Absent/Recused] 
Councilperson Ward Voted [Yes] [No]  [Absent/Recused] 

 

Motion carried by a _______ to _____ vote. 

Dated this ______________ day of ___________________, 2025. 

 
             __________________________________________________ 
             Signed by (Chairperson) (Vice Chair) 
 

 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT CERTIFICATE 

State of Idaho) 
S.S. 
County of Bannock) 
 
On this _____ day of _______________, in the year of 2025, before me ____________________________, a 
notary public, personally appeared ______________________________ as chair/vice-chair on behalf of the 
Bannock County Planning and Development Council, personally known to me to be the person whose name is 
subscribed to the within instrument, and acknowledged to me that they executed the same. 
 
S             ______________________________________________ 
E             Notary Public 
A              My Commission Expires on _____________ 20____ 
L  
 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 104 of 254



MOTION 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 105 of 254



JOHN R. GOOD VARIANCE EXAMPLE MOTION 
 

Based on the record and discussion this evening, I move to [approve] [deny] [table] the request 
by John R. Good requesting a variance for a 0’ side yard setback, as described in the application 
materials, as supplemented with additional information attached in the staff report, according 
to testimony received, and to adopt the proposed findings and order for signature by the Chair 
or Vice-Chair. 

(IF ADDING APPROVAL CONDITIONS) with the following conditions of approval, 
 
1. …. 
 
2. …. 
 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 106 of 254



AGENDA ITEM NO. 6 

Subdivision Concept Plan – 

Tom’s Hollow Subdivision 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 107 of 254



PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 
5500 S 5th Ave | Pocatello, Idaho 83204 | 208.236.7230 | www.bannockcounty.gov 

 

STAFF REPORT 
CONCEPT PLAN – Tom’s Hollow Subdivision 

Page 1 of 9 

 

 

CONCEPT PLAN– TOM’S HOLLOW SUBDIVISION 

PUBLIC HEARING: OCTOBER 22, 2025 

STAFF REPORT 

 

FILE #:        SCP-25-3        

LOCATION: RPRRCHS000300, currently unaddressed and RPRRCHS000400, currently 

addressed as 620 E. Pidcock Road Inkom, ID 83245. 

 

APPLICANT:     OWNER: 

Dioptra LLC     Thomas Nelson Homes LLC   

Stewart Ward     P.O. Box 2373  

4880 Clover Dell Road   Pocatello, ID 83206    

Pocatello, ID 83202 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends approval with the following conditions:  

 

1. Depict all current and proposed easements and rights-of-way located within the 
subdivision, on all subsequent plats, including measurements and instrument numbers 
(when available).   

2. All subsequent plats shall state “Open Space is within individual lots as separate lots 
and is deed restricted from further development per Bannock County Subdivision 
Ordinance 1997-4, §401.C.3.b.” 

3. All subsequent plats shall state “90 foot x 45 foot easement for fire truck turn-a-round 
and 20,000 gallon underground fire suppression water tank.” 

 

Council may wish to add additional conditions as needed.  

 

REQUEST & BACKGROUND: Stewart Ward proposes an amendment to Coyote Hollow 

Subdivision for the purpose of adjusting a lot line.   The existing lots are 5.00 acres with 2.33 

acres of open space and 5.16 acres with 1.91 acres of open space. After the proposed 

adjustment, the lots will be 6.10 acres with 2.34 acres of open space and 4.05 acres with 1.91 

acres of open space.  The development proposes individual well and septic systems.   This 

subdivision is located ~ 1.19 miles from the City of Inkom boundary. 

 

CONCEPT PLAN PROPOSAL SUMMARY: 

TOTAL AREA: 10.15 +/- acres 

BUILDING LOTS: 2 residential 

DWELING UNIT DENTISY: 1 dwelling unit per 5.075 acres 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 108 of 254

http://www.bannockcounty.gov/


STAFF REPORT 
CONCEPT PLAN – Tom’s Hollow Subdivision 

Page 2 of 9 
 

BUILDING LOT SIZE: Approximately 4.05 acres to 6.10 acres 

WATER & SEWER: Individual well and septic systems. 

STORMWATER SYSTEM:  Retained on individual lots and within roadside swales. 

UTILITIES:  Power existing to the corner of lotsa. 

FIRE PROTECTION: Existing fire suppression tank on block 1 lot 3 of Coyote Hollow 

Subdivision. 

ROADS/ACCESS: Individual access via East Pidcock Road, a county-maintained road. 

 

SITE CHARACTERISTICS AND ZONING: 

ZONE: Residential Rural 

PROPERTY SIZE: ~5.00 acres and 5.16 acres 

VIEWS: The property is visible from E. Pidcock Road  

IMPACT AREA: City of Inkom 

FLOOD ZONE: X, minimal 

TERRAIN: Steep slopes with flat area and natural drainage 

EXISTING STRUCTURES: Residential dwelling in progress  

OPEN SPACE: 4.24 acres within lots 

OTHER: Located within Coyote Hollow Subdivision  

 

SURROUNDING LAND USES AND ZONING 

NORTH: The sites are within the Residential Rural zoning district and Agricultural zoning 

district and consist of bare ground and residential uses. 

EAST: The sites are within the Residential Rural zoning district and consist of residential uses 

and bare ground. 

SOUTH: The sites are within the Residential Rural zoning district and consist of bare ground 

and residential uses. 

WEST: The sites are within the Residential Rural zoning district and consist of residential uses 

and bare ground. 

 

COMMUNITY IMPACT ANALYSIS: 

1. Total population at built out will be a total of 6.4.  (2 lots x3.2 persons per household.) 
2. Population five to 17 years of age will be 1.536.  (6.4 population x 24%) 
3. Water usage will be 1,000 gal per day per household, total project at build out will be 

1,200 gal. per day per lot.  
4. Sewage produced per unit will be 208 gallons a day and total for project will be 

approximately 2,500 gallon per day.  
5. Tax generated for average size lot is estimated to be approximately $4,600 per lot 

assuming a dwelling and land value of $400,000. 
6. Cost to provide services is not known. 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 109 of 254



STAFF REPORT 
CONCEPT PLAN – Tom’s Hollow Subdivision 

Page 3 of 9 
 

APPLICABLE LAWS AND PLANS: 

1. Idaho Code §67-65, LOCAL LAND USE PLANNING ACT – SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE 
2. 2021 Bannock County Comprehensive Plan 
3. Bannock County Zoning Ordinance, 1998-1 

a. §320 RESIDENTIAL RURAL DISTRICT 
4. Bannock County Subdivision Ordinance, 1997-4, specifically: 

a. §302 CONCEPTUAL OR MASTER PLAN REVIEW 
 

 
SITE MAP 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 110 of 254



STAFF REPORT 
CONCEPT PLAN – Tom’s Hollow Subdivision 

Page 4 of 9 
 

 
ZONING MAP 

 
US FISH & WILDLIFE WETLANDS MAP 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 111 of 254



STAFF REPORT 
CONCEPT PLAN – Tom’s Hollow Subdivision 

Page 5 of 9 
 

 
EXPLORER CONTOUR MAP 

 

CONCEPT PLAN REVIEW CRITERIA §302.E 

The concept plan for a subdivision may be approved only if the reviewing authority shall find 

that it satisfies the following criteria: 

 

1. The proposed tentative plan is in conformance with the Bannock County 
Comprehensive Plan; is in conformance with all applicable provisions of this 
Ordinance, other County Ordinances, and Idaho Code.  

 
Staff Findings 
Comprehensive Plan: 
Staff has identified the following applicable goals and policies (others may be identified 
by the applicant or Council) The Bannock County Comprehensive Plan states:  
Goal 1.2: A balance of urban and rural amenities to attract families. 
Goal 2.2: Development that fosters economic growth while maintaining the rural 
character of the county.  

Strategy 2.2.4:  Allow rural developments to offer a mix of lot sizes to support 
people with diverse incomes, uses, and needs.  
Strategy 2.2.5: Continue to ensure that developments, rezones, and land uses 
align with the Future Land Use Map and its associated characteristics and 
descriptions as illustrated in Figure 7. 

Goal 3.3: A rural atmosphere with a variety of housing and commercial development 
opportunities.  

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 112 of 254



STAFF REPORT 
CONCEPT PLAN – Tom’s Hollow Subdivision 

Page 6 of 9 
 

Strategy 3.3.1: Manage density requirements where growth opportunities exist 
while considering the desire for open space. 

Goal 4.4: Protected natural resources.  
Strategy 4.4.2: Continue responsible natural resource management.  
Strategy 4.4.3: Support responsible use and management of surface and ground 
water.   
 

Bannock County Zoning Ordinance: 
The land is zoned Residential Rural (RR), which allows one dwelling per 2.5 acres with 
an open space subdivision.  The proposed density of this subdivision will be 1 dwelling 
unit per 5.0 acres.   As this lot is located within an existing subdivision, the proposed 
density of Coyote Hollow Subdivision would become a density of 1 dwelling per 5.075 
acres. The original subdivision was 101.53 acres /50% totaling 50.765 acres of required 
open space.  The open space was dedicated in the original subdivision for a total of 
56.66 acres. The open space was dedicated in the original subdivision on Lot 3 and Lot 4 
for a total of 4.24 acres.  Applicant has proposed open space on lot 4A to be 2.34 acres 
and lot 3A to be 1.91 acres, totaling 4.25 acres of open space. 
There is a residential dwelling being construction on lot 4A.  Setbacks for structure 
must meet the requirement of the Bannock County Zoning Ordinance §327, to the new 
proposed lot lines. 
 
Bannock County Subdivision Ordinance: 
Per §109.C., a replat is required in order realign lots within a recorded subdivision.  
The proposed subdivision name “Tom’s Hollow Subdivision” has been reviewed for 
duplicity by staff.  The proposed subdivision is currently located within a platted 
subdivision, Coyote Hollow Subdivision.   
Per Idaho code 50-1307: Plats of towns, subdivisions or additions must not bear the 
name of any other town or addition in the same county, nor can the same word or 
words similar or pronounced the same, be used in making a name for said town or 
addition, except the words city, place, court, addition or similar words, unless the same 
is contiguous and laid out and platted by the same party or parties platting the addition 
bearing the same name, or a party files and records the written consent of the party or 
parties who platted the addition bearing the same name. All plats of the same name 
must continue the block numbers of the plat previously filed. 
The applicant has proposed separate approaches from Pidcock Road, a county-
maintained road.  Developer will need to ensure submittal requirements have been met 
per §302.  With only two proposed lots, no interior subdivision road is required per 
§404.G, REVERSE FRONTAGE: All lots in subdivisions of more than four lots shall 
access to an interior subdivision road or street. If a road is proposed, road must meet 
the standards of §402.  
Applicant will need to ensure lot meets §404.C.1:Width to depth ratio shall not exceed 1 
to 5; i.e., a 100 ft. width cannot exceed 500' in depth. 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 113 of 254



STAFF REPORT 
CONCEPT PLAN – Tom’s Hollow Subdivision 

Page 7 of 9 
 

Applicant has proposed to use the existing 90’ x 45’ easement for fire truck turn-a-
round and 20,0000 gallon underground fire suppression water tank located on Lot 3 of 
Coyote Hollow Subdivision as the fire suppression and prevention measures.  Council 
may require applicant to provide proof of further discussion with local fire district.  
Applicant should be aware that per §407: In all subdivisions, the electric, gas, telephone, 
and other utility lines shall be installed underground from the lot boundary to any 
structure(s). The subdivision applicant shall install power to the lot boundaries. The 
power shall be installed outside the road right-of-way except for crossings. Distribution 
power lines may be above ground with the Council’s approval. In any City’s Area of 
Impact and where that City’s Subdivision Ordinance requires all underground utilities, 
that City’s Ordinance shall apply. 
 
Idaho Code:  
Developer will need to research Idaho Code to ensure all provisions have been met.   
 

2. The proposed roads and bridges will be designed and constructed according to the 
Section 402 of this Ordinance.  If a design deviation is requested, it shall equal or 
exceed those standards for its purpose. 
 
Staff Findings  
The applicant proposes access from Pidcock Road for each lot.   
Bannock County Subdivision Ordinance states lots in a subdivision of four or more lots 
shall access from an interior subdivision road.  
As an open space designed subdivision is required, Bannock County Subdivision 
Ordinance §401.F: Open space designed subdivision applicants may apply for design 
deviations for sections 402, 403, and 404. 
Subdivision Ordinance §402.B.7: Driveways serving more than two residences, or other 
non-agricultural buildings, without regard to length, must be built to the standards in 
402.A.  
 

3. The proposed partitioning of land does not prohibit the extension of dedicated 
streets or roads. 
 
Staff Findings 
There does not appear to be any dedicated streets or roads that could be extended.  
Pidcock Road is the only dedicated road at this time.  No other roads have been 
proposed that would intersect with these parcels.  

 

 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 114 of 254



STAFF REPORT 
CONCEPT PLAN – Tom’s Hollow Subdivision 

Page 8 of 9 
 

4. The proposed partitioning will not conflict with legally established easements or 
access within or adjacent to the proposed land partition.  
 
Staff Findings 
Using Bannock County GIS maps and Coyote Hollow Subdivision plat, there is a 15’ 
public utility easement along Pidcock Road, outside of the right-of-way.  There is a 
90’x45’ easement for fire truck turn-a-round and 20,000 gallon underground fire 
suppression water tank on propose3d lot 3A.  There is a 5’ public utility easement along 
all lot lines.  If 5’ utility easement is being adjusted with the lot line, the process per 
Idaho Code 50-1306A must be followed. Proposed Lot 4A appears to have a section 
easement that may be wider than 15’.  This measurement should be depicted on the 
plat. The developer should research to find all existing easements and depict them on 
the plat, according to Bannock County Subdivision Ordinance §302.A.2.b. 
 

5. The blocks of lots are located and laid out to properly relate to adjoining or nearby 
lot or parcel lines, utilities, streets, or other existing or planned facilities.   
 
Staff Findings 
Lot 4A is an existing developed lot.   Lot 3 was platted for residential development.   
The west lot line is being adjusted to increase the lot size of proposed lot 4A.  The lots 
are proposed to be placed within close proximity to existing roads, other subdivisions, 
and utilities.  The lots to the east and west vary in size, with residential structures 
present.  The property to the north is bare ground. The property to the south has been 
proposed for a residential platted subdivision.   Lots appear to be laid out in a manner 
that properly relate to the adjoining lots, parcel lines, utilities, streets, or other existing 
or planning facilities. 
 

6. The proposed property is physically suitable for the type and proposed density of 
development and conforms to existing zone standards. 
 
Staff Findings 
Proposed lot 4A is currently used for residential with a well. Lot 3 was created for 
residential uses and is currently bare ground.   The original division of Coyote Hollow 
Subdivision could have allowed a density of 40 lots.   
Applicant has proposed lots to be approximately 4.05 acres and 6.10 acres.  The 
minimum density in the Residential Rural Zoning district is one dwelling to 2.5 acres.  
Per Bannock County Zoning Ordinance §323, detached single-family dwellings, 
accessory uses which are customarily incidental to residential uses, livestock on one 
acre or more, and noncommercial recreational facilities are permitted uses in the 
district.  
The land is sloped with flat areas to build. The open space has been proposed to be 
placed over the steep slopes.  
 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 115 of 254



STAFF REPORT 
CONCEPT PLAN – Tom’s Hollow Subdivision 

Page 9 of 9 
 

AGENCY COMMENTS: 

1. None received at the time of this report. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS: 

1. None received at the time of this report. 
 

 

REPORT BY:     REPORTED DATE: October 9, 2025 

Alisse Foster, Subdivision Planner                     *Staff comments in this report are based solely upon 

alissef@bannockcounty.gov                  evidence available at the time of the report.  

                     Additional information may be brought to light at or 

                     before the hearing. 

EXHIBITS:  

1. Application and Concept Plan 
2. Predevelopment Review Comments 
3. Agency/Public Comments (if any) 
4. Referenced Ordinance and Plans-on file 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 116 of 254

mailto:alissef@bannockcounty.gov


EXHIBIT 1 

Application & Site Plan 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 117 of 254



Bannock County, ID October 8, 2025

SCP-25-3
Subdivision Concept
Plan Application
Status: Active
Submitted On: 9/2/2025

Primary Location

0 NO STREET
, 00000

Owner

THOMAS NELSON
HOMES LLC
PO BOX 2373
POCATELLO, ID
832060000

Applicant

Stewart Ward
208-237-7373
stewart@dioptrageomatics.com
4880 Clover Dell Rd

Pocatello, ID 83202

Owner/Developer Information

Are the Owner and Developer the same?

Owner Name*

THOMAS NELSON HOMES LLC

Street Address*

PO Box 2373

City*

Pocatello

State*

ID

Zip Code*

83206

Email Address*

tomn@tnhhomes.com

Phone Number*

208-406-3701

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 118 of 254

alissef
Text Box



alissef
Text Box

alissef
Text Box

alissef
Text Box

alissef
Text Box

alissef
Text Box

alissef
Text Box



Site Information

Proposed Subdivision Name*

Tom's Hollow

Parcel Number(s)*

RPRRCHS000400 and
RPRRCHS000300

Number of Lots *

2

Quarter

Section Township

Range

Subdivision Information

Current zoning*

Residential Rural

Proposed uses of the property*

Residential

Description of improvements proposed to be made or
installed, and the time such improvements are
proposed to be made or completed.*

Each lot will be residential construction.
Lot 4A will begin construction of a new
home in Fall 2025.

Proposed and/or existing deed restrictions, if any,
including easements and rights-of-way.*

Coyote Hollow Subdivision included a 5'
public utility easement along all lot lines,
this easement will remain in place along
the original lot line. The Public Utility and
Slope easement along Pidcock Rd will
remain, along with the fire suppression
easement in Lot 3A

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 119 of 254



Statement describing proposed water supply, sewage
disposal, and drainage.*

All lots are proposing individual wells and
septic systems. Lot 4A contains a natural
drainage on the westerly side of the lot.

Proposed utilities and location/placement of utilities.*

All lots have power, gas and other public
utilities that were installed during
construction of Coyote Hollow
Subdivision.

Proposed fire suppression and prevention measures.*

Fire suppression will be provided by the
underground fire suppression tank located
on Lot 3A and installed during the Coyote
Hollow Subdivision construction.

Proposed road name(s)*

Pidcock Rd is a platted county maintained
road

Will this be an Open Space designed subdivision?*

Yes

Will you be requesting any design deviations?*

No

Will this be a phased subdivision?*

No

Comments from Reviewing Agencies*

no comments from reviewing agencies

Subdivision Pre-development Meeting

Pre-development Meeting Date

08/19/2025

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 120 of 254



Comments from Pre-development Meeting

No comments

Engineer/Planner/Surveyor Information

Engineer/Planner/Surveyor Name

Dioptra LLC - Stewart Ward

Email

stewart@dioptrallc.com

Phone Number

208-237-7373

Acknowledgement

I hereby acknowledge that I have read this
application and state that the information on this
application is correct to the best of my knowledge. *

Electronic Signature [Typed Name of Applicant]*

Stewart Ward

Date of Signature*

09/02/2025

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 121 of 254

alissef
Text Box





Lot 4A

Lo
t 

2 Lot 3A

Lot 5

Lot 11
Lot 13Lot 14 Lot 12

BLOCK 1

BLOCK 1

Coyote Hollow Subdivision
Instr. #21903300

E. Pidcock Road

C
oy

ot
e 

H
ol

lo
w

 S
ub

di
vi

si
on

In
st

r. 
#2

19
03

30
0

C
oyote H

ollow
 Subdivision

Instr. #21903300

T
am

ar
ac

k
W

ay

LINE TABLE

CURVE TABLE

4880 Clover Dell Rd.
Chubbuck, ID 83202

Ph.208-237-7373
www.dioptrageomatics.com

Tom's Hollow

TOM'S HOLLOW SUBDIVISION

LEGEND

SURVEYORS CERTIFICATE

COUNTY RECORDERS CERTIFICATE

BASIS OF BEARING
SUBDIVISION CONCEPT PLAN

Project Location

E Green Canyon Rd

N Old Hwy 91

N Inkom Rd E Pidcock Rd

I-15

UPRR

VICINITY MAP

SURVEY NARRATIVE

9-2-25

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 122 of 254

AutoCAD SHX Text
Open Space ±1.91 Acres

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 89°59'55" E  1126.15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
Fire Suppression Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 89°19'12" W  1288.22'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 79°30'18" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 88°52'55" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 69°30'55" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 87°43'29" W  232.26'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 81°19'03" E  195.82'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 90°00'00" E  596.47'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text
C2

AutoCAD SHX Text
C5

AutoCAD SHX Text
C7

AutoCAD SHX Text
C8

AutoCAD SHX Text
C10

AutoCAD SHX Text
L1

AutoCAD SHX Text
L2

AutoCAD SHX Text
L3

AutoCAD SHX Text
L4

AutoCAD SHX Text
L5

AutoCAD SHX Text
L6

AutoCAD SHX Text
L9

AutoCAD SHX Text
L11

AutoCAD SHX Text
L14

AutoCAD SHX Text
L15

AutoCAD SHX Text
L16

AutoCAD SHX Text
L13

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 00°20'29" W  392.37'

AutoCAD SHX Text
166.23'

AutoCAD SHX Text
112.14'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L17

AutoCAD SHX Text
L18

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CHS-S 89°19'12" W  1288.22')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CHS-S 89°59'55" E  1126.15')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CHS-N 00°20'29" W  392.37')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CHS-N 87°43'29" W  232.26')

AutoCAD SHX Text
New Lot Line

AutoCAD SHX Text
25'

AutoCAD SHX Text
25'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' Public Utility Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 89°51'18" E  587.60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L19

AutoCAD SHX Text
L21

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CHS-S 89°19'12" W 102.83')

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 00°00'00" W  348.79'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CHS-N 00°00'00" W  348.79')

AutoCAD SHX Text
L12

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 81°15'44" W 

AutoCAD SHX Text
169.15')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CHS-S 81°15'44" W 

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 89°17'20" W  239.88'

AutoCAD SHX Text
Public Utility Easement and Slope Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CHS-N 69°30'55" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
112.14')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CHS-S 79°30'18" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
166.23')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CHS-S 88°52'55" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
176.72')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CHS-S 81°19'03" E  195.82')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CHS-N 90°00'00" E  596.47')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CHS-N 89°59'55" W  869.46')

AutoCAD SHX Text
132.48'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CHS-135.85')

AutoCAD SHX Text
L22

AutoCAD SHX Text
L24

AutoCAD SHX Text
L23

AutoCAD SHX Text
102.83'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 89°19'12" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CHS-S 89°51'18" E  587.60')

AutoCAD SHX Text
214.83'

AutoCAD SHX Text
79.03'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 89°17'20" W  180.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 00°00'00" W  227.53'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 52°02'37" E  268.04'

AutoCAD SHX Text
313.34'

AutoCAD SHX Text
133.97'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CHS-N 89°17'20" W  239.88')

AutoCAD SHX Text
79.47'

AutoCAD SHX Text
152.79'

AutoCAD SHX Text
176.72'

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.05 Acres

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.10 Acres

AutoCAD SHX Text
169.15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 00°00'00" W  371.41'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CHS-N 00°00'00" W  371.40')

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 10°18'25" W  274.20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
57.34'

AutoCAD SHX Text
216.86'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 89°59'55" W  869.46'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C4

AutoCAD SHX Text
L8

AutoCAD SHX Text
C6

AutoCAD SHX Text
L10

AutoCAD SHX Text
C9

AutoCAD SHX Text
135.85'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
Power Stub

AutoCAD SHX Text
548.80'

AutoCAD SHX Text
52.34'

AutoCAD SHX Text
Open Space ±2.34 Acres

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 42°03'53" W  325.24'

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing Well

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' Private Utility Easement To Remain

AutoCAD SHX Text
Edge of Gravel

AutoCAD SHX Text
C3

AutoCAD SHX Text
L7

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CHS-)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 00°04'50" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
29.97'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CHS-)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 90°00'00" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
90.06'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CHS-)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 00°00'00" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
29.97'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CHS-)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 77°55'48" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
97.61'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CHS-)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 77°55'48" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
94.94'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CHS-)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 77°55'48" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
92.27'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CHS-)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 63°54'57" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
50.35'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CHS-)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 63°01'24" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
113.88'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CHS-)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 63°01'24" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
113.88'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CHS-)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 36°22'02" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
51.62'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CHS-)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 36°22'02" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
51.62'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CHS-)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 32°59'35" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.91'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CHS-)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 81°15'44" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.68'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CHS-)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 62°29'12" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
31.81'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CHS-)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 16°39'29" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CHS-)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 01°02'25" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
48.80'

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEARING

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISTANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
L1

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 00°04'50" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
29.97'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L2

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 90°00'00" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
90.06'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L3

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 00°00'00" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
29.97'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L4

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 77°55'48" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
97.61'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L5

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 77°55'48" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
94.94'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L6

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 77°55'48" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
92.27'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L7

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 63°54'57" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
50.35'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L8

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 63°01'24" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
113.88'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L9

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 63°01'24" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
113.88'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L10

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 36°22'02" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
51.62'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L11

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 36°22'02" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
51.62'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L12

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 32°59'35" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.91'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L13

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 81°15'44" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.68'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L14

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 62°29'12" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
31.81'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L15

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 16°39'29" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L16

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 01°02'25" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
48.80'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L18

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 78°26'33" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
103.82'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L19

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 34°23'11" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
258.55'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L20

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 00°00'00" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
142.47'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L21

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 90°00'00" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
50.23'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L17

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 74°12'47" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
122.17'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CHS-)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 74°12'47" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
122.17'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CHS-)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 78°26'33" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
103.82'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L22

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 08°33'53" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.31'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L23

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 08°33'53" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.42'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L24

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 08°33'53" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.54'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(R1-)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 08°33'53" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.42'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CHS-)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 34°23'12" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
258.54'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CHS-)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 90°00'00" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
50.23'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(R1-)

AutoCAD SHX Text
50.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
60.53'

AutoCAD SHX Text
56.90'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 43°14'51" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
69°21'44"

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CHS-)

AutoCAD SHX Text
225.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
105.92'

AutoCAD SHX Text
104.94'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 76°30'34" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
26°58'20"

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CHS-)

AutoCAD SHX Text
200.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
94.15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
93.28'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 76°30'34" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
26°58'20"

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CHS-)

AutoCAD SHX Text
50.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
70.35'

AutoCAD SHX Text
64.69'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 76°40'19" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
80°36'34"

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CHS-)

AutoCAD SHX Text
75.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
105.52'

AutoCAD SHX Text
97.03'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 76°40'19" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
80°36'34"

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CHS-)

AutoCAD SHX Text
115.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
184.81'

AutoCAD SHX Text
165.56'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 82°24'21" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
92°04'40"

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CHS-)

AutoCAD SHX Text
100.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
103.76'

AutoCAD SHX Text
99.17'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 66°05'30" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
59°26'56"

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CHS-)

AutoCAD SHX Text
75.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
120.53'

AutoCAD SHX Text
107.97'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 82°24'21" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
92°04'40"

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RADIUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARC LENGTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHORD LENGTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHORD BEARING

AutoCAD SHX Text
DELTA ANGLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text
62.50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
75.66'

AutoCAD SHX Text
71.13'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 43°14'45" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
69°21'44"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C2

AutoCAD SHX Text
50.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
60.53'

AutoCAD SHX Text
56.90'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 43°14'45" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
69°21'44"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C3

AutoCAD SHX Text
37.50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
45.40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
42.68'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 43°14'45" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
69°21'44"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C4

AutoCAD SHX Text
225.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
105.92'

AutoCAD SHX Text
104.94'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 76°30'34" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
26°58'20"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C5

AutoCAD SHX Text
200.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
94.15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
93.28'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 76°30'34" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
26°58'20"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C6

AutoCAD SHX Text
50.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
70.35'

AutoCAD SHX Text
64.69'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 76°40'19" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
80°36'34"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C7

AutoCAD SHX Text
75.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
105.52'

AutoCAD SHX Text
97.03'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 76°40'19" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
80°36'34"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C8

AutoCAD SHX Text
115.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
184.81'

AutoCAD SHX Text
165.56'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 82°24'21" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
92°04'40"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C9

AutoCAD SHX Text
100.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
103.76'

AutoCAD SHX Text
99.17'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 66°05'30" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
59°26'56"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C10

AutoCAD SHX Text
75.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
120.53'

AutoCAD SHX Text
107.97'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 82°24'21" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
92°04'40"

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
26

AutoCAD SHX Text
E 1/4 Corner Sec. 26 Found Bannock County Brass Cap next to Stone as per CP&F #896328

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 89°19'12" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
1249.51'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CHS-N 89°19'12" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
1249.51')

AutoCAD SHX Text
26

AutoCAD SHX Text
C 1/4 Sec. 26 Found 2" Pipe as per CP&F #577841

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sheet:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Project:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Scale:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drawn By:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text
25054

AutoCAD SHX Text
JRR/JLO

AutoCAD SHX Text
 08/27/2025

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
 1 OF 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
I, Stewart K. Ward, a Licensed Professional Land Surveyor in the State of Idaho do hereby certify that this plat is an accurate representation of this survey completed under my supervision.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(R1-)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CHS-)

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
200

AutoCAD SHX Text
A REPLAT OF LOTS 3 & 4 BLOCK 1 OF COYOTE HOLLOW SUBDIVISION INSTR. #21903300 LOCATED IN SE 1/4 SECTION 26, TOWNSHIP 7 SOUTH, RANGE 36 EAST, OF THE BOISE MERIDIAN, IN THE COUNTY OF BANNOCK.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Record Bearing and Distance per Coyote Hollow Subdivision  Plat Instr. #21903300

AutoCAD SHX Text
Record Bearing and Distance per ROS Instr. #22311923

AutoCAD SHX Text
Subdivision Boundary

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lot Lines

AutoCAD SHX Text
Fence Lines

AutoCAD SHX Text
Adjoining Parcels

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing Easements

AutoCAD SHX Text
Road Centerline

AutoCAD SHX Text
Section Line

AutoCAD SHX Text
Basis of bearing per Idaho State Plane Coordinate System - East Zone.  GPS observation combination factor: 1.0002930163. Origin:Lat: N 42°46'45.82000"      Long: W 112°12'20.67000"      Height: 5040.293' All distances are US Survey Feet.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Original Lot Lines

AutoCAD SHX Text
Proposed Easements

AutoCAD SHX Text
Set 1/2" Rebar with Plastic Cap PLS 15295

AutoCAD SHX Text
Found 1/2" rebar with Plastic Cap PLS 15295 removed and replaced w/ 5/8" Rebar with Aluminum Cap PLS 15295

AutoCAD SHX Text
Found 1/2" Rebar with Plastic Cap PLS 15295 or as noted

AutoCAD SHX Text
Found 5/8" Rebar with Plastic Cap PLS 15295 or as noted

AutoCAD SHX Text
Found 1/2" rebar with Plastic Cap PLS 13023 or per record of survey

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.) The purpose of this survey is to adjust the lot line between Lot 3 and Lot 4, Block 1 of Coyote Hollow Subdivision Instr. #21903300. 2.) The boundary of the existing lots was determined by found monuments at all corners and points of curvature as shown on Coyote Hollow Subdivision Instr. #21903300.   3.) Lot lines as established per Coyote Hollow Subdivision Instr. #21903300 are subject to a 5-foot public utility easement. 4.) All driveways servicing 2 or more structures shall be built to county standards.  5.) No changes to existing Open Space are proposed. Open Space was defined on Coyote Hollow Subdivision Instr. #21903300 and Instr. #22509794. Open Space is within individual lots as separate lots and is deed restricted from further development per Bannock County Subdivision Ordinance 1997-4, 401.C3.b. 6.) All stormwater generated on individual lots shall be retained per Bannock County Zoning Ordinance 1998-1, 495 and Bannock County Subdivision Ordinance 1997-4, 410.  7.) Driveways shall be built to meet standards of Bannock County Zoning Ordinance 1998-1, 475.13 and Bannock County Subdivision Ordinance 1997-4, 402.B. 8.) Development on individual lots is restricted by Bannock County Subdivision Ordinance 1997-4 Section 405 and Section 409. 9.) Open Space shall not be used for open storage or collection of refuse, junk, and garbage.  10.) Private Access Easement per Instr. #22311923 shall be vacated upon the recording of this plat. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing Well

AutoCAD SHX Text
Fire Department Connection

AutoCAD SHX Text
Communication Box

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
Transformer

AutoCAD SHX Text
Gas Line

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
Gas Stub

AutoCAD SHX Text
Underground Powerline

AutoCAD SHX Text
15295

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
K

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D



EXHIBIT 2 

Pre-Development Documents 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 123 of 254



Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 124 of 254



Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 125 of 254



Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 126 of 254



Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 127 of 254



Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 128 of 254



Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 129 of 254



���������	
��

���
���
��
���
��
�
��������
������������

�� ���!���"�#$$%
&'�$'(
)"�#$$%*&'�$'(+�,-*./,#�*0�123���4#�
567869:9;
8:<:7
=>?� ",�'
@�A.$B�$
)C,�'+/.�D�(,0'�E,�.FB*F�E2GH
IHJJKLM
NOHJ
PLQHJ
RS
TUVWX
YZ[\
]̂_̀ab̂a
cdZ[\ef̀̂ ghiZj\̂kZlmbnm̂kopqrsX
tuvibfZwx
Yvyw
z{x
|}|~
{}�}}
���VX
�àhZ
�wkZb
cZàhZe_Zaâm[m̂vahwnvbo�
Y\i\kw
�\bb̀m[
cd\i\kwke_Zaâm[m̂vahwnvbo�
�̀\y
�vik\bh\ic[̀\y_e_Zaâm[m̂vahwnvbo�
�Z�̀f
�̂yỳaj\i
cfZ�̀fn_̂yỳaj\ie_̀Znĵ�o�
�Zaaw
�ỳy\i
cf[k̀yy\ie_yknĵ�o��\yỳbZ
�Zii\a
ckf�Zii\ae_yknĵ�o�
�ZaaZu
�Zaj\i
cubZaj\ieĝmZh\yŷnvbo�
�\a
�\yy\ic[[\yy\ieguf�ǹfZûnĵ�o�
�fZk
�̀yy
cZùyyeb_hì_\bnm̂ko�
�Ziw
�̀yykZa
cj_̀yykZaef̀yǹfZûnĵ�o�
�fZû�\gZihk\ah
̂�
�Zafb
c����dvìbf̀ml̂aZyef̀yǹfZûnĵ�o�
�Zh
�î�a
cg_î�aef̀yǹfZûnĵ�o�
�Zhw
�\ijûykc�Zhwn�\ijûykef\�ǹfZûnĵ�o�
�Zîywa
�\̀y\i
c�Zîywan�\̀y\ief\�ǹfZûnĵ�o�
�yyZa
Ŷuab̂ac�yyZanŶuab̂aef\�ǹfZûnĵ�o�
Ŷuab̂ax�\m[w
c_\m[wnd̂uab̂aef̀�jǹfZûnĵ�o�
�\�Zŷx
YZk\bcYZk\bn�\�Zŷef̀�iǹfZûnĵ�o�
�Ziw
�\m[
cjg\m[ef̀Zûĝ�\inm̂ko�
�ŷ
�ùjùaZc�ŷn�ùjùaZeh̀fǹfZûnĵ�o�
�̂i\w
�iZah�
c�̂i\wn�iZah�eh̀fǹfZûnĵ�o�
YZk\b
�viguwcdZk\bnkviguweàhjZbnm̂ko�
�ùyỳg
�̂y_̂ia
cgùyỳgnm̂y_̂iaeàhjZbnm̂ko�
�Zỳ
Ŷuab̂acĝiha\v�b�mfejkZ̀ynm̂ko�
]wZa
�̂ [̂
ciwZanm̂ [̂eîm[wk̂ vahZ̀aĝ�\ina\ho�
]vbb\yy
�uìbhc]vbb\yyn�uìbhebgZi[ỳjuhn_̀�o�
�̀k
�_\y\
c[̀kn̂_\y\evbfZnĵ�o�
YZk\b
Ŷwa\icdZk\bnknd̂wa\ievbZm\nZikwnk̀yo�
�Zh\
�ZhyZm[
caZh\nkZhyZm[evbfZnĵ�o�
�m̀uZ\y
]̀\b[\ck̀muZ\ynì\b[\e�̀yỳZkbnm̂ko�
�i\afZ
�ZibuZyy
c_i\afZnkZibuZyye�̀yỳZkbnm̂ko�
�\iZyf
�ikbhîajcki��|eẐynm̂ko�
]̂a
Ŷyy\w
ci�_d̂yy\wewZû n̂m̂ko�
�uìb
�̂i\ab\a
cf̂�a\w�i\mù\�ejkZ̀ynm̂ko�
Ŷuaaw�\ha\i
cŶuaawn�\ha\iehZ�ǹfZûnĵ�o�
� î̀
�ẁajĥa
ck̂ ìe_Zaâm[gyZaàajn̂ijo�
tZiZ
�̂ŷk̂ ac̀a[̂km̀hŵ�m\bemZ_y\̂a\na\ho�
�Zŵi
�uZ�\i
ckZ�fbuZ�\ieûhkZ̀ynm̂ko�
�a[̂k
�Zaf
�b\
�̂Zifc̀a[̂kyZfZkbemZ_y\̂a\na\ho�
�Ziw
tvm[\i
cjhvm[\iek�bf|{n̂ijo� X
�h\�Zih
�Zif
cbh\�Zihef̀̂ ghiZj\̂kZlmbnm̂kop¡¢£q sX
]\�
�Zaâm[
�̂vahw
ŷh
ỳa\
Zfdvbhk\ah¤bv_f̀�̀b̀̂a
i\gyZh
¥¦§̈ ©ª«¬
­®̄°
±²³̄́
µ¶̄·̄ ³̧¹±º
µ»¹°̄º±
¹®±
¼¹³¹±
µ½
¾º³®µ
̧±¹¿µ¶ÀÁ
Â±¶̄½Ã
̧́̄ À°
³̧º
³¹¹³Ä®²±̧¹°
ÅÆÇÈÉÆÃµ»
Ä́̄ÄÀ
µ¶
µÊ±̧Ë
±Ì±̧
̄½
Ãµ»
¶±Äµ·̧ Í̄±
³̧ºÎµ¶
¹¶»°¹
¹®±
°±̧º±¶Á
Ïµ̧¹³Ä¹
Ãµ»¶
³·±̧ÄÃ
°±¶Ì̄Ä±
º±°À
¿̄¹®³̧Ã
Äµ̧Ä±¶̧°Á
ÐÑÒÓ
ÒÔÑÕÖ×
ÖØÕÙÒÖÙÚÛ
ÜÝÑÒÚÑ
ÚÑÑ
ÙÞÑ
ÓÑßàÑÚÙ
áØÓ
âÕãàÙ
äÑÝØåæ
çÚ
ÓÑßàâÓÑè
ä×
éÒÕÕØÖê
ëØàÕÙ×Û
ÙÞâÚ
âÚ
ÙÞÑ
ìÕè
ÓÑßàÑÚÙæ
íá
×Øà
ÞÒîÑ
ãÓÑîâØàÚÝ×
ÖØïïÑÕÙÑèÛ
ãÝÑÒÚÑ
èâÚÓÑÔÒÓè
ÙÞâÚ
ÓÑßàÑÚÙæ
ðñòóôõ



ö÷øù÷ú��
ù��ø�
�� ��	

�
��QK

H�	L�HL
�
��M
HHQ

�MM���÷÷H�M
HHQ�HNN	IK�IHJ÷J�	
÷	L�H�÷	�÷���Q���JG�

��
	��I����MG��Q� ��!�"���
�GSIøG�IúGS�ø�"����ù��	�#ú$��RP�%#ú$N"���&%' ù÷%Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 130 of 254



����������	
�	���
������������������������������������� !! �"#�$�������%%%&'()*+,-./)0-+(12&1)03456�7 ���8
59������7�455
59���3456�:�455
59���;��
4��<4==
59�>�
?���@@ 5
�4A
�5�B
5�� 6
59�4AA4��@�5A?C���5A4
5?�=�
�4A�#���5�
6�5A
4�#�=�
�
��9�6�456D���=��=�
�A4�8�
5���@4A
�5�
5A�56�6?����8�����A���E��
=
�5AB?C�54@�6�4!���F��$��8� �4���5�A�A���
5A�56�6�E��
=
�5A#�458� ?��6
??�@
54A
�5#�6
?A�
! A
�5������=8
59���A�����@@ 5
�4A
�5�
?�?A�
�A�8�=���
!
A�6F��$������
��6�
5������#�G��4=���9
H��456�4?"�A�4A�8� �=��4?��5�A
�8�A���?�56���!8�4��
59������������������
4���A �5���@4
�#�=��@45�5A�8�6���A��A�
?���@@ 5
�4A
�5����@�8� ����@= A���456�6�?A��8�458�=�
5A�6��=
�?F�IJKLM�NOPQ�RSTUVWSVXYZ[M�\]QŴO_̀�N]a_�bb̀�bcbd�eefeg�hijKM�hVUkO�l_mOW�nopqrostoppuvwvuxpryzx{|}�NQ~Qm_�iQWWU�P�n�����y�stoppuvwvuxpryzx{|}��UQa��]~mQWkQ~nwq��tstoppuvwvuxpryzx{|}��O�Û��SaaUV�Q~�n�o�q�ztu��qp���stqoz�u�|}��OVV_�iUaaQ~�n�w�q����st��z�u�|}iQaaUWO��O~~QV�n���o���pst��z�u�|}�lOVVO���OV�Q~�n�{op���s�uvor���uzx{|}��QV��QaaQ~nww�����s����zq�o�uz�u�|}�ĥOm�lUaa�no�q��s{tr�qt�{zvu�|}��O~_��UaamOV�n�tq���ops���zq�o�uz�u�|}��̂O�S�Q�O~kmQVk�S���OV̂W�n�����x�q{�qv�upo�sq��zq�o�uz�u�|}��Ok��~S�V�n�t�u�psq��zq�o�uz�u�|}��Ok_��Q~��Samn oryz¡����u��s��¢zq�o�uz�u�|}�£O~Sa_V��QUaQ~�n¤o�u�ypz¥�q���s��¢zq�o�uz�u�|}�haaOV�NS�VWSVno��opz�u�p{ups��¢zq�o�uz�u�|}��Q�P_�NS�VSWV�nt�vwyz�u�p{upsq�¦�zq�o�uz�u�|}�NOmQW�£O�OaSn�o��{zv�¦o�usq���zq�o�uz�u�|}��O~_��Q�P�n���vwsq�o�u�u���zvu�|}�§aS���U��UVOn̈�uz©�q��qposqr�zq�o�uz�u�|}�£S~Q_��~OVkª�n¤u��yz �opr«sqr�zq�o�uz�u�|}�NOmQW�i]~��_n�o��{z�x���ysqpr�o{zvu�|}���UaaU��£SaTS~V�n��q��q�zvu�tu�psqpr�o{zvu�|}�£OaU�NS�VWSVn�u�rp�x¦{�v�s��oq�zvu�|}�R_OV�£SSP�n�yopzvuuws�uvwy�uxproqp�u���zp�r|}�R]WWQaa�£�~UWkn¬x{{���z¤��q{rs{�o�w�q��rztq«|}��Um�­TQaQ�nwq�zut���sx{�oz�u�|}�NOmQW�NS_VQ~n�o��{z�z�uyp��sx{ov�zo��yz�q�|}�®OkQ�iOkaO�P�npor�z�or�ovwsx{�oz�u�|}�iU��OQa�RUQWPQn�qv�o��z�q�{w�s�q��qo�{zvu�|}��~QV̂O�iO~W�Oaa�nt��p�oz�o�{�o��s�q��qo�{zvu�|}��Q~Oâ�h~mWk~SV�n��̄�°sou�zvu�|}�RSV�NSaaQ_�n��t�u���ysyo�uuzvu�|}�£�~UW��S~QVWQV�n�u�p�y±��v�q�¦s��oq�zvu�|}�NS�VV_�Q~kVQ~�n�u�ppyzw�rp��sro²zq�o�uz�u�|}�iS~U��_UV�kSV�n�u�qstoppuvw��oppqp�zu��|}�\O~O��SaSmSVnqpwu�vqryu³v�{svot��up�zp�r|}�iO_S~���ÓQ~�n�o²�{�oµ��s�ur�oq�zvu�|}��VPSm��OV̂�¶WQ��SO~̂nqpwu��o�o�{svot��up�zp�r|}��O~_�\]�PQ~�n�rxvw��s��{�°·zu��|¹̧M��kQ�O~k��O~̂�n{r��o�rs�qu�r�o��u�o�v{zvu�|Xº»¼Y¹[M��OVVS�P�£S]Vk_�aSk�aUVQ�Ô½]WkmQVk¾W]T̂U�UWUSV�~Q�aOk�¿ÀÁÂ�ÁÃÀÄÅÆ�ÅÇÄÈÁÅÈÉÊ�ËÀ�ÁÂÀ�ÉÀÀÌÍÄÃ�ÆÇÎÂ�ÍÄÏÎÈ�ÇÄ�Á�ÏÂÇÏÇÉÀÐ�Á�ÑÇÈ�ÑÍÄÀ�ÁÐÒÎÉÈÓÀÄÈÔÕÖ×ØÙÚÙÕÙÛÜ�ÝÞßàáâ�ãÇÂ�ÈäÇ�ÏÁÂÅÀÑÉå�æÛâ�çáÜØ�æÛâ�è�éàÛêë�ì�Ûí�îÛïÛâÞ�ðÛààÛñ�òÖ×ØÙÚÙÕÙÛÜå�ÑÇÅÁÈÀÐ�óÖÕâ�ÞáÕâ�Ûí�ôÜëÛõå�ôö�áÜØ�ñÞÕâ�Ûí�÷Þ××àÞ�îÝÞÞëòëÙ�øÝÞáù��úûÀ�ÏÂÇÏÇÉÀÐ�ÁÐÒÎÉÈÓÀÄÈ�ÐÇÀÉ�ÄÇÈ�ÁÑÈÀÂ�ÈûÀ�ÎÉÀ�Çã�ÈûÀ�ÈäÇ�ÑÇÈÉ�×Öâ�ØÛÞÕ�áàâÞÝ�â�Þ�àÛâ�ÕÙ�ÞÕù�úûÀ�À�ÍÉÈÍÄÃ�ÑÇÈÉ�äÀÂÀ�ÅÂÀÁÈÀÐ��Æ��ÇÆÇÈÀ��ÇÑÑÇä��Î�ÐÍ�ÍÉÍÇÄ�	ÑÁÈ�
ÄÉÈÂù���
������ù��

�ÔçìÔ��å�ì��ç��ø� �áÙà����áëÞ��Û×ÙÜÕÛÜ����ÖâàÛÛë

�ââßÕ�ÔÔÛÖâàÛÛë�ÛííÙêÞ�êÛõÔõáÙàÔÙÜ×Û�ÔÙØÔøø�ëø� õ!ó�à�"�Ùæ#ê� "�â!�$ë ò��%�&�æ#àó!öêç!�ê�!ö�ç�&ø�øøì��Ù�'�é��(ôÖè'�éí&#��)è* �ÔèBannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 131 of 254



������������	
����	��	
����������������
���
������������������	�
�������������	���	������	���
��������	�����	����������
������������
��������	
���	��	���
��
�� !"#!�$%&'()!�"*+�,&--!*.#�%!/"%)(*/�.0(#�%!12!#.�3+�42!#)"+5�62 +�78.09�:;�+&2�0"'!�"*+�#$!,(;(,�12!#.(&*#5�$ !"#!� !.�-!�<*&=9��>?@ABC��� DEFGH�IGHJKLGKMNNOPQR�STUVSWXVXWXWYUUT�Z[\]Q̂�_Q[[�̀�ZabccbPde�f_�UWSTSggghijklmnopqkromjsthskruvwx�yb̂]QzOw{�̀�W_�yPvwwOw{�̀�uvwx�|[vwwOw{�̀�}Q̂Ov[�~v��Ow{��aO��P\��bwOPv�O\w��OwP[bxOw{�v��vPa�Qw����P\w�vOw���̂O]v�Qe�P\wNOxQw�Ov[e��̂O]O[Q{Qx�vwx�\̂��̂\�̂OQ�v̂z�OwN\̂�v�O\w�Ow�QwxQx�\[Q[z�N\̂��aQ��QPO�OQw�����wv�Qx�vc\]Q���fN�z\b�v̂Q�w\���aQ�Ow�QwxQx��QPO�OQw�e�vwz�b�Q�xO��Q�Owv�O\we�xO��̂Ocb�O\w�\̂�P\�zOw{\N��aQ�P\��bwOPv�O\w�O����̂OP�[z��̂\aOcO�Qx���fN�̂QPQO]Qx�Ow�Q̂̂\̂e��Q�v�\[\{O�Q�vwx�v�d��av��z\b��[Qv�Q�w\�ONz��aQ��QwxQ̂�cz

����������������� �	�
����	�����������������
���

�����������
����������������	�
��������
������������
� �����¡� ����¢��£��¤¡�¡��
��¥���¡���¥�������������¦�§��̈©��¦�§�����ª�« ���Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 132 of 254



���������	
���
�
�
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� �!"#� $%�&�'( ()*+�,�-)./�012*3413�,�567+11.

87794%��167+11.:1;;*</:<1=�=)*+�*321>�*?�''@.'AB=CD0+5E0*FG<HBE(7CAI.BJ$"KHLHFG+DCM<�CH<!CM(�(L'@'' $>*(N!O&&PQ6RN!O;LG8>SRT R�RBannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 133 of 254



���������	
��

���
���
��
���
��
�
��������
������������

�� ���!���"��
#$%&$%'(
)"��*#$%&$%'(+%�,*%,($�*&�-./���0$�
123425657
8943
:;<� =(�>
?�@%'A�'
)B(�>+,%�C�D(&>�E(�%FA*F�E.GHI
JKLHM
NOP
MQ
RISMTLUVOWX
HLX
TM
WMYYITVXZ

GHLT[
\MU
LTK
HLPI
L
]SILV
KL\Z
̂_̀a
b_cdbèf
ghi
jklmklnopqrhls
tluviuwx
ynxvzswiu{|rxwuqswlinx
}~ohqowiu������������
��
��������������
�����������������
��������������� ¡¢¢£££¤¥�¦¤¥¦§�̈¤©̈ª¢§«¬̈­®̄°±²²³³³́µ¶·̧¹ºº»́·º¼²½¾¶­º¶̧¿ºÀ¶ÁÂ·°


ÃÄÅÆÇ
ÈdÉ_
ÊËÌÍÎ̀ËÎ
ÏÐdÉ_ÑeÍËÒabdc_ËÓdÔÕ̀ÖÕËÓ×ØÙÚÛÇ
ÜÝÞb̀edßf
ÈÞàß
áâf
ãäãå
âäæää
çèéÅÇ
çÎÍad
êßÓd̀
ÏdÎÍadÑÌdÎÎËÕÉÕËÞÎaßÖÞ̀×ë
È_b_Óß
è_̀ Í̀ÕÉ
ÏÐ_b_ÓßÓÑÌdÎÎËÕÉÕËÞÎaßÖÞ̀×ë
ìÍ_à
̂ÞbÓ_̀a_bÏÉÍ_àÌÑÌdÎÎËÕÉÕËÞÎaßÖÞ̀×ë
ídîÍe
̂ËààÍÎc_b
ÏedîÍeÖÌËààÍÎc_bÑÌÍdÖcËî×ë
ídÎÎß
èÍàà_b
ÏeÉÓÍàà_bÑÌàÓÖcËî×ëè_ààÍ̀d
ïdbb_Î
ÏÓeðdbb_ÎÑÌàÓÖcËî×ë
êdÎÎdÝ
ñdÎc_b
ÏÝ̀dÎc_bÑÒËÕda_ààËÖÞ̀×ë
ì_Î
ì_àà_bÏÉÉ_àà_bÑÒÝeòÖÍedÝËÖcËî×ë
çedÓ
êÍàà
ÏdÝÍààÑ Ì̀abÍÌ_̀ÖÕËÓ×ë
ódbß
̂ÍààÓdÎ
ÏcÌÍààÓdÎÑôíõÖÍedÝËÖcËî×ë
ôedÝËí_ÒdbaÓ_Îa
Ëö
õdÎè
Ïôíõ÷ÐÞbÍ̀eÍÕÔËÎdàÑÍeàÖÍedÝËÖcËî×ë
øda
̂bËðÎ
ÏÒÌbËðÎÑÍeàÖÍedÝËÖcËî×ë
ìdaß
̂_bcÝËàÓÏìdaßÖ̂_bcÝËàÓÑe_ùÖÍedÝËÖcËî×ë
údbËàßÎ
ï_Íà_b
ÏúdbËàßÎÖï_Íà_bÑe_ùÖÍedÝËÖcËî×ë
çààdÎ
ÈËÝÎ̀ËÎÏdààdÎÖÐËÝÎ̀ËÎÑe_ùÖÍedÝËÖcËî×ë
̂_ÕÉß
ÈËÝÎË̀Î
ÏÌ_ÕÉßÖÐËÝÎ̀ËÎÑÍeöcÖÍedÝËÖcËî×ë
ÈdÓ_̀
údödàËÏÐdÓ_̀ÖÕ_ödàËÑÍeðbÖÍedÝËÖcËî×ë
ódbß
ø_ÕÉ
ÏcÒ_ÕÉÑÍedÝËÒËð_bÖÕËÓ×ë
ûàË
óÝÍcÝÍÎdÏûàËÖóÝÍcÝÍÎdÑÍaeÖÍedÝËÖcËî×ë
úËb_ß
ìbdÎa�
ÏúËb_ßÖìbdÎa�ÑÍaeÖÍedÝËÖcËî×ë
ÈdÓ_̀
èÞbÒÝßÏÐdÓ_̀ÖÓÞbÒÝßÑÍÎacd̀ÖÕËÓ×ë
øÝÍààÍÒ
úËàÌËbÎ
ÏÒÝÍààÍÒÖÕËàÌËbÎÑÍÎacd̀ÖÕËÓ×ë
údàÍ
ÈËÝÎ̀ËÎÏÒËbaÎ_Þö̀ðÕeÑcÓdÍàÖÕËÓ×ë
ÊßdÎ
úËËÉ
ÏbßdÎÖÕËËÉÑbËÕÉßÓËÞÎadÍÎÒËð_bÖÎ_a×ë
ÊÞ̀ _̀àà
úÝbÍ̀aÏÊÞ̀ _̀ààÖúÝbÍ̀aÑ Ò̀dbÉàÍcÝaÖÌÍ�×ë
ìÍÓ
�Ì_à_
ÏÉÍÓÖËÌ_à_ÑÞ̀edÖcËî×ë
ÈdÓ_̀
ÈËßÎ_bÏÐdÓ_̀ÖÓÖÐËßÎ_bÑÞ̀dÕ_ÖdbÓßÖÓÍà×ë
�da_
èdaàdÕÉ
ÏÎda_ÖÓdaàdÕÉÑÞ̀edÖcËî×ë
èÍÕÝd_à
ÊÍ_̀É_ÏÓÍÕÝd_àÖbÍ_̀É_ÑðÍààÍdÓ̀ÖÕËÓ×ë
̂b_Îed
èdb̀Ýdàà
ÏÌb_ÎedÖÓdb̀ÝdààÑðÍààÍdÓ̀ÖÕËÓ×ë
í_bdàe
çbÓ̀abËÎcÏÓb�òãÑdËàÖÕËÓ×ë
ÊËÎ
ÈËàà_ß
ÏbðÌÐËàà_ßÑßdÝËËÖÕËÓ×ë
úÝbÍ̀
ñËb_Î̀_Î
ÏeËðÎ_ß�b_ÕÝÍ_öÑcÓdÍàÖÕËÓ×ë
ÈËÝÎÎßì_baÎ_b
ÏÐËÝÎÎßÖÉ_aÎ_bÑad�ÖÍedÝËÖcËî×ë
èËbÍ
̂ßÍÎcaËÎ
ÏèËbÍÑÌdÎÎËÕÉÒàdÎÎÍÎcÖËbc×ë
Üdbd
ñËàËÓËÎÏÍÎÉËÓÕÍaßË�Õ_̀ÑÕdÌà_ËÎ_ÖÎ_a×ë
èdßËb
ñÝd�_b
ÏÓd�èÝd�_bÑÝËaÓdÍàÖÕËÓ×ë
ôÎÉËÓ
õdÎe
	̀_
̂ËdbeÏÍÎÉËÓàdedÓ̀ÑÕdÌà_ËÎ_ÖÎ_a×ë
ódbß
ÜÞÕÉ_b
ÏcaÞÕÉ_bÑÓî̀eãâÖËbc×


���
��

�
�
�� �LO�
�
�L[I
�M�OTXMT
�
�UV�MM[

HVV�X���MUV�MM[ZMQQOWIZWMY�YLO��XITVOVIYX�OK�RR�[R��Y�������O GW!���V��"[�#$�%!]! G���NW&�!W
�N�&�]R�RR'$(O�)
*

+JU,)
*Q]GH- '�,Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 134 of 254



��������	
���	
��
����	
�������
	����	������������������� �!	""��#�$�%"�&�'���'�"��	�(%����"�)�%*��+����"�
��'	��,-./0123�4567�89:6;�<=6>6?:@8A�<B@76A8�@58�C@:@8�<D�EA:5<�?8@F<=GH�I8=6DJ�;6?G7�:?A�:@@:K598?@7�LMNOPMJ<B�K;6KG�<=�<Q8?R�8S8?�6D�J<B�=8K<>?6T8�:?AU<=�@=B7@�@58�78?A8=H�V<?@:K@�J<B=�:>8?KJ�78=S6K8�A87G�F6@5:?J�K<?K8=?7H�WXYZ�Y[X\]̂�]_\̀Y]̀ab�cdXYaX�aXX�̀eX�ZXfgXà�h_Z�i\jg̀�kXd_lm�na�ZXfgiZXo�k̂�pY\\_]q�r_g\̀̂ b�̀eia�ia�̀eX�s\o�ZXfgXàm�th�̂_g�eYuX�jZXui_gad̂�]_vvX\̀Xob�jdXYaX�oiaZX[YZo�̀eia�ZXfgXàm�wxyz{|��
�}~�����	#����*�"��"�������%���	&���%'&������������ ����������"��	��&�	��
���������������������������
��&�������#�
��������������������������� ��'�!%
�����

���¡���������������������¢	+���!�''�"��
�
£�¤�£���¡¡��¥�������¥�¤���¢	""&���''�
�
£���¡¡����¡��¥�¤����''��	��	

�"�
�£¦�������¡��¥�¤����	""	§��	"��
�
̈���¥���©�����¡¡������� �"� �''�

���¡¡���©̈£ª��£�̈��¥�¤�����	����''�
�̈�¡¡����������������«	
&�!�''�	"�
¥��¡¡����¬­®��£�̈��¥�¤���̄�	§�¢��	
���"���°�±	"���
¬­®²�����£��³���¡��£¡��£�̈��¥�¤���́	��!
��"�
©���¦���£¡��£�̈��¥�¤��� 	�&�!�
�§�'�
µ����¶��¥̈�¡��£�·��£�̈��¥�¤���$	
�'&"����'�
�
̧���¡���¹��¡���£�·��£�̈��¥�¤����''	"���§"��"
�¡¡�����̈�����£�·��£�̈��¥�¤���!��#&���§"��"�
��������̈������£º¥��£�̈��¥�¤����	����$	°	'�
��������º�¡���£¦���£�̈��¥�¤���«	
&�́��#�
¥©�����£�̈�©�¦���������»'��«§��§�"	
¼¡��½̈�¥̈������£��£�̈��¥�¤���$�
�&� 
	"�¾�
̧�����µ����¿���£��£�̈��¥�¤����	�����%
�§&
���������©̈�����¥���������́§�''���$�'*�
"�
©̈�¡¡�©���¡��������¥���������$	'����§"��"
©������º�¦�£�¥���¡��������&	"�$��#�
�����������������������©�¦����������%���''�$§
���
À����¡¡�̧̈ ������©���¡�¥̈����¿��� ���Á*�'��
�������¡����£��¥�¤����	������&"�

����������������������������¡���Â	����	�'	�#�
��������¡������£��¥�¤������§	�'�����#�
���̈��¡��������¦�¡¡�����������!
�"�	��	
�§	''�
����£������̈�¡¡�¦�¡¡�����������¢�
	'���
���
�"�
��ÃªÄ���¡���������"���''�&�
�¦���¡¡�����̈���������$§
�����
�"��"�
£�¦���Å���̈��º�¥���¡���������§""& �
�"�
�
��̈�������������Æ��£�̈��¥�¤�����
��!&�"���"�
������������©¡�����¥���¥����	
	���'���"
����������Ç�������¡������������	&�
��§	È�
�
��Æ£�̈�É��� �̈����¡�������̄"#���±	"��Ê���!�	
�
�����¡�£�������¡�����������«	
&��%�#�
�
¥��������¤�£ÄË���¥���������	
���	
��
���¦����£��©���¥����³����������������!	""��#�$�%"�&�'���'�"��	�(%����"�)�%*��+����"�
��'	��

ÌÍÎÍÏÎÐ�ÏÑÏÒ�ÓÔ ÔÕÖ×�Ø�ÙÕÚÛ�ÜÝÞÖßàÝß�Ø�áâã×ÝÝÚ

äããåàÑÍÍÝâã×ÝÝÚæÝççÖèÛæèÝéÍéÕÖ×ÍàÛßãÖãÛéàÍÖêÍëëìÚëíîéïðÜ×áñÜÖòóèôîñÔãïíõÚîö÷Îøôùôòó×ðïúèûïôèÏïúÔûÔùëìëëü÷�ÖÔ�Ï�ÌÌ��â��Ï�çùóä� ÏÍ�Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 135 of 254



����������	��
������
����������������	
���������
������
�
�������
������������������������������ !"#$%�&
���'
��������(�)�%�*$���)�%�+�,#�-.�/��0�1�2�%!�3�##�4�5����������(��
������6��%�!$�%��0�7�.�8(�79�$���4!�%��0�:!��#!�1 !!.5.��; !$<��=>����
�
����������������
����
���������>������
&��>���'
��
�����%���!��$#%! �%?!�#�%���@!�<�=>���A��������
���'������������B	�C
	
���D
��
'�E�B��F���
��G����H����<�IJKLMNNMM<��
��O?!�" �"��$#����$��$�6��%8!�%��0�%?!�#�%�#��!��!%4!!��)�%�*�$���)�%�+�%��- !$%!�$��!4�"$ -!#-��0�P� $%����$���?�4���!#�4Q�R" �"��!���� �!2�$#���$%%$-?!�S�
�G��������
F������	��
������������������>�����T�����B	�=�����	
�U��	�JL�><�H&�	
��>�F����	������&���T�����
��
�����������������
'<��VWXYZ[���

\�]�̂](�̂_̂̀ �:a a$�#�b�c$.!�d��������b�e�%#��.

?%%"�_����%#��.Q�00�-!Q-�8�8$�#��!�%�%!8�����;;f.;gh8i6d#ejd�)O-@hja%igk.h5l]m@P@)O#6i9-*i@-̂i9a*aP;f;;/ln�ao ,̂\\p7�+o ,̂0PO?q *�+Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 136 of 254



�
�������������	
 
��
����������������������
���

�����������
������������������
������������ �!!"�!#$�%&�
�'��()�*$'
�%#+�$,-�.*/*()
&%0�1%*��%0
1
/!"!!2-3�
4�5��67�84�5�/)�9 8�8Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 137 of 254



���������	
��

���
���
��
���
��
�
��������
������������

�� ���!���"#$%&#��'
($)*+#
,($)*+#-"#$%&#��./0��0#1%-2�134���5�)
67887898:
;8<=:
>"?� @#�)
A�B0*%�*
,C#�).+0�D�$#E)�1#�02%-2�13FG
HIJKL
MGNNGIOP
QRSTUVKPT
WGXKNGYK
UIP
YR
GPPZKP
VGTU
TUGP
NRT
NGYK
I[\ZPT

]̂ _̀ ab
cdefghij
klmn
opqrpspmtltuvpwuxxulys
z
{|rt}~pst
�uqpxump����
��
k|��st
�r|vp
o|ln�prunulm�
�nl}|
����������
��������
y|�uxp
�����
����
�� ¡¢£�¢
¤¥���¦§¡�̈©ª�«��¬�­®£̄®�¬°±²³́�
µ¶�£§�·̧
�¶¹·
ºº̧
º»º¼
½½¾½¿
ÀÁÂ��
À¢¡©�
Ã·¬�£
¤�¢¡©�¦ �¢¢�®�®�¶¢©·̄¶£°Ä
��ª�¬·
Á�££¡®�
¤¥�ª�¬·¬¦ �¢¢�®�®�¶¢©·̄¶£°Ä
Å¡�¹
Æ¶ª¬�£©�ª¤�¡�¹ ¦ �¢¢�®�®�¶¢©·̄¶£°Ä
Ç�È¡§
Æ�¹¹¡¢«�ª
¤§�È¡§̄ �¹¹¡¢«�ª¦ ¡�̄«�È°Ä
Ç�¢¢·
Á¡¹¹�ª
¤§�¬¡¹¹�ª¦ ¹¬̄«�È°ÄÁ�¹¹¡£�
É�ªª�¢
¤¬§Ê�ªª�¢¦ ¹¬̄«�È°Ä
Ã�¢¢�Ë
Ì�¢«�ª
¤Ë£�¢«�ª¦ �̈®�©�¹¹�̄¶£°Ä
Å�¢
Å�¹¹�ª¤���¹¹�ª¦ Ë̈§Í̄¡§�Ë�̄«�È°Ä
À§�¬
Ã¡¹¹
¤�Ë¡¹¹¦£ ©ª¡ �£̄®�¬°Ä
Î�ª·
Æ¡¹¹¬�¢
¤« ¡¹¹¬�¢¦ÏÇÐ̄¡§�Ë�̄«�È°Ä
Ï§�Ë�Ç�̈�ª©¬�¢©
�Ñ
Ð�¢§£
¤ÏÇÐÒ¥¶ª¡£§¡®­�¢�¹¦¡§¹̄¡§�Ë�̄«�È°Ä
Ó�©
Æª�Ê¢
¤̈ ª�Ê¢¦¡§¹̄¡§�Ë�̄«�È°Ä
Å�©·
Æ�ª«Ë�¹¬¤Å�©·̄Æ�ª«Ë�¹¬¦§�Ô̄¡§�Ë�̄«�È°Ä
Õ�ª�¹·¢
É�¡¹�ª
¤Õ�ª�¹·¢̄É�¡¹�ª¦§�Ô̄¡§�Ë�̄«�È°Ä
À¹¹�¢
��Ë¢£�¢¤�¹¹�¢̄¥�Ë¢£�¢¦§�Ô̄¡§�Ë�̄«�È°Ä
Æ�®�·
��Ë¢�£¢
¤ �®�·̄¥�Ë¢£�¢¦¡§Ñ«̄¡§�Ë�̄«�È°Ä
��¬�£
Õ�Ñ�¹�¤¥�¬�£̄®�Ñ�¹�¦¡§Êª̄¡§�Ë�̄«�È°Ä
Î�ª·
Ó�®�
¤«̈�®�¦¡§�Ë�̈�Ê�ª̄®�¬°Ä
Ö¹�
ÎË¡«Ë¡¢�¤Ö¹�̄ÎË¡«Ë¡¢�¦¡©§̄¡§�Ë�̄«�È°Ä
Õ�ª�·
Åª�¢©×
¤Õ�ª�·̄Åª�¢©×¦¡©§̄¡§�Ë�̄«�È°Ä
��¬�£
Á¶ª̈Ë·¤¥�¬�£̄¬¶ª̈Ë·¦¡¢©«�£̄®�¬°Ä
ÓË¡¹¹¡̈
Õ�¹ �ª¢
¤̈Ë¡¹¹¡̈̄®�¹ �ª¢¦¡¢©«�£̄®�¬°Ä
Õ�¹¡
��Ë¢£�¢¤̈�ª©¢�¶Ñ£Ê®§¦«¬�¡¹̄®�¬°Ä
�·�¢
Õ���
¤ª·�¢̄®���¦ª�®�·¬�¶¢©�¡¢̈�Ê�ª̄¢�©°Ä
�¶££�¹¹
ÕËª¡£©¤�¶££�¹¹̄ÕËª¡£©¦£̈�ª�¹¡«Ë©̄ ¡×°Ä
Å¡¬
Ø �¹�
¤�¡¬̄� �¹�¦¶£§�̄«�È°Ä
��¬�£
��·¢�ª¤¥�¬�£̄¬̄¥�·¢�ª¦¶£�®�̄�ª¬·̄¬¡¹°Ä
Ù�©�
Á�©¹�®�
¤¢�©�̄¬�©¹�®�¦¶£§�̄«�È°Ä
Á¡®Ë��¹
�¡�£��¤¬¡®Ë��¹̄ª¡�£��¦Ê¡¹¹¡�¬£̄®�¬°Ä
Á�ª£Ë�¹¹̧
Æª�¢§�
¤Æª�¢§�̄Á�ª£Ë�¹¹¦Ê¡¹¹¡�¬£̄®�¬°Ä
Ç�ª�¹§
Àª¬£©ª�¢«¤¬ªÚÍº¦��¹̄®�¬°Ä
��¢
��¹¹�·
¤ªÊ ¥�¹¹�·¦·�Ë��̄®�¬°Ä
ÕËª¡£
Ì�ª�¢£�¢
¤§�Ê¢�·Ûª�®Ë¡�Ñ¦«¬�¡¹̄®�¬°Ä
��Ë¢¢·Å�ª©¢�ª
¤¥�Ë¢¢·̄��©¢�ª¦©�Ǖ¡§�Ë�̄«�È°Ä
Á�ª¡
Æ·¡¢«©�¢
¤¬�ª¡¦ �¢¢�®�̈¹�¢¢¡¢«̄�ª«°Ä
µ�ª�
Ì�¹�¬�¢¤¡¢��¬®¡©·�Ý®�£¦®� ¹��¢�̄¢�©°Ä
Á�·�ª
ÌË�Þ�ª
¤¬�Ü§£Ë�Þ�ª¦Ë�©¬�¡¹̄®�¬°Ä
Ï¢��¬
Ð�¢§
ß£�
Æ��ª§¤¡¢��¬¹�§�¬£¦®� ¹��¢�̄¢�©°Ä
Î�ª·
µ¶®��ª
¤«©¶®��ª¦¬È£§º½̄�ª«°àá�
Ì©�Ê�ª©
É�ª§
¤£©�Ê�ª©¦§¡�̈©ª�«��¬�­®£̄®�¬°±âãä²á́�
åæçµæ�ÙÀÐè
Æ�¢¢�®�
Õ�¶¢©·
¹�©
¹¡¢�
�§¥¶£©¬�¢©é£¶ §¡È¡£¡�¢
ª�̈¹�©
êêêëìíîïðñò
óôîóõñìö
÷óñøóõêêê
÷îðùú
ì÷÷ó÷÷ú
�óõï��òò
ï�
�����	�
���
÷îðù
�
�
	��	�
���
ù����
ì����
���

������������� �!��!"#�$������"��%&���� '��&�('!� ����(� ( "�)���* !�*&����)+'"!,��!-PZ.[G/GPGRY
SKXNIT�0 ��!1 �(����*"L
2RT
3IY[
2RT
4
5NR6J
7
R8
9R:RTK
FRNNRV
;Z.[G/GPGRYL�* ��!�)�\ZPT
KIPT
R8
<YJROL
<=
IY[
VKPT
R8
WK..NK
9SKKJ

>-?-@?L
@A@>
WB BIGN
C
HIJK
DR.GYPRY
C
EZTNRRJ

UTTXPA--RZTNRRJFR88G6KF6RO-OIGN-PKYTGTKOP-G[-GGHJGIJOQ\DNEMDG2K6LJMBTQIMJJ;N?OLPL2KN\Q=63QL6@Q=B3BPGHGG7NQGBR@5>>S<Z4R@58PKUT 7-3Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 138 of 254



��������	��
���
��
�������������������������������������������������������������� ��!�����"��!��� �#� 	�
����$%��%�&�����������'�������()�*�)����+������,�(�%-%�%���.����/����	�012345544	��
��6"��7��7� �!�� ��8���9� �:�8���;��"��!���!�8�����<��8�=���>��8��=���?����@��������8�<�7��@�!@�8;�A������8�� � "�<8���!�<B�C7��7� ��� ��D�E��! ������@"��F�
�.������
��-%�����)�'����������&���%�&���%����G�����()�
�����)H�I��)�13��	�/��)�����-����)��
�'%�%'�G����%���H�
�������������J���	��KLMNOP��� QRSTU�VTUWXYTXZ[[\]̂_�̀abc̀decededfbba�ghiĵk�l̂hh�m�gnoppo]qr�sl�bd̀àtttuvwxyz{|}~x�|zw��u�x�������okĵ�\���m�dl��]���\���m�������h���\���m��̂k\�h�����\���

��������������� ���!������������8 �8������!���

"��7 ������!���B�;;�@�B@�:�:��!� �8����: �����������:�9�!����=6@#������������ #A#=6!9�¡@>�#@��¡�>�A����¢�£��¤�¥��¦§�?¤�¥;A6"̈ ��>Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 139 of 254



���������	
������
�
�
��	��
����������
������
���
�������������
����
������������������
������������������
��������
��
��
�������������������������
�
���
������������������	�����
��������
��
�����������
����
��	����������
����
���������	���
���������
������������	
������
���������������������������������������
����������������������
���� ��������	��������
������������
�����������
��!"#$!%&$&%&%�����������	�
��$�����������
�
��������������������	
������
��������	������	�����
�����������
�����
�����������'()(*)+�*,*'�-. ./01�2�3/45�67809:79�2�;<=1774

>==?:,((7<=1774@7AA0B5@B7C(C/01(:59=0=5C:(0D(EEF4EGHCIJ61;K60LMBNHK.=IGO4HPQ)RNSNLM1JITBUINB*IT.U.SEFEEVQW0.X*Y''Z[<\X*YASM>] U(UBannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 140 of 254



EXHIBIT 3 

Ordinance Excerpts 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 141 of 254



BANNOCK COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE NO. 1998-1  Recorded #98004542  

Page 24 of 151 

 

320 RESIDENTIAL RURAL DISTRICT (RR) 

 
321 PURPOSE: 
 

The Residential Rural zoning district is established to provide low density, single–family 
residential areas in rural settings.  RR districts require lot sizes or sufficient open space to 
maintain a semi–rural setting. 

 
322 CHARACTERISTICS OF LAND IN THIS DISTRICT: 
 

The Residential Rural designation is to be applied to existing neighborhoods with larger, 
rural sized lots, and for areas of underdeveloped land which will serve as buffer areas 
between Agriculture districts and urbanizing areas.  Factors to be considered in 
designating land for RR districts should include, but not be limited to, availability of county 
services and roads, types of surrounding land uses, and suitability of land to safely handle 
individual well and sewage systems on lots 5 acres or more in size, or higher densities with 
central or municipal water and sewer systems. 

 

323 USES PERMITTED - WITH STAFF REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF SITE PLAN 

   (SECTION 503)  
 

A.  All uses listed as permitted in the RS district, except attached housing unless such 
housing is in an open space designed subdivision. 

 
B.  Commercial Agricultural uses for use on the premises, buildings, and structures, except 

hog farms, feed lots, and agricultural support uses. 
 

C.  State licensed day care homes or centers with up to six client children. 
 
324 USES CONDITIONALLY PERMITTED: 
 

The following land uses may be permitted conditionally in the RR district subject to 
conditions established in this section and elsewhere in this Ordinance. 

 
A.  All uses permitted by conditional use permit in the Residential Suburban district, except 

attached housing unless such housing is in an open space designed subdivision. 
 
325 PARKING STANDARDS: 
 

All residential development shall meet the parking standards set forth in the Residential 
Suburban District Section 335 inclusive. 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 142 of 254



BANNOCK COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE NO. 1998-1  Recorded #98004542  

Page 25 of 151 

 

326 SUBDIVIDING IN THE RESIDENTIAL RURAL DISTRICT:  The following methods of 
subdividing are permitted in the RR zone: 

 
A.  Open Space Designed Subdivision (see design standards of Subdivision Ordinance) 

with density of one dwelling to 2.5 acres. 
 

Open Space designed subdivisions are required in the RR zone if one or more of the 
following apply: 

 
1.  A proposed subdivision’s average net lot size is less than five acres; 

 

2.  If 25% or more of the subdivision is above 5000' elevation. 
 
  3.  If the proposed subdivision includes important wildlife habitat. 
 

B.  Conventional:  Five-acre minimum lot size if individual well or septic systems are used.  
Such subdivisions are prohibited from further division. 

 
C.  Planned Unit Development provided that municipal water and sewer are provided and 

limited to locations within Area of City Impact; density may be up to one dwelling per ½ 
acre; for residential uses or for mixed-use developments which include neighborhood 
commercial uses subordinate to residential uses in the same development. (Amendment 
#19 Ordinance #2008-4) 

 
1.   Minimum size for a planned unit development in the RR district shall be ten acres and 

the maximum size is 100 lots or dwelling units and 100 acres. (Amendment #19 
Ordinance #2008-4) 

 
D.  All subdivisions on a city boundary must apply to be annexed into that city which has 

designated that land to be within its “Area of City Impact.” 
 

1.  In the event the City declines in writing, to annex the development, the County shall 
hear the application in accordance with its Area of Impact Agreement with the City, or 
Idaho Code shall apply if none exists. 

 
 
 
 
 

 

REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 143 of 254



BANNOCK COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE NO. 1998-1  Recorded #98004542  

Page 26 of 151 

 

327  TABLE OF BUILDING BULK AND PLACEMENT STANDARDS: 
The following table sets forth building bulk and placement standards for the Residential 
Rural District: 

 
RESIDENTIAL RURAL DISTRICT 

 
MINIMUM SETBACKS (FT) 

  

FROM LOCAL 
ROAD R-O-W 

FROM ARTERIAL 

OR COLLECTOR 

 R-O-W 

 

REAR YARD 

 

SIDE YARD 

 

MAXIMUM 

STRUCTURE HT. 

PERMITTED USES:      

Single–family Residence
  

30 50 30 10 35 

Two-family Residence 30 50 30 10 35 

Residential Accessory  
 Structures 

30 50 20 20 35 

Agricultural Structures 30 50 20 20  

Farm Animal Structures 30 50 30 30 15 

Commercial Agriculture 
 Accessory Structures for  
 Farm Animals 

 
100 

 

100 

 
100 

 
100 

 
- 

Non-Residential Buildings 30 50 20 20 - 

(Amendment 63, Ordinance 2024-02) 
 
Setback for all structures shall be 100’ from any stream or riparian area 
 
Minimum Lot Size: Five acres; see Section 326.  Larger lot sizes may be required by the Health 
Department. 
 
 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 144 of 254



BANNOCK COUNTY SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE NO. 1997-4 RECORDED #97011338 

Page 14 of 43 
 

anticipated public costs. Agencies may offer comment on topics not listed above, but the 

County requests, at a minimum, comments on those topics. Agencies to be contacted: 

 

a. The electric power provider (Utah Power or Light or Idaho Power Co.). 

 

b. Intermountain Gas. 

 

c. Telephone: U.S. West Engineering Department. 

 

d. Ditch or irrigation company when present or within 1/2 mile. 

 

e. Cable company - fiber optic or television. 

 

f. Pipelines, if any. 

 

g. Any other subdivision of government or private utility as applicable. 

 

7. ARMY CORPS OF ENGINEERS: for determination of (1) wetlands or riparian areas (2) 

stream crossing needs, or (3) any additional issues the Corps may address. 

 

8. PUBLIC LAND AGENCIES: such as Fort Hall Reservation, Forest Service, BLM, or 

State, without regard to location of proposed subdivision. 

 

Applicant shall include all comments with application. In the absence of comments, evidence 

of contact at least twice by applicant may be submitted. 

 

302 CONCEPTUAL OR MASTER PLAN REVIEW: 
 

302.A. SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS: Developer shall submit review fees as established by the 

Board, the report from District Health and the following items at least 30 days prior to the 

hearing: (Amendment No. 5 Ordinance 2022-03) 

1. A list of all property owner(s) and the property tax parcel number(s), located within 300 

feet of the proposed development’s boundary including street or road rights-of-way and 

bodies of water. 

 

2. A sketch, accurate to plus or minus 5 percent, showing: 

 

a. Proposed uses of the property and present zoning, if applicable. 

 

b. Proposed and/or existing deed restrictions, if any, including easements and 

rights-of-way. 

 

c. Description of the improvements proposed to be made or installed, the time such 

improvements are proposed to be made or completed, and the procedures the 

subdivider wishes to use. 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 145 of 254



BANNOCK COUNTY SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE NO. 1997-4 RECORDED #97011338 

Page 15 of 43 
 

d. Statement describing proposed water supply, sewage disposal, and drainage. 

 

e. Approximate location of blocks and number of lots in each. 

 

f. Legal description to quarter-quarter section, township and range. 

 

g. North arrow. 

 

h. Landscaping locations and general type of vegetation. 

 

i. Ownership and land use of subject development and within 300' beyond plat 

boundaries. 

 

j. Road names - subject to County Addressing Ordinance. 

 

k. Road design deviations if open space subdivision is proposed. 

 

3. Comments from Reviewing Agencies, 301.D. 

 

a. If an agency does not comment, and applicant has proof of contact, staff will 

contact; if no response is forthcoming, the agency may testify at Concept phase. 

If no testimony nor written comments are presented at the public hearing, Council 

may proceed to review application without the agency’s comments. 

 

302.B. COMMUNITY IMPACT ANALYSIS: Staff will prepare a Community Impact Analysis for 

all developments, to include: 

 

1. Total population at build out; 

 

2. Population five to 17 years of age; 

 

3. Water usage per unit and total for project; 

 

4. Sewage produced per unit and total for project; 

 

5. Tax generated for average size lot and dwelling of 2000 sq. ft.; 

 

6. Cost to provide services by: Sherriff’s Department; Road and Bridge; School District, for 

transportation and per student cost, if known; Fire District; ambulance service provider 

and any other affected agency as determined by County. 

 

302.C. ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT: County Engineer may require an 

environmental impact assessment prepared by an environmental engineer, licensed in the 

State of Idaho, when any of the following conditions apply: inclusion of wetlands, streams or 

floodplains; land which may have been used previously as an industrial site or has a history 

of pollution; land which may be subject to sliding, slumping, or movement of any sort; land 

identified as important wildlife habitat; land which may have historical or anthropological 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 146 of 254



BANNOCK COUNTY SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE NO. 1997-4 RECORDED #97011338 

Page 16 of 43 
 

artifacts, or other land deemed by the County to be sensitive to development. Said 

assessment shall address, but is not limited to, the items listed above, without regard to size 

of proposed subdivision. 

 

302.D. PUBLIC HEARING: The Council will consider the Concept or Master Plan as a Public 

Hearing item, according to procedures established in the Zoning Ordinance. In phased 

subdivisions, each phase is considered a Preliminary Plat for the purpose of this section. 

Concept approval may be based upon a sketch and narrative describing the development 

and its improvements. Standards (criteria) in 302.E. shall be applied to: 

 

1. Density - average lot size and range of lot sizes. 

 

2. Utilities - water, power, natural gas, cable TV, telephone; type and placement 

underground or overhead. 

 

3. Uses and zoning. 

 

4. Fire suppression and prevention measures. 

 

5. Transportation routes - internal and existing arterial or collector routes. 

 

6. Conformance to Comprehensive Plan. 

 

7. Conformance to applicable transportation plans. 

 

8. Suitability of soil and topography for development. 

 

9. Wildlife considerations. 

 

Plats which will be phased are called Master Plans and the following additional items will need 

approval as a part of the public hearing for Concept approval. Additional issues to be addressed 

are: 

 

10. Timing of the total project and intervals between phases. 

 

11. Schedule for construction of improvements in each phase. 

 

12. Sequence of phases. 

 

13. A Master Plan map of total project, showing phases, approximate location of lots, streets 

and other improvements at build-out. 

 

302.E. REVIEW CRITERIA: The CONCEPT Plan for a subdivision may be approved only if the 

reviewing authority shall find that it satisfies the following criteria: 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 147 of 254



BANNOCK COUNTY SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE NO. 1997-4 RECORDED #97011338 

Page 17 of 43 
 

1. The proposed tentative plan is in conformance with the Bannock County Comprehensive 

Plan; is in conformance with all applicable provisions of this Ordinance, other County 

Ordinances, and Idaho Code. 

 

2. The proposed roads and bridges will be designed and constructed according to Section 

402 of this Ordinance. If a design deviation is requested, it shall equal or exceed those 

standards for its purpose. 

 

3. The proposed partitioning of land does not prohibit the extension of dedicated streets or 

roads. 

 

4. The proposed partitioning will not conflict with legally established easements or access 

within or adjacent to the proposed land partition. 

 

5. The blocks of lots are located and laid out to properly relate to adjoining or nearby lot or 

parcel lines, utilities, streets, or other existing or planned facilities. 

 

6. The proposed property is physically suitable for the type and proposed density of 

development and conforms to existing zone standards. 

 

302.F. CONDITIONS: The Council may place conditions upon the proposed plat to bring it into 

compliance with the comprehensive plan. If the developer accepts those conditions, the 

developer may then proceed to Preliminary Plat review. 

 

302.G. DIVISIONS OF LAND INTO FOUR OR FEWER PARCELS: A one-time division into four 

or fewer parcels if it meets the following criteria: (Amendment No. 5 Ordinance 2022-03) 

  -access for each lot is from maintained county road or a private shared driveway 

  -utilities are available 

  -a public hearing is not required 

  -all other Zoning and Subdivision requirements apply 

 

1. Such divisions must be filed as Records of Survey, and shall be prepared in accordance 

with Chapter 19, Title 55 of Idaho Code. All other standards, requirements, processes 

and criteria of this Ordinance shall be met. Survey notes and or other conditions may be 

required. 

 

302.H. TIME LIMITS: Approval of the Concept Plan is valid for one year from the date of 

approval by the Council. Concept or Master Plans not advanced to Preliminary Plat review 

by the Council within one year of Concept approval by the Council must be resubmitted for a 

new Concept/Master Plan approval. 

 

303 PRELIMINARY PLAT REVIEW: 

 

303.A. SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS: Preliminary Plat review will be considered by the 

Council as a business item at subsequent, regularly scheduled meetings of the Council. The 

following items must be submitted to the County Engineer and Planning Department at least 30 

days prior to the Council’s regular monthly meeting: 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 148 of 254



FINDINGS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 149 of 254



BANNOCK COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL 
FINDINGS AND ORDER: PERMIT SCP-25-3 

Page 1 

 

 

 

BANNOCK COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL 
FINDINGS AND ORDER 

 

CONCEPT PLAN – TOM’S HOLLOW SUBDIVISION 

PUBLIC HEARING: OCTOBER 22, 2025 

 

FILE #:   SCP-25-3        

LOCATION: RPRRCHS000300, currently unaddressed and RPRRCHS000400, currently addressed as 620 

E. Pidcock Road Inkom, ID 83245. 

 

APPLICANT:     OWNER: 

Dioptra      Thomas Nelson Homes LLC  

Stewart Ward     P.O. Box 2373        

4880 Clover Dell Road  Pocatello, ID 83206      

Pocatello, ID 83202 

 
REQUEST & BACKGROUND:  Stewart Ward proposes an amendment to Coyote Hollow Subdivision for the 

purpose of adjusting a lot line.   The existing lots are 5.00 acres with 2.33 acres of open space and 5.16 acres 

with 1.91 acres of open space. After the proposed adjustment, the lots will be 6.10 acres with 2.34 acres of open 

space and 4.05 acres with 1.91 acres of open space.  The development proposes individual well and septic 

systems.   This subdivision is located ~ 1.19 miles from the City of Inkom boundary. 

FINDINGS: 
 

JUSTIFICATION FOR THE DECISION/CRITERIA, STANDARDS AND FACTS RELIED UPON 
 

SITE CHARACTERISTICS AND ZONING: 

ZONE: Residential Rural 

PROPERTY SIZE: ~5.00 acres and 5.16 acres 

VIEWS: The property is visible from E. Pidcock Road  

IMPACT AREA: City of Inkom 

FLOOD ZONE: X, minimal 

TERRAIN: Steep slopes with flat area and natural drainage 

EXISTING STRUCTURES: Residential dwelling in progress  

OPEN SPACE: 4.24 acres within lots 

OTHER: Located within Coyote Hollow Subdivision  

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 150 of 254



BANNOCK COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL 
FINDINGS AND ORDER: PERMIT SCP-25-3 

Page 2 

 

NOTICE AND TESTIMONY REQUIREMENTS: 

Notice of the public hearing was completed according to statutory requirements. Public comment was taken 

according to statutory requirements.  

REQUIRED FINDINGS FOR CONCEPT PLAN – REVIEW CRITERIA, §302.E 

1. The proposed tentative plan [is] [is not] in conformance with the Bannock County Comprehensive 
Plan; [is] [is not] in conformance with applicable provisions of this Ordinance, other County 
Ordinances, and Idaho Code.  

_________________________________________________________________________________________               

_________________________________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

2. The proposed roads and bridges [are] [are not] designed and constructed according to Section 402 of 
the Subdivision Ordinance. A design deviation [was] [was not] requested and [was] [ was not] 
granted to equal or exceed these standards for its purpose.  

_________________________________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

3. The proposed partitioning of land [does] [does not] prohibit the extension of dedicated streets or 
roads. 

_________________________________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

4. The proposed partitioning [will] [will not] conflict with legally established easements or access within 
or adjacent to the proposed land partition.  

_________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
5. The blocks of lots [are] [are not] located and laid out to properly relate to adjoining or nearby lot or 

parcel lines, utilities, streets, or other existing or planned facilities. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
6. The proposed property [is] [is not] physically suitable for the type and proposed density of 

development and [does] [does not] conform to existing zone standards. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 151 of 254



BANNOCK COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL 
FINDINGS AND ORDER: PERMIT SCP-25-3 

Page 3 

(If adding approval conditions) with the following conditions of approval,  

 _________________________________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

ORDER: CONCLUSION AND DECISION 

The Planning and Development Council, pursuant to the aforementioned, finds that the request for Tom’s 

Hollow Subdivision Concept Plan, as described in the application, shall be [approved] [denied] [tabled]. 

Motion by ________________________, seconded by ________________________to adopt the foregoing 
Findings and Order. 

 

ROLL CALL: 

Councilperson Dimick Voted [Yes] [No]  [Absent/Recused] 
Councilperson Madsen 
Councilperson Selleneit 

Voted [Yes] [No]  [Absent/Recused] 
Voted [Yes] [No]  [Absent/Recused] 

Councilperson Ulrich Voted [Yes] [No]  [Absent/Recused] 
Councilperson Ward Voted [Yes] [No]  [Absent/Recused] 

 

Motion carried by a _______ to _____ vote. 

Dated this ______________ day of ___________________, 2025. 

 
             __________________________________________________ 
             Signed by (Chairperson) (Vice Chair) 
 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT CERTIFICATE 
State of Idaho) 
S.S. 
County of Bannock) 
 
On this _____ day of _______________, in the year of 2025, before me ____________________________, a 
notary public, personally appeared ______________________________, personally known to me to be the 
person  whose name  is subscribed to the within instrument, and acknowledged to me that (she) (he) 
executed the same. 
 
S             ______________________________________________ 
E             Notary Public 
A              My Commission Expires on _____________ 20____ 
L      

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 152 of 254



MOTION 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 153 of 254



 

EXAMPLE MOTION 
 

Based on the record and the discussion this evening, I move to [approve] [deny] [table] the 
request for the Tom’s Hollow Subdivision Concept Plan as described in the application materials 
as supplemented with additional information attached in the staff report and according to 
testimony received, and to adopt the proposed findings and order for signature by the Chair or 
Vice-Chair. 

(IF ADDING APPROVAL CONDITIONS) with the following conditions of approval, 
 
1. …. 
 
2. …. 
 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 154 of 254



AGENDA ITEM NO. 7 

CANCELLED 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 155 of 254



AGENDA ITEM NO. 8 

Variance – Wyatt Radke 

Driveway standards 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 156 of 254



PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 
5500 S 5th Ave | Pocatello, Idaho 83204 | 208.236.7230 | www.bannockcounty.gov 

 

STAFF REPORT 
VARIANCE PERMIT- RADKE 

Page 1 of 6 

 

 

VARIANCE PERMIT 

PUBLIC HEARING: OCTOBER 22, 2025 

STAFF REPORT 

 

FILE #:  VAR-25-14        

LOCATION:  RPRRMNV001000 and RPRRMNV000902, currently unaddressed 

APPLICANT:    OWNER: 

Wyatt Radke     Johnson Olson Profit Shrg Plan   

845 W. Center Street, Suite E   1744 Rainier Drive 

Pocatello, ID 83204    Pocatello, ID 83201 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Bannock County Planning and Development recommends the following: 

• Denial, or;  

• Approval with the following conditions: 
 

1. All disturbed areas shall be stabilized immediately upon completion of grading 
through seeding, mulching, or approved erosion-control matting. 

2. Retaining walls shall be designed and certified by a professional engineer, with 
heights minimized wherever feasible. 

3. Applicant shall submit and implement a stormwater / erosion control plan 
prepared by a licensed engineer and approved by the County Engineer prior to 
any land disturbance. 

4. Disturbed slopes shall be contoured to blend with natural topography. 
5. North Bannock Fire District, Bannock County Sheriff, and Bannock County 

Ambulance District shall review and approve the design for emergency access 
(including turnarounds and slope considerations). 

 

REQUEST & BACKGROUND:  Wyatt Radke requests a variance from the driveway standards to 

increase the maximum allowable driveway grade from 10% to 13% and increase the restriction 

of amount of steep slopes that may be disturbed. 

 

SITE CHARACTERISTICS AND ZONING: 

ZONING: Residential Rural 

PROPERTY SIZE: ~ 12.44 acres  

VIEWS:  The property is visible from W. Timberline Road 

EXISTING STRUCTURES:  None 

AREA OF CITY IMPACT:  None 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 157 of 254

http://www.bannockcounty.us/


STAFF REPORT 
VARIANCE PERMIT - RADKE 

Page 2 of 6 
 

 

SURROUNDING LAND USES AND ZONING 

NORTH: The site is within the Residential Rural zoning district and consists of residential uses 

and bare ground.  

EAST: The site is within BLM and consists of bare ground.  

SOUTH: The site is within the Residential Rural zoning district and consists of residential uses 

and bare ground.  

WEST: The site is within the Residential Rural zoning district and consists of residential uses and 

bare ground.  

  

APPLICABLE LAWS AND PLANS: 

1. Idaho Code §67-6516, Variance – Definition – Application – Notice – Hearing. 
2. Bannock County Comprehensive Plan, 2025-27 
3. Bannock County Zoning Ordinance, 1998-1, specifically: 

a. §320 RESIDENTIAL RURAL DISTRICT 
b. §327 BUILDING BULK AND PLACEMENT STANDARDS 
c. §475.13 DRIVEWAYS 
d. §490 RESOURCE AND NATURAL FEATURES PROTECTION DEVELOPMENT 

RESTRICTIONS 
e. §540 VARIANCES 

 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 158 of 254



STAFF REPORT 
VARIANCE PERMIT - RADKE 

Page 3 of 6 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SITE MAPS 

 

 

ZONING MAP 

STANDARDS FOR GRANTING A VARIANCE (ZONING ORDINANCE §540.4) 

The Planning and Development Council may grant a variance if it makes affirmative findings on 
each of the following standards: 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 159 of 254



STAFF REPORT 
VARIANCE PERMIT - RADKE 

Page 4 of 6 
 

 
A. The applicant has shown that there is no reasonable alternative. 

Staff Findings of Fact 
The applicant is requesting an increase in the maximum permitted driveway slope from 

10% to 13%. This adjustment is necessary to make construction feasible and will allow 

for a shorter driveway, thereby reducing site disturbance.  The applicant has stated that 

the western portion of the property adjacent to Timberline Road contains limited flat 

land, but is encumbered by a recorded drainage easement and dense forestation, making 

development impractical and potentially disruptive. In contrast, the eastern boundary 

offers the only viable area for building; however, accessing it requires a driveway over 

slopes that exceed the limits allowed by the Bannock County Zoning Ordinance.  As 

shown in the supporting documentation, no feasible alternative access exists, making 

the requested variance necessary to allow reasonable access to the buildable area. 

B. The variance is not in conflict with the public interest. 

Staff Findings of Fact 

 The applicant has stated the requested variance does not conflict with the public interest 
 and aligns with the intent of the Bannock County Zoning Ordinance to balance 
 reasonable development with environmental and community considerations. The 
 proposed driveway provides necessary access to the only feasible building site while 
 minimizing disturbance to the natural landscape by reducing driveway length and 
 preserving native vegetation and slopes.  Design and construction will meet applicable 
 safety and engineering standards, including proper drainage, erosion control, and fire-
 safe access. The variance will not impact adjacent properties, public infrastructure, or 
 natural drainage patterns, including  the existing drainage easement on the western 
 portion of the parcel. 

 By allowing a modest increase in driveway slope, the variance enables efficient land use 
 without compromising public health, safety, or welfare. It supports responsible 
 development while protecting both the natural environment and surrounding 
 community interests.  Staff finds that the variance does not appear to be in conflict with 
 the public interest as no public comments have been received at the time of this report. 
 The Council should determine if any aspect of the proposed variance is in conflict with 
 the public interest based on information provided by the applicant and any public 
 testimony. 

 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 160 of 254



STAFF REPORT 
VARIANCE PERMIT - RADKE 

Page 5 of 6 
 

C. The variance will not adversely affect adjacent property.  

Staff Findings of Fact 

 The applicant has stated the proposed variance will not adversely affect adjacent 
 properties. The requested adjustment allowing increased driveway slope and relief 
 from slope development restrictions is narrowly focused on providing access to a suitable 
 building site within the applicant’s property. The driveway will remain entirely within the 
 subject parcels and will not encroach on neighboring properties or shared easements.
 The design will follow engineering standards for grading, drainage, and erosion control, 
 preventing runoff or physical impacts to adjacent parcels. Construction will also be 
 sensitive to existing vegetation and topography, helping preserve privacy and minimize 
 visual and environmental disturbance. 

 Applicant also states that no changes are proposed that would increase traffic, noise, or 
 intensity of use beyond what is typical for single-family residential development in 
 this area. The variance supports reasonable use of the property while maintaining 
 the character and integrity of the surrounding neighborhood.  Council should 
 determine if any aspect of the proposed variance is in conflict with the adjacent property 
 owner’s interest based on information provided by the applicant and any public 
 testimony. 

D. If the variance is not granted, the applicant will suffer undue hardship caused by the 

physical characteristics of the site. 

Staff Findings 

 The applicant has stated that if the requested variance is not granted, the applicant will 
 face an undue hardship resulting directly from the unique physical characteristics of the 
 property. While the eastern portion contains the only practical location for residential 
 development due to its relatively flat terrain, access requires crossing slopes that exceed 
 the maximum allowable limits under the Bannock County Zoning Ordinance. 

 The western portion of the property, although adjacent to Timberline Road, is 
 constrained by a designated drainage easement and dense forestation, rendering it 
 unsuitable for  development or safe access. These physical constraints, including steep 
 slopes, natural drainage patterns, and limited buildable area, substantially restrict the 
 applicant’s ability to make reasonable use of the property without relief through 
 the requested variance. Council should discuss the information provided by the applicant 
 and determine if the variance is denied, if the applicant will suffer an undue hardship 
 caused by the physical characteristics of the site. 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 161 of 254



STAFF REPORT 
VARIANCE PERMIT - RADKE 

Page 6 of 6 
 

 
IDAHO CODE REGARDING VARIANCE PERMITS 
IC 67-6516:  VARIANCE — DEFINITION — APPLICATION — NOTICE — HEARING. Each 

governing board shall provide, as part of the zoning ordinance, for the processing of applications 

for variance permits. A variance is a modification of the bulk and placement requirements of the 

ordinance as to lot size, lot coverage, width, depth, front yard, side yard, rear yard, setbacks, 

parking space, height of buildings, or other ordinance provisions affecting the size or shape of a 

structure or the placement of the structure upon lots, or the size of lots. A variance shall not be 

considered a right or special privilege, but may be granted to an applicant only upon a showing 

of undue hardship because of characteristics of the site and that the variance is not in conflict 

with the public interest. Prior to granting a variance, notice and an opportunity to be heard shall 

be provided to property owners adjoining the parcel under consideration and the manager or 

person in charge of the local airport if the variance could create an aviation hazard as defined in 

section 21-501, Idaho Code. Denial of a variance permit or approval of a variance permit with 

conditions unacceptable to the landowner may be subject to the regulatory taking analysis 

provided for by section 67-8003, Idaho Code, consistent with the requirements established 

thereby. 

 

AGENCY COMMENTS: 

1. None at time of report 
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS: 

2. Charles Johnson 
 

REPORT BY:     REPORTED DATE:  October 8, 2025 

Annie Hughes Williams, Zoning Planner *Staff comments in this report are based solely 

annieh@bannockcounty.gov   upon evidence available at the time of the report.  

208-236-7230     Additional information may be brought to light  

      at or before the hearing. 

 

 

EXHIBITS: 

1. Application and Site Plan 
2. Applicable Laws (on file with Staff) 
3. Evidence of Notices (on file with Staff) 
4. Agency/Public Comments (if any) 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 162 of 254

mailto:annieh@bannockcounty.


EXHIBIT 1 

Application & Site Plan 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 163 of 254



Parcel & Variance Information

Application for Variance

Variance Application

VAR-25-14
Submitted On: Sep 10, 2025

Applicant

  Wyatt Radke
 
 

Primary Location

0 NO STREET
00000

Parcel Number

RPRRMNV001000

My property is zoned:

Residential Rural

What variance are you requesting? Please select all that apply: Rear yard setbacks

--

Side yard setbacks

--

Riparian area setbacks

--

Right-of-way setbacks

--

Lot size

--

Other

true

Please describe your variance request in detail:

This variance request pertains to Parcel #RPRRMNV001000 as well as Parcel #RPRRMNV000902. The request seeks relief from
current development slope restrictions in order to enable the feasible construction of a driveway connecting Timberline Road
to the eastern boundary of the parcels. Specifically, we are requesting the following:

Modification of Slope Restrictions: A reduction of existing development slope limitations to allow for practical and safe
driveway construction across the natural terrain.

Increase in Maximum Allowable Driveway Slope: An increase in the maximum permitted driveway slope from 10% to 13%.
This adjustment is necessary to facilitate the feasibility of construction and will also result in a shorter driveway.

By allowing a steeper driveway slope, the overall length of the driveway can be reduced, which in turn helps preserve more of
the natural ground and minimize disturbance to existing slopes and vegetation.

Narrative addressing how your application meets criterion 1: The applicant has shown there is no reasonable alternative.

The western portion of the property adjacent to Timberline Road contains a limited area of relatively flat land; however, this
area is encumbered by a designated drainage easement as recorded in the Mountain Vista Subdivision plat. This easement
appears to function as an active drainage area and is further constrained by dense forestation, making development in this
location impractical and potentially environmentally disruptive.

In contrast, the eastern boundary of the property contains the only viable area of relatively flat ground suitable for the
construction of a dwelling. However, access to this buildable area requires the construction of a driveway across sloped
terrain that exceeds the allowable slope thresholds established in the Bannock County Zoning Ordinance.

As demonstrated in the supporting documentation, no feasible access route exists that would avoid these slope limitations.
Therefore, the requested variance is essential to permit reasonable access to the only suitable building site on the property.

Narrative addressing how your application meets criterion 2: The variance is not in conflict with the public interest.

The requested variance does not conflict with the public interest and is consistent with the intent of the Bannock County
Zoning Ordinance to balance reasonable property development with environmental and community considerations. The
proposed driveway will provide necessary access to the only feasible building area on the property, while minimizing overall
disturbance to the natural landscape by reducing the length of the driveway and preserving more native vegetation and
slopes.

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 164 of 254



Certification

The design and construction will be carried out in a manner that ensures proper drainage, erosion control, and fire-safe
access, in compliance with applicable safety and engineering standards. The variance will not interfere with adjacent
properties, public infrastructure, or natural drainage patterns, including the existing drainage easement on the western
portion of the parcel.

By allowing a modest increase in driveway slope, the variance supports efficient land use without compromising the health,
safety, or welfare of the surrounding community. Therefore, the proposed variance aligns with the public interest by enabling
responsible development while protecting the natural and built environment.

Narrative addressing how your application meets criterion 3: The variance will not adversely affect adjacent property.

The proposed variance will not have any adverse impact on adjacent properties. The requested adjustment—allowing for
increased driveway slope and relief from slope development restrictions—is limited in scope and purpose, specifically to
provide access to a suitable building site on the applicant’s property. The proposed driveway will be located entirely within
the subject parcels and will not encroach upon neighboring properties or shared easements.

The design will adhere to engineering standards to ensure proper grading, drainage control, and erosion prevention, thereby
avoiding runoff or physical impacts to nearby parcels. Additionally, the construction will be sensitive to existing vegetation
and topography to preserve privacy and minimize visual or environmental disruption.

No changes are proposed that would increase traffic, noise, or intensity of use beyond what is typical for a single-family
residential development in this area. As such, the variance will enable reasonable use of the property while maintaining the
character and integrity of the surrounding neighborhood.

Narrative addressing how your application meets criterion 4: If the variance is not granted, the applicant will suffer undue hardship
caused by the physical characteristics of the site.

If the requested variance is not granted, the applicant will face undue hardship directly resulting from the unique physical
characteristics of the property. While the eastern portion of the property offers the only practical location for residential
development due to its relatively flat terrain, accessing this area requires crossing sloped ground that exceeds the allowable
limits outlined in the Bannock County Zoning Ordinance.

The western portion of the property, while adjacent to Timberline Road, is constrained by an active drainage easement and
dense forestation, making it unsuitable for development or safe access. These physical limitations—steep slopes, natural
drainage patterns, and limited 

Electronic Signature [Typed name of applicant]

Wyatt Radke

I agree that my electronic signature above is equivalent to a
handwritten signature and is binding for all purposes related to
this transaction

true

Date

09/10/2025

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 165 of 254



Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 166 of 254

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REFERENCE DRAWINGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND SURVEYING

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGINEERING

AutoCAD SHX Text
845 WEST CENTER STREET, SUITE E P.O. BOX 1327, POCATELLO, ID 83204 Ph: (208) 233-4226 Email: ae-eng@ae-eng.com www.ae-eng.comEmail: ae-eng@ae-eng.com www.ae-eng.comwww.ae-eng.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL #RPRRMNV001000

AutoCAD SHX Text
& RPRRMNV000902

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLOPE ANALYSIS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BANNOCK COUNTY, ID

AutoCAD SHX Text
SK25098-000

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
2025-098

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
WRR

AutoCAD SHX Text
8/25/25

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
USED FOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO BE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
Scale 1"=

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
TIMBERLINE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
RPRRMNV000902 6.720 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
RPRRMNV001000 5.777 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
RPRRMNV001100

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUREAU OF LAND MANAGEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
RPRRMNV000901

AutoCAD SHX Text
RPRRMNV000802

AutoCAD SHX Text
RPRRMNV000702

AutoCAD SHX Text
RPRRMNV000600

AutoCAD SHX Text
MK

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
APVD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISSUED FOR INFORMATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
9/9/25

AutoCAD SHX Text
WRR

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 89°25'38" E  1072.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 21°31'27" W  250.05'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 48°10'43" W  858.62'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 36°28'51" W  574.55'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 0°12'17" E  353.90'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%ULEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADJACENT PARCEL LINES



Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 167 of 254

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REFERENCE DRAWINGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND SURVEYING

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGINEERING

AutoCAD SHX Text
845 WEST CENTER STREET, SUITE E P.O. BOX 1327, POCATELLO, ID 83204 Ph: (208) 233-4226 Email: ae-eng@ae-eng.com www.ae-eng.comEmail: ae-eng@ae-eng.com www.ae-eng.comwww.ae-eng.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL #RPRRMNV001000

AutoCAD SHX Text
& RPRRMNV000902

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLOPE ANALYSIS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BANNOCK COUNTY, ID

AutoCAD SHX Text
SK25098-001

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
2025-098

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
WRR

AutoCAD SHX Text
8/25/25

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
USED FOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO BE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
Scale 1"=

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
TIMBERLINE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
RPRRMNV000902

AutoCAD SHX Text
RPRRMNV001000

AutoCAD SHX Text
RPRRMNV001100

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUREAU OF LAND MANAGEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
RPRRMNV000901

AutoCAD SHX Text
RPRRMNV000802

AutoCAD SHX Text
RPRRMNV000702

AutoCAD SHX Text
RPRRMNV000600

AutoCAD SHX Text
HEAVILY VEGETATED AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
MK

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
APVD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISSUED FOR INFORMATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
9/9/25

AutoCAD SHX Text
WRR

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%ULEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADJACENT PARCEL LINES



Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 168 of 254

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REFERENCE DRAWINGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND SURVEYING

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGINEERING

AutoCAD SHX Text
845 WEST CENTER STREET, SUITE E P.O. BOX 1327, POCATELLO, ID 83204 Ph: (208) 233-4226 Email: ae-eng@ae-eng.com www.ae-eng.comEmail: ae-eng@ae-eng.com www.ae-eng.comwww.ae-eng.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL #RPRRMNV001000

AutoCAD SHX Text
& RPRRMNV000902

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLOPE ANALYSIS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BANNOCK COUNTY, ID

AutoCAD SHX Text
SK25098-002

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
2025-098

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
WRR

AutoCAD SHX Text
8/25/25

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
USED FOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO BE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
Scale 1"=

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRANSITION TO  SHALLOW SLOPES

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRANSITION TO  SHALLOW SLOPES

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRANSITION TO  SHALLOW SLOPES

AutoCAD SHX Text
MK

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
APVD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISSUED FOR INFORMATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
9/9/25

AutoCAD SHX Text
WRR

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%ULEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADJACENT PARCEL LINES



Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 169 of 254

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLOPE RANGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISTURBANCE DUE TO SAMPLE DRIVEWAY 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLOPE RESTRICTION LIMIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
<15%

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
15-30%

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.71 AC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.5%

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.0%

AutoCAD SHX Text
>30%

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.71 AC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.8%

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.0%

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REFERENCE DRAWINGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND SURVEYING

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGINEERING

AutoCAD SHX Text
845 WEST CENTER STREET, SUITE E P.O. BOX 1327, POCATELLO, ID 83204 Ph: (208) 233-4226 Email: ae-eng@ae-eng.com www.ae-eng.comEmail: ae-eng@ae-eng.com www.ae-eng.comwww.ae-eng.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL #RPRRMNV001000

AutoCAD SHX Text
& RPRRMNV000902

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLOPE ANALYSIS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BANNOCK COUNTY, ID

AutoCAD SHX Text
SK25098-003

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
2025-098

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
WRR

AutoCAD SHX Text
8/25/25

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
USED FOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO BE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
Scale 1"=

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
MK

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
APVD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISSUED FOR INFORMATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
9/9/25

AutoCAD SHX Text
WRR

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAMPLE DRIVEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%ULEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADJACENT PARCEL LINES



EXHIBIT 2 

Public Comments 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 170 of 254



Outlook

Fwd: Timberline Lane Mountain View, parcels RPRRMVN 000902 and 001000

From Charles Johnson <cjlawretired@gmail.com>
Date Mon 10/6/2025 1:31 PM
To Bannock County Planning and Development <development@bannockcounty.gov>

Sent from my iPad

Begin forwarded message:

From: Charles Johnson <cjlawretired@gmail.com>
Date: October 6, 2025 at 9:27:39 AM HST
To: developement@bannockcounty.gov
Cc: halj@bannockcounty.gov, Wyatt Radke <radke@ae-eng.com>
Subject: Timberline Lane Mountain View, parcels RPRRMVN 000902 and 001000

Dear Bannock County Planning and Development Services,

We received the enclosed notice from Planning and Development Services of Bannock County for the hearing set on October 22, 2025 on﻿ the
Timberline Lane Mountain View Subdivision Variance, for parcels RPRRMVN 000902 and 001000.  I will be out of town seeing a medical specialist
on that date and probably will not be available for this hearing on that date.  However, This matter is very important to me, so please make this
email a part of the record in this case.

I purchased the lots in this platted subdivision about 30 years ago, based on the understanding that they had already been subdivided and
approved by Bannock County for building construction.  I lived in an adjoining property for almost 30 years with the intention of selling the lots
when I retired, which I now desire to do.

I note that the slope of the lots is substantially similar to others in Mountain View subdivision.  These other lots have homes on similar grades and
there is no prejudice or harm to any of these neighbors from allowing the proposed construction on the lots to be completed.

Apparently, in the time since I purchased the lots, Bannock County has adopted a new zoning code that appears to restrict development of these
lots based on the grade of the land, requiring certain grades for driveways and construction.  This zoning ordinance was not in effect when the
subdivision was approved, or when I purchased the lots.  

The proposed purchasers of the lots have consulted A&E Engineering, who has apparently prepared a study showing that their proposed
construction on the lots is feasible and can be accomplished with no harm to the neighbors.  In my opinion, this would be the highest and best
use of this parcel and clearly in conformance with the intention of the plat of this subdivision that was approved by Bannock County at the time I
purchased the lots.

First, please accept this email as a letter of authorization for Wyatt Radke of A&E Engineering to represent the interests of the buyer and seller at
any upcoming meeting Bannock County relating to this land.  I will not be available on the October 15, 2025 meeting, but could be at a meeting in
November, 2025.

Second, we would strongly argue for the removal of the present restrictions on the buyers plan totally as if this subdivision was “grandfathered“
(Bannock County Zoning Ordinance Section 200, page 8) to allow this project to continue without these slope restrictions.   We understand
that other provisions of the building code would still apply and require County approval.

Third, if removal of the slope restrictions cannot be accomplished, then we would request a variance be issued (Bannock County Zoning
Ordinance Section 200, page16 and §540.4) to allow this project to be completed.   This ordinance provides as follows:

540.4 STANDARDS:
The Planning and Development Council may grant a variance if it makes affirmative findings of fact on each of the following standards:
1. The applicant has shown that there is no reasonable alternative. 
2. The variance is not in conflict with the public interest.
3. The variance will not adversely affect adjacent property.
4. If the variance is not granted, the applicant will suffer undue hardship caused by
the physical characteristics of the site.

The variance requested is very a very minor less than 3% greater grade than the code.  There does not seem to be any reason not to grant a
variance under the exceptional circumstances of this case.  There is no reasonable alternative and the buyer and seller will suffer undue hardship if
the variance is not granted as to the lots.  The variance does not conflict with the public interest, and will have substantial benefit to all the parties
and the neighbors (who will suffer no harm).

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 171 of 254



Finally, if this project is not approved and Bannock County will not allow any construction on the lots, then this would be deemed to be a
regulatory taking (like a condemnation) of this entire property that would require reasonable compensation to the owner under the constitutions
of the United States and State of Idaho, and applicable common and statutory law.

In conclusion, Bannock County should allow this construction to take place in the best interest of all the parties and residents of Bannock County.
 If you have any questions or comments, please email.  Sincerely,

Charles  Johnson

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 172 of 254



EXHIBIT 3 

Ordinance Excerpts 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 173 of 254



BANNOCK COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE NO. 1998-1  Recorded #98004542  

Page 24 of 151 

 

320 RESIDENTIAL RURAL DISTRICT (RR) 

 
321 PURPOSE: 
 

The Residential Rural zoning district is established to provide low density, single–family 
residential areas in rural settings.  RR districts require lot sizes or sufficient open space to 
maintain a semi–rural setting. 

 
322 CHARACTERISTICS OF LAND IN THIS DISTRICT: 
 

The Residential Rural designation is to be applied to existing neighborhoods with larger, 
rural sized lots, and for areas of underdeveloped land which will serve as buffer areas 
between Agriculture districts and urbanizing areas.  Factors to be considered in 
designating land for RR districts should include, but not be limited to, availability of county 
services and roads, types of surrounding land uses, and suitability of land to safely handle 
individual well and sewage systems on lots 5 acres or more in size, or higher densities with 
central or municipal water and sewer systems. 

 

323 USES PERMITTED - WITH STAFF REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF SITE PLAN 

   (SECTION 503)  
 

A.  All uses listed as permitted in the RS district, except attached housing unless such 
housing is in an open space designed subdivision. 

 
B.  Commercial Agricultural uses for use on the premises, buildings, and structures, except 

hog farms, feed lots, and agricultural support uses. 
 

C.  State licensed day care homes or centers with up to six client children. 
 
324 USES CONDITIONALLY PERMITTED: 
 

The following land uses may be permitted conditionally in the RR district subject to 
conditions established in this section and elsewhere in this Ordinance. 

 
A.  All uses permitted by conditional use permit in the Residential Suburban district, except 

attached housing unless such housing is in an open space designed subdivision. 
 
325 PARKING STANDARDS: 
 

All residential development shall meet the parking standards set forth in the Residential 
Suburban District Section 335 inclusive. 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 174 of 254



BANNOCK COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE NO. 1998-1  Recorded #98004542  

Page 26 of 151 

 

327  TABLE OF BUILDING BULK AND PLACEMENT STANDARDS: 
The following table sets forth building bulk and placement standards for the Residential 
Rural District: 

 
RESIDENTIAL RURAL DISTRICT 

 
MINIMUM SETBACKS (FT) 

  

FROM LOCAL 
ROAD R-O-W 

FROM ARTERIAL 

OR COLLECTOR 

 R-O-W 

 

REAR YARD 

 

SIDE YARD 

 

MAXIMUM 

STRUCTURE HT. 

PERMITTED USES:      

Single–family Residence
  

30 50 30 10 35 

Two-family Residence 30 50 30 10 35 

Residential Accessory  
 Structures 

30 50 20 20 35 

Agricultural Structures 30 50 20 20  

Farm Animal Structures 30 50 30 30 15 

Commercial Agriculture 
 Accessory Structures for  
 Farm Animals 

 
100 

 

100 

 
100 

 
100 

 
- 

Non-Residential Buildings 30 50 20 20 - 

(Amendment 63, Ordinance 2024-02) 
 
Setback for all structures shall be 100’ from any stream or riparian area 
 
Minimum Lot Size: Five acres; see Section 326.  Larger lot sizes may be required by the Health 
Department. 
 
 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 175 of 254



BANNOCK COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE NO. 1998-1  Recorded #98004542  

Page 110 of 151 

 

plans shall contain the following information for review and approval by Planning 
staff: 

1. ..... Location on the premises, height, and dimensions of proposed fixtures, lamps, 
supports, reflectors, and other related devices. 
 

D. . Street lighting plans, whether for public or private roadways, if required shall be 
submitted with subdivision plats. 

 
475.11 OTHER: 
 

A.  Outdoor structures (bleachers, movie screens, permanent rides) and outdoor seating 
area shall be at least 25 feet from any lot line. 

 
B.  Campsites and recreational vehicle campgrounds are subject to the building setback 

regulations of the district in which they are located. 
 

C.  Any outdoor display of vehicles for sale or storage shall be at least 10 feet from any 
road right–of–way line. 

 
D.  Any pumps, underground fuel storage tanks, and islands, including any canopies, 

shall be at least 20 feet from any road right–of–way. 
 

E.  No more than one single–family house or duplex shall be permanently constructed 
on each building site except as set forth in Section 315.C. of this ordinance. 

 
475.12 EXCEPTIONS TO MINIMUM SETBACK REQUIREMENTS: 
 

The following structures may be allowed to project into, or be constructed in any 
minimum required setback area as follows: awnings and canopies, not to exceed three 
feet; bay windows, not to exceed two feet; clotheslines, driveways, fences, walls, and 
hedges may be constructed or placed in minimum setback areas, provided their 
installation does not violate any other provision of this Ordinance. 
 

475.13 DRIVEWAYS (Amendment #31, Ordinance 2016-3): 
 
All driveways shall meet the following standards:  
 
A. Driveways shall be constructed of an all-weather surface; 
B. Where the driveway meets a public road, the driveway shall match the construction 

material of that road up to the right-of-way line.  
1. Where curb and gutter are used, concrete may be used within the right-of-way. 

C. Driveways over one hundred and fifty feet (150’) in length shall have a minimum 
width of twenty feet (20’) at all points.  

D. Driveways over one hundred and fifty feet (150’) in length shall include a fire code-
approved turnaround. Such driveways are considered fire apparatus access roads 
and require Approval by the fire suppression district before a building permit may be 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 176 of 254



BANNOCK COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE NO. 1998-1  Recorded #98004542  

Page 111 of 151 

 

issued. 
E. Driveways over one hundred and fifty feet (150’) in length shall not exceed ten 

percent (10%) grade.  
F. Driveways serving more than two residences, or other non-agricultural buildings, 

without regard to length, shall be built to standards of Section 402.A of the 
Subdivision Ordinance.  

G. No driveway shall be closer than fifty feet (50’) from the intersection of the pavement 
of two public roads unless at least one (1) of the roads is an arterial; if at least one 
(1) is an arterial, driveways shall be setback at least one hundred and fifty feet (150’) 
from the intersection.   
 

475.14 SIGNS (EXCEPT BILLBOARDS) (Amendment #31, Ordinance 2016-3): 

A. No signs are allowed in any zone, unless otherwise authorized by the zone, without 
an approved administrative decision with the following exceptions: 

1. Nonilluminated Signs: The following types of signs, when not illuminated, do not 
require an administrative decision: 

i. Signs related to home occupations in accordance with Section 424 of this 
Ordinance. 

ii. Directional or information signs bearing no advertising message located 
within a parcel, and signs not exceeding four (4) square feet in area 
erected for the convenience of the public, such as signs identifying 
restrooms, public telephones, walkways and similar features or facilities. 

iii. Any sign which is visible only from the parcel on which it is located. 
iv. Campaign signs, provided they are removed within seven (7) days after 

the election. 
v. Property signs advertising the availability of property for sale, lease, or 

rent, but shall not be greater than thirty two (32) square feet. 
vi. Home signs. An accessory sign or nameplate announcing the names of 

the owners or occupants of the premises. 
vii. Memorial signs or tablets and names of buildings and dates of erection 

when cut into the surface or facade of the building. 
viii. Signs placed by a public utility showing the location of underground 

facilities. 
ix. Traffic or other county signs, signs required to be mentioned by law, 

railroad crossing signs, legal notices and such temporary emergency or 
non-advertising signs as may be authorized by the board. 

2. Agricultural and Recreational Zone: Signs for any allowed or approved use not 
exceeding thirty two (32) square feet in area and not exceeding ten feet (10') in 
height, unless approved by an administrative decision from the director. Signs 
may be lighted, electric, or have moving parts but may not be a distraction to the 
public so as to be a traffic hazard. 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 177 of 254



BANNOCK COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE NO. 1998-1  Recorded #98004542  

Page 113 of 151 

 

6. Appeal by Affected Person: Any affected person who is aggrieved by the 
Director's decision as to an application pursuant to this subsection, may file a 
written notice of appeal in accordance with Section 503.4, APPEAL OF 
DECISION, of this Ordinance. 

 
480 DRAINAGE WAYS:  
 

A.  Where a lot is traversed by a water course, drainage way, wet weather line of 
surface drainage, channel or stream, there shall be provided a storm water easement 
or drainage right of way conforming substantially with the lines of such water course.  
Such drainage ways shall be preserved as open space.  Such areas shall be restricted 
from development of roads and structures, and the site plan shall so indicate. 

 
1.  ALTERATION:  Regrading, stripping of vegetation, or filling may be permitted in 

these areas, provided that the drainage is not a riparian area as defined in this 
Ordinance, and a plan is submitted to and approved by the County Engineer.  Such 
plans shall insure that storage capacity and flow is not degraded. 

 
485 BUFFERYARD AREA: 

  Residential and other types of development may conflict with existing or planned 
development.  The following are minimum buffers and may be increased where 
deemed appropriate by the Planning Director. 

 
     Bufferyard 

Use or zone                                                Width (feet) 
 
Agriculture, present use or zone .......................... 20 
Forestry..................................................Fire break at least 20' wide or as set by Council 
Residential, existing or zoned .............................. 0 
Commercial or retail, zone or use ........................ 50 
Indoor Recreation, ..  ............................................ 50 
Institutional  Residential ....................................... 50 
Outdoor Recreation 50 
Agricultural Support 30 
Office and Professional uses, existing ................. 30 
Public Service .........  ............................................ 40 
Road Service ..........  ............................................ 40 
Commercial Recreation ....................................... 40 
Light Industry ..........  ............................................ 50 
Extraction, Junkyard, or heavy industrial ............. 75 
 
 
490  RESOURCE AND NATURAL FEATURES PROTECTION DEVELOPMENT 

RESTRICTIONS: 
 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 178 of 254



BANNOCK COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE NO. 1998-1  Recorded #98004542  

Page 114 of 151 

 

A.  The following natural features shall be restricted to development, including roads, 
as follows: 

 
Feature .......  ..........  ..........................................    Percent Restricted 
 
Lakes, ponds, water courses .............................  ................ 100 ....  
Wetlands and riparian areas ..............................  ................ 100 
Floodways ...  ..........  .......................................... 90 Floodplain Ordinance also applies   
Slopes (15 to 30%) .  ..........................................  ................ 80 
Steep slopes (over 30%) ...................................  ................ 95 
 

B.  All development shall require identification of any environmental or natural features 
described above, and shall meet the standards of environmental protection as set 
forth below:  Site alterations, regrading, filling, and clearing or planting vegetation 
prior to approval of the development permit shall be a violation of this Ordinance. 

 
  1.  WETLANDS AND RIPARIAN AREAS: 
 

a.  All such areas shall remain as permanent open space, except as noted in 
Paragraph c below. 

 
   b.  Wetlands shall not be filled nor dredged. 
 

c.  Permitted uses:  The following buildings or structures may be permitted within 
wetlands: PERMITS ARE REQUIRED FROM THE ARMY CORPS OF 
ENGINEERS AND IDAHO DEPARTMENT OF WATER RESOURCES, IN 
ADDITION TO A COUNTY ZONING PERMIT. 

 
(1)  Boat launching ramps, boat, piers, bridge and bridge approaches, marinas, 

picnic shelter, and stormwater detention facilities, provided that a licensed 
engineer has certified that such structures are designed to withstand the forces 
exerted by the 100-year storm event.  Evidence of this certification shall be 
presented as precondition to issuance of a zoning certificate. 

 
(2)  Boat houses, boat buildings, and accessory structures (except boat or motor 

repair buildings) associated with uses permitted in the preceding paragraph, 
provided that a licensed engineer certifies that such structures are designed to 
allow free entrance of floodwater and to withstand structurally the forces 
exerted by the 100-year flood event at that location, and conformance with the 
County Flood Damage Control Ordinance.  Evidence of this certification shall be 
presented as a precondition to issuance of a zoning certificate. 

 
2.  STEEP SLOPES  In areas of steep slopes, the following standards shall apply: 

 
a.  Fifteen percent to less than 30 percent slope: no more than 20 percent of such 

areas shall be developed and/or regraded or stripped of vegetation.  All areas of 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 179 of 254



BANNOCK COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE NO. 1998-1  Recorded #98004542  

Page 115 of 151 

 

disturbed soils shall be reseeded to National Resource Conservation 
Service(NRCS) standards. 

 
b.  More than 30 percent slope:  no more than five percent of such areas shall be 

developed and/or regraded or stripped of vegetation.  All areas of disturbed soils 
shall be reseeded to NRCS standards. 

 
c.  Buildings are not permitted on slopes of 20% or greater. 

 
 C.  LAKES AND PONDS: 
 

1.  All such areas shall be permanent open space.  No development or diverting of 
these bodies of water shall be permitted.  Filling shall not be permitted. 

 
 D.  SHORELINES OF LAKES, PONDS, RIVERS: 
 

1.  No structures, animal runs or enclosures, or septic drainfields are permitted within 
100 feet of the riparian area surrounding a body of water. 

 
E.  IMPORTANT AGRICULTURAL SOILS:  In the Agriculture zoning district at least 90 

to 95 percent of all such areas shall remain as permanent open space.  Accessory 
farm structures (i.e., barns, silos) shall be permitted in the open space.  This is to 
preserve and protect the important agricultural soils, crop lands and grazing areas of 
the County.  Also, see NRCS definition of “important agricultural soils”. 

 
495 STORMWATER RUNOFF:  
 

A.  ON SITE DETENTION AND LIMITATION OF STORMWATER RUNOFF:  No 
development shall cause downstream property owners, water courses, channels, or 
conduits to receive stormwater run-off from proposed developments at a higher peak 
flow rate than would have resulted from the same storm event occurring over the site 
of the proposed development with the land in its natural, undeveloped condition. 

 
B.  INSPECTION OF FACILITIES.  The County Engineer and/or Building Official may 

inspect drainage facilities while under construction.  If facilities are not constructed 
according to approved plans, the County has the explicit authority to compel 
compliance and require correction, including suspension of building permits, or by 
enforcement of this Ordinance (Section 570). 

 
END OF SECTION 

  

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 180 of 254



BANNOCK COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE NO. 1998-1  Recorded #98004542  

Page 131 of 151 

 

B.  A conditional use permit shall be required for the reconstruction of a structure 
housing a pre–existing conditional use if the structure is destroyed by fire or other 
calamity, to a greater extent than 50 percent.  The extent of damage or partial 
destruction shall be based upon the ratio of the estimated cost of restoring the 
structure to its condition prior to such damage or partial destruction to the estimated 
cost of duplicating the entire structure as it existed prior thereto.  Estimates for this 
purpose shall be made by or shall be reviewed and approved by the Building 
Inspector and shall be based on the minimum cost of construction in compliance with 
the Building Code. 

 
540 VARIANCES: 
 
540.1 PURPOSE:  A variance shall not be considered a right but may be granted to an 

applicant upon a showing of undue hardship related to physical characteristics of the 
site, and then only if the proposal is not in conflict with the public interest. 

 
A.  Application for a variance shall be filed by the owner of the subject property with 

the Planning Director at least 30 days prior to the public hearing.  The application 
shall include the information necessary to enable the Planning and Zoning 
Department to make a complete analysis of the variance request. 

 
B.  The Planning Director may request additional information necessary to enable a 

complete analysis and evaluation of the variance request, and a determination as to 
whether the circumstances prescribed for the granting of a variance exist. 

 
C.  The application shall be accompanied by a fee established by the Board of County 

Commissioners.  A single application may include requests for variances from more 
than one regulation applicable to the same site, or for similar variances on two or 
more adjacent parcels with similar characteristics. 

 
D.  The applicant shall also provide the Planning Director with the names and 

addresses of the owners of property that abuts the applicant's parcel. 
 
540.2 PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE: 
 

Notice of the variance request shall be given to adjoining property owners at least 
seven days before the date of the public hearing. 

 
540.3 ACTION BY THE PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL: 
 

A.  The Planning and Development Council shall act upon the application within forty–
five days following the close of the public hearing on a variance.  The Planning and 
Development Council may grant a variance as the variance was applied for or in 
modified form, or subject to conditions, or the application may be denied.  A variance 
may be revocable, may be granted for a limited time period, or may be granted 
subject to conditions as the Planning and Development Council may prescribe. 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 181 of 254



BANNOCK COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE NO. 1998-1  Recorded #98004542  

Page 132 of 151 

 

 
540.4 STANDARDS: 
 

The Planning and Development Council may grant a variance if it makes affirmative 
findings of fact on each of the following standards: 

 
  1.  The applicant has shown that there is no reasonable alternative. 
 
  2.  The variance is not in conflict with the public interest. 
 
  3.  The variance will not adversely affect adjacent property. 

4.  If the variance is not granted, the applicant will suffer undue hardship caused by 
the physical characteristics of the site. 

 
540.5 EFFECTIVE DATE OF VARIANCE: 
 

A decision of the Planning and Development Council on a variance shall be effective 
ten (10) days after the date on which action is announced unless an appeal has been 
filed pursuant to Section 540.6. 

 
540.6 APPEAL TO BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS: 
 

The appeal procedure is the same as the procedure in Section 550 
 
540.7 LAPSE OF VARIANCE: 
 

A.  Unless a longer time period shall be specifically established as a condition of 
approval, a variance shall lapse six months following the date on which the variance 
is issued, unless prior to the expiration of the six months, a building permit and a 
zoning permit are issued. 

 
B.  A variance subject to lapse may be renewed by the Planning and Development 

Council for an additional period of six months, provided that prior to the expiration 
date, a written request for renewal is filed with the Planning and Development 
Council. 

 
C.  The Planning and Development Council may grant or deny an application for 

renewal upon a showing by the applicant that circumstances beyond his control 
caused the delay. 

 
540.8 SUSPENSION AND REVOCATION: 
 

A.  Upon violation of any applicable provision of this Ordinance or, if granted subject to 
conditions, upon failure to comply with conditions, a variance shall be suspended 
upon notification to the owner of the use or property subject to the variance. 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 182 of 254



BANNOCK COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE NO. 1998-1  Recorded #98004542  

Page 133 of 151 

 

B.  The Planning and Development Council  shall hold a public hearing within 40 days 
of such notification, in accord with Section 560, and if not satisfied that the 
regulation, general provision, or condition is being complied with, may revoke the 
variance or take such action as may be necessary to ensure compliance with the 
regulation, general provision, or condition. 

 
 
540.9 MINOR VARIANCES AND PROCEDURES: 
 

A minor variance may be approved by the Planning Director subject to the following 
limitations: 

 
A.  A minor variance may not reduce a requirement by more than ten percent of its 

original standard, except in situations where proposed building additions would 
conform to established setbacks. 

 
B.  The applicant shall furnish the Planning Director with written consent from abutting 

property owners before the Director approves a minor variance. 
 

C.  If a minor variance request is denied, the applicant may appeal by proceeding 
through the regular variance process. 

 
550 APPEALS OF PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL'S DECISIONS: 

A.  The Board of County Commissioners shall serve as the decision–making body for 
appeals of decisions of the Planning and Development Council.  The Planning and 
Development Council's decision may be appealed to the Board of County 
Commissioners by the applicant or any other aggrieved person within ten days after 
the date on which the decision is made.  Notice of the appeal shall be filed with the 
Planning Director. 

 
B.  A transcript of the Planning and Development Council's consideration of the 

request shall be provided by the County at the expense of the appellant.  The Board 
of County Commissioners shall determine the fee per page to be charged for 
transcripts.  The appellant shall pay the estimated cost of the transcript to the County 
in advance, and be refunded money or owe additional money when the transcript 
has been prepared, and the actual cost determined. 

 
C.  Not more than 30 days following the preparation of transcripts, the Board of County 

Commissioners shall meet to consider the appeal.  The hearing shall not be a public 
hearing, but shall be open to the public.  The hearing shall be an “on the record 
review.” During the hearing, County staff shall be available to present the application 
and answer questions; however, comments will not be received from the audience.  
The Board of County Commissioners shall consider such findings, reports, minutes, 
comments, and recommendations as are forwarded to them by the Planning and 
Development Council in rendering their decision. Any applicant or other affected 
person may request a reconsideration of the Board of County Commissioners’ 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 183 of 254



FINDINGS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 184 of 254



BANNOCK COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL 
FINDINGS AND ORDER: PERMIT VAR-25-14 

Page 1 

 

 

 

 

BANNOCK COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL 
FINDINGS AND ORDER 

 

VARIANCE PERMIT- WYATT RADKE 

PUBLIC HEARING: OCTOBER 22, 2025 

 

FILE #:   VAR-25-14        

LOCATION:           RPRRMNV001000 and RPRRMNV000902, currently unaddressed 

APPLICANT:     OWNER: 

Wyatt Radke       Johnson Olson Profit Shrg Plan   

845 W. Center Street, Suite E   1744 Rainier Drive 

Pocatello, ID 83204     Pocatello, ID 83201 

         

REQUEST & BACKGROUND:  Wyatt Radke requests a variance from the driveway standards to increase the 

maximum allowable driveway grade from 10% to 13% and increase the restriction of amount of steep slopes 

that may be disturbed. 

 

FINDINGS: 

  

 JUSTIFICATION FOR THE DECISION/CRITERIA, STANDARDS AND FACTS RELIED UPON 

 
SITE CHARACTERISTICS AND ZONING: 

ZONING: Residential Rural 

PROPERTY SIZE: ~ 12.44 acres  

VIEWS:  The property is visible from W. Timberline Road 

EXISTING STRUCTURES:  None 

AREA OF CITY IMPACT:  None 

 

NOTICE AND TESTIMONY REQUIREMENTS: 

Notice of the public hearing was completed according to statutory requirements. Public comment was taken 

according to statutory requirements.  

 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 185 of 254



BANNOCK COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL 
FINDINGS AND ORDER: PERMIT VAR-25-14 

Page 2 

 

REQUIRED FINDINGS FOR VARIANCE PERMIT, §540 

1. The applicant has shown there [is] [is not] a reasonable alternative. 
 

This is based on:  

                              

                              

                              

 
2. The variance [is] [is not] in conflict with the public interest. 

 
This is based on:  

                             

                             

                              

 
 

3. The variance [will] [will not] adversely affect adjacent property.  
 
This is based on:  

                             

                             

                                

4. If the variance is not granted, the applicant [will] [will not] suffer undue hardship caused by the physical 
characteristics of the site. 
 

 This is based on: 

                             

                             

                              

Conditions: 

                             

                             

                              

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 186 of 254



BANNOCK COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL 
FINDINGS AND ORDER: PERMIT VAR-25-14 

Page 3 

 

ORDER: CONCLUSION AND DECISION 

The Planning and Development Council, pursuant to the aforementioned, finds that the request by Wyatt 

Radke for a variance to increase the maximum allowable driveway grade from 10% to 13% and increase the 

restriction of amount of steep slopes that may be disturbed, as described in the application, shall be [approved] 

[denied] [tabled]. 

Motion by ________________________, seconded by ________________________to adopt the foregoing 
Findings and Order. 

ROLL CALL: 

Councilperson Dimick Voted [Yes] [No]  [Absent/Recused] 
Councilperson Madsen Voted [Yes] [No]  [Absent/Recused] 
Councilperson Selleneit Voted [Yes] [No]  [Absent/Recused] 
Councilperson Ulrich Voted [Yes] [No]  [Absent/Recused] 
Councilperson Ward Voted [Yes] [No]  [Absent/Recused] 

 

Motion carried by a _______ to _____ vote. 

Dated this ______________ day of ___________________, 2025. 

 
             __________________________________________________ 
             Signed by (Chairperson) (Vice Chair) 
 

 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT CERTIFICATE 

State of Idaho) 
S.S. 
County of Bannock) 
 
On this _____ day of _______________, in the year of 2025, before me ____________________________, a 
notary public, personally appeared ______________________________ as chair/vice-chair on behalf of the 
Bannock County Planning and Development Council, personally known to me to be the person whose name is 
subscribed to the within instrument, and acknowledged to me that they executed the same. 
 
S             ______________________________________________ 
E             Notary Public 
A              My Commission Expires on _____________ 20____ 
L  
 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 187 of 254



MOTION 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 188 of 254



WYATT RADKE VARIANCE EXAMPLE MOTION 
 

Based on the record and discussion this evening, I move to [approve] [deny] [table] the request 
by Wyatt Radke for a variance to increase the maximum allowable driveway grade from 10% to 
13% and increase the restriction of amount of steep slopes that may be disturbed, as described 
in the application materials, as supplemented with additional information attached in the staff 
report, according to testimony received, and to adopt the proposed findings and order for 
signature by the Chair or Vice-Chair. 

(IF ADDING APPROVAL CONDITIONS) with the following conditions of approval, 
 
1. …. 
 
2. …. 
 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 189 of 254



BUSINESS ITEMS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 190 of 254



AGENDA ITEM NO. 9 

Preliminary Plat Approval – 

Chestnut Hill Subdivision 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 191 of 254



PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 
5500 S 5th Ave | Pocatello, Idaho 83204 | 208.236.7230 | www.bannockcounty.gov 

 

STAFF REPORT 
PRELIMINARY PLAT – Chestnut Hill Subdivision 

Page 1 of 8 

 

PRELIMINARY PLAT– CHESTNUT HILL SUBDIVISION 

MEETING DATE: OCTOBER 22, 2025 

STAFF REPORT 

 

FILE #: SPP-25-3        

LOCATION:     RPRRCIN000401, currently addressed as 9595 Chestnut Hill Drive, Pocatello, ID 

83204. RPRRCIN000301, currently addressed as 9498 Chestnut Hill Drive, 

Pocatello, ID 83204. 

 

APPLICANT: OWNER:                                                    
Dioptra Mark and Rosa Selover             Jordan and Emily Driscoll 
Stewart Ward  
4880 Clover Dell Road 
Pocatello, ID 83202 

9595 W. Chestnut Hill Drive    9498 W. Chestnut Hill Drive                              
Pocatello, ID 83204                     Pocatello, ID 83204                           

  
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends approval with the following conditions:  

 
1. At final plat, provide and meet written comment requirements from Pocatello Valley 

Fire District.  If no comments are received, the applicant shall submit proof of at least 
two contact attempts.  

2. Developer to research if there are any CC&Rs imposed on the existing lots.  If existing 
CC&Rs are imposed on the lots, condition 3 is required.  

3. As no CC&Rs were proposed by the developer, the CC&Rs from Cinnamon Springs 
Subdivision, updated to reflect the name of the new subdivision, shall be the CC&Rs 
used on this plat. 

 

Council may wish to add addition conditions as needed.  

 

REQUEST & BACKGROUND: Stewart Ward proposes an amendment to Cinnamon Springs 

Subdivision for the purpose of adjusting a lot line.  The existing lots are 3.48 acres and 3.43 

acres.  After the proposed adjustment, the lots will be 3.55 acres and 3.34 acre.  The 

development proposes individual septic systems and wells.  This subdivision is located ~ 1.25 

miles from the City of Pocatello boundary. 

 

PRELIMINARY PLAT PROPOSAL SUMMARY: 

TOTAL AREA: 6.98 +/- acres 

BUILDING LOTS: 2 residential 

DWELING UNIT DENTISY: 1 dwelling unit per 3.49 acres 

BUILDING LOT SIZE: Approximately 3.34 acres to 3.55 acres 

WATER & SEWER: Individual wells and septic  

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 192 of 254

http://www.bannockcounty.gov/


STAFF REPORT 
PRELIMINARY PLAT – Chestnut Hill Subdivision 

Page 2 of 8 
 

STORMWATER SYSTEM:  Retained on individual lots 

UTILITIES:  Power existing on the lots  

FIRE PROTECTION: None 

ROADS/ACCESS: Individual access via Chestnut Hill Drive, a county-maintained road 

 

SITE CHARACTERISTICS AND ZONING: 

ZONE: Residential Rural 

PROPERTY SIZE: ~ 3.43 acres and 3.48 acres 

VIEWS: The property is visible from all directions 

IMPACT AREA: Not within impact area 

FLOOD ZONE: X, Minimal 

TERRAIN: Steep slopes 

EXISTING STRUCTURES: Dwellings and residential accessory structures  

OTHER: Located within Cinnamon Springs Subdivision 

 

SURROUNDING LAND USES AND ZONING: 

NORTH: The sites are within the Residential Rural zoning district and Special Lands zoning 

district and consist of residential uses and bare ground. 

EAST: The sites are within the Residential Rural zoning district and consist of residential uses 

and bare ground. 

SOUTH: The sites are within the Residential Rural zoning district and consist of residential uses 

and bare ground. 

WEST: The sites are within the Residential Suburban zoning district and consist of residential 

uses and bare ground. 

 

APPLICABLE LAWS AND PLANS: 

1. Idaho Code §67-65, LOCAL LAND USE PLANNING ACT – SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE 
2. 2021 Bannock County Comprehensive Plan 
3. Bannock County Zoning Ordinance, 1998-1 

a. §320 RESIDENTIAL RURAL DISTRICT 
4. Bannock County Subdivision Ordinance, 1997-4, specifically: 

a. §303 PRELIMINARY PLAT REVIEW 
b. §400 DESIGN STANDARDS 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 193 of 254



STAFF REPORT 
PRELIMINARY PLAT – Chestnut Hill Subdivision 

Page 3 of 8 
 

 
SITE MAP 

 
ZONING MAP 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 194 of 254



STAFF REPORT 
PRELIMINARY PLAT – Chestnut Hill Subdivision 

Page 4 of 8 
 

 
CONTOUR MAP 

 
US FISH & WILDLIFE WETLANDS MAP 

 

 

 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 195 of 254



STAFF REPORT 
PRELIMINARY PLAT – Chestnut Hill Subdivision 

Page 5 of 8 
 

REVIEW – SECTION 303.B. 

The Council will review the Preliminary Plat as a business item, considering the plat for: 

1. Conformance to concept approval. Preliminary Plats which: 
a. Alter water sources or delivery systems, or other utilities including sewage 

treatment, as approved in concept; 
b. Increases the total number of lots by 10 percent or more, or 
c. Change access points to existing collector or arterial roads or streets by a 

distance greater than 50’ and not recommended by Staff or Council during 
concept approval, shall require a new concept review and a new review fee 
as established by the Board. 

Staff Findings 
There was no change in delivery systems or utilities, and the number of lots have not 
increased from concept approval.  
 

2. Utility easements and facilities 
Staff Findings   
Utility easements are shown on the preliminary plat submittal as 10’ feet wide, located 
along Chestnut Hill Drive.  There are no public facilities proposed.  
 

3. Open space if required in concept approval: amount of land, location, use, 
ownership and management plan. 
Staff Findings 
The land is currently zoned Residential Rural and is located within the existing platted 
subdivision, Cinnamon Springs Subdivision. At the time Cinnamon Springs Subdivision 
started the subdivision process, open space was not required.  These lots were created 
under a previous ordinance and no new lots are being created, ordinance standards 
have been met.  
 

4. Homeowners’ Association Codes, Covenants and Restrictions which carry out 
conditions imposed by the Council or the goals of the Ordinance and 
Comprehensive Plan. After approval by Council, County Legal staff will also review 
prior to recording of plat and codes.  
Staff Findings 
Applicant has not proposed any CC&Rs.  Cinnamon Springs Subdivision does not have 
an CC&Rs referenced on the plat.   Council may consider requesting the developer to 
research if CC&Rs are imposed on the lots.  
There were no conditions placed by Council during the concept plan, regarding CC&Rs.  
The Comprehensive Plan does not require goals for the CC&Rs.  
 

5. Street names. A street name must not duplicate an existing street name in the 
County or its cities; it must not be derogatory to any person or group. 
Staff Findings 
No new street has been proposed.   

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 196 of 254



STAFF REPORT 
PRELIMINARY PLAT – Chestnut Hill Subdivision 

Page 6 of 8 
 

6. Water Users Association organization and function. 
Staff Findings 
The developer proposes existing individual wells and septic systems.   
    

7. A Maintenance and Operation Plan for all commonly-owned improvements. 
Staff Findings 
There are no commonly-owned improvements proposed for this subdivision.  

 

SECTION 303.C. – CRITERIA FOR APPROVAL 

The Preliminary Plat may be approved only if the reviewing authority finds that it satisfies the 

following criteria: 

1. The Preliminary Plat is in conformance with the Bannock County Planning and 
Development Council’s approved Concept Plan, all applicable provisions of this 
Ordinance, other County Codes and Ordinances, and Idaho Code. 

a. Conformance with the Council’s approved concept plan 
Applicant did not provide written comment requirements from Pocatello Valley 
Fire District or evidence of attempted contact at least twice.  
The plat does indicate the 10’ easement for public utilities, roadway slopes, and 
drainage.   
Council should review if all conditions have been met.   
 

b. Compliance with the Bannock County Subdivision Ordinance, other County 
Codes and Ordinances, and Idaho Code.  
Bannock County Zoning Ordinance: 
The land is currently zoned Residential Rural and is located within the existing 
platted subdivision, Cinnamon Springs Subdivision. At the time Cinnamon 
Springs Subdivision started the subdivision process, the land was zoned 
Residential Rural.  The minimum lot size in the 1990 Ordinance was 2.5 acre in 
the Residential Rural Zoning District.  
The proposal is to adjust the lot line to the north lot line of proposed Lot 2.   
Since these lots were created in a previous ordinance, and no new lots are being 
created, this meets ordinance standards.  
The proposed density is 1 dwelling per 3.49 acres.  
There is an existing dwelling and accessory structures on RPRRCIN000301.  
There is a dwelling under construction on RPRRCIN000401.  Setback 
requirements for the adjusted side yard lot line have been met. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 197 of 254



STAFF REPORT 
PRELIMINARY PLAT – Chestnut Hill Subdivision 

Page 7 of 8 
 

Bannock County Subdivision Ordinance: 
Per §109.C., a replat is required in order realign lots within a recorded 
subdivision.  
The proposed subdivision name “Chestnut Hill Subdivision” has been reviewed 
and no duplication was found.  The proposed subdivision is currently located 
within a platted subdivision, Cinnamon Springs Subdivision.   
The applicant has proposed separate approaches from Chestnut Hill Drive, a 
county-maintained road.  With only two proposed lots, no interior subdivision 
road is required per §404.G, REVERSE FRONTAGE: All lots in subdivisions of 
more than four lots shall access to an interior subdivision road or street. If a road 
is proposed, road must meet the standards of §402.  
There are no wetlands located within the lots.  There are steep slopes over 15% 
located within the lots that have been shaded and marked with an “R”.  
Per §404.B: All lots which meet the following criteria shall be marked with an "R" 
and indicated by shading on the preliminary and final plats. An "R" placed next 
to the lot number and the reasons for the restrictions: floodplain, steep slope, 
subwater, drainage easement, etc., shall be noted on the plat. 
Per §404.B.1: Steep Slopes: Lots with a slope in excess of 20 percent grade over 
25 percent of the lot. Such areas will be shaded on the plat, with explanation of 
the restriction on the face of the plat. 
Applicant has proposed no fire suppression and preventions measures.  At 
concept, council did require applicant to provide proof of further discussion with 
local fire district that was not provided.  
Applicant should be aware that per §407: In all subdivisions, the electric, gas, 
telephone, and other utility lines shall be installed underground from the lot 
boundary to any structure(s). If power is not already existing, applicant shall 
install power to the lot boundaries. The power shall be installed outside the road 
right-of-way except for crossings. Distribution power lines may be above ground 
with the Council’s approval. 
 
Idaho Code:  
Developer will need to research Idaho Code to ensure all provisions have been 
met.   
 

2. The street plan for the proposed subdivision will permit its development in 
accordance with this code.  
Applicant has proposed to use existing approaches via Chestnut Hill Drive, a county-
maintained road.  Due to less than 4 lots being proposed, no interior street is required 
per Bannock County Subdivision Ordinance §404.G.  
 
 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 198 of 254



STAFF REPORT 
PRELIMINARY PLAT – Chestnut Hill Subdivision 

Page 8 of 8 
 

3. The street plan for the proposed subdivision will permit the development of 
adjoining land by providing access to that land by right of way dedicated to the 
County, or a developed street to the property boundary. 
There is no street being proposed.  Currently, Chestnut Hill Drive is the only street that 
the proposed subdivision has access to. Both lots have structures in place, not allowing 
for Chestnut Hill Drive to be extended to other parcels.   
 

4. Lot lines and roads relate to land shapes and existing development. 
Lot lines and roads appear to relate to the land shape.  All lots front Chestnut Hill Drive 
and public utility easement.  

 

REPORT BY: REPORT DATE: October 10, 2025 
Alisse Foster, Subdivision Planner *Staff comments in this report are based upon 
alissef@bannockcounty.gov evidence available at the time of the report. 

Additional information may be brought to light 
at or before the hearing.  

 

EXHIBITS:  

1. Application & Plat    
2. Concept Findings 
3. Cinnamon Springs Subdivision  
4. Proposed CC&Rs   
5. Agency Comments (if any)   
6. Referenced Ordinances – On file     
    

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 199 of 254



EXHIBIT 1 

Application & Site Plan 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 200 of 254



Bannock County, ID October 9, 2025

SPP-25-3
Subdivision
Preliminary Plat
Application
Status: Active
Submitted On:
8/28/2025

Primary Location

9595 W CHESTNUT HILL
DR
POCATELLO, ID 83204

Owner

ROSA SELOVER
9595 W CHESTNUT HILL
DR POCATELLO, ID
83204

Applicant

Stewart Ward
208-237-7373
stewart@dioptrageomatics.com
4880 Clover Dell Rd

Pocatello, ID 83202

Owner/Developer Information

Are the Owner and Developer the same?

Owner Name*

Mark and Rosa Selover

Street Address*

9595 W Chestnut Hill Rd

City*

Pocatello

State*

ID

Zip Code*

83204

Phone Number*

714-425-6498

Email*

markrselover @aol.com

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 201 of 254

alissef
Text Box



alissef
Text Box

alissef
Text Box

alissef
Text Box

alissef
Text Box

alissef
Text Box

alissef
Text Box

alissef
Text Box



Site Information

Proposed Subdivision Name*

Chestnut Hill Subdivision

Parcel Number(s) *

RPRRCIN000401 and RPRRCIN000301

Proposed Number of Lots*

2

Concept Plan Approval Date*

08/20/2025

Quarter*

SE Quarter

Section*

19

Township*

7 South

Range*

35 East

Total acreage of parcel(s)?*

6.89

Zoning of parcel(s)?*

Residential Rural District

Drainage and natural features of the site (topography, slope, creeks, streams, etc.) *

some steep slopes on the east side of the lots, no streams

Existing deed restrictions, easements, and rights-of ways*

Chestnut HIll Rd is a platted road, existing public utility easement along road
right of way

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 202 of 254



Does the proposed subdivision have any existing well, septic, or structures? *

both lots have existing well and septic from the previous homes

Engineer/Planner/Surveyor Information

Engineer/Planner/Surveyor Name*

Dioptra LLC - Stewart Ward

Phone Number*

208-237-7373

Email *

stewart@dioptrageomatics.com

Preliminary Plat Criteria for Approval

1. The Preliminary Plat is in conformance with the Bannock County P&D Council's approved Concept Plan, all
applicable provisions of this Ordinance, other County Codes and Ordinances, and Idaho Code. *

Yes. The Preliminary Plat complies with the Concept Plan and applicable
ordinances. It is a replat (Lot Line Adjustment) rather than a new major
subdivision, which makes it inherently consistent with the Concept Plan. The
plat also acknowledges County slope regulations, indicating alignment with
Title 16 provisions and Idaho Code

2. The street plan for the proposed subdivision will permit its development in accordance with this code.*

Yes. The street plan includes Chestnut Hill Dr. as the main access road,
designed with centerline geometry, curves, and easements meeting Bannock
County’s roadway standards. Because no new public streets are proposed, the
existing improved roadway supports development under the ordinance

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 203 of 254

alissef
Text Box



3.Street plan for proposed subdivision will permit development of adjoining land by providing access to that land
by right-of-way dedicated to the County, or a developed street to property boundary.*

Yes. The subdivision layout maintains right-of-way connectivity via Chestnut
Hill Dr., which reaches the property boundary and connects with adjoining
parcels. This satisfies the ordinance by preventing landlock of adjacent
properties and ensuring future development access.

4. Lot lines and roads relate to land shapes and existing development.*

Yes. The plat demonstrates careful alignment of lot boundaries and public
roads with terrain and existing neighboring development. By labeling steep-
slope lots as restricted, the design responds to natural land shapes and
respects development constraints of the area

Acknowledgement

I hereby acknowledge that I have read this
application and state that the information on this
application is correct to the best of my knowledge. *

Electronic Signature [Typed Name of Applicant]*

Stewart Ward

Date of Signature*

08/28/2025

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 204 of 254



Lot 1 "R"

Block 1

Lot 2 "R"
Ches

tn
ut H

ill
 D

r.

Curve Table
4880 Clover Dell Rd.
Chubbuck, ID 83202

Ph.208-237-7373
www.dioptrageomatics.com

Chestnut Hill Subdivision

CHESTNUT HILL SUBDIVISION

LEGEND

SURVEYORS CERTIFICATE

COUNTY RECORDERS CERTIFICATE

BASIS OF BEARING

NOTES:

8/28/25

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 205 of 254

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing Well

AutoCAD SHX Text
Power

AutoCAD SHX Text
Connect

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 00°01'42" E  274.65'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 00°01'23" E  206.21'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 00°00'29" E  252.46'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 89°58'10" W  554.07'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 00°01'18" W  274.89'

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.55 Acres

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
Jordan Driscoll Deed #22117714

AutoCAD SHX Text
Bartlome Living Trust Deed #21906366-7

AutoCAD SHX Text
Michael Louis Francisco Deed #98021432

AutoCAD SHX Text
M & P Francisco Trust Deed #22001770

AutoCAD SHX Text
Michael Francisco Deed #20408487

AutoCAD SHX Text
Kenneth B Covert Deed #21118415

AutoCAD SHX Text
John W. Esquibel Deed #20506220

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lot Owners of Deer Hollow Subdivision Deed #21300043

AutoCAD SHX Text
Louis R Aguilar Deed #21502519C

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 89°56'27" W  553.45'

AutoCAD SHX Text
Robert Nicholls Deed #22016918

AutoCAD SHX Text
5002

AutoCAD SHX Text
4997

AutoCAD SHX Text
4992

AutoCAD SHX Text
4987

AutoCAD SHX Text
4982

AutoCAD SHX Text
4977

AutoCAD SHX Text
4972

AutoCAD SHX Text
4967

AutoCAD SHX Text
4962

AutoCAD SHX Text
4957

AutoCAD SHX Text
4952

AutoCAD SHX Text
4947

AutoCAD SHX Text
4942

AutoCAD SHX Text
4937

AutoCAD SHX Text
4932

AutoCAD SHX Text
4927

AutoCAD SHX Text
4922

AutoCAD SHX Text
4917

AutoCAD SHX Text
4912

AutoCAD SHX Text
4907

AutoCAD SHX Text
4902

AutoCAD SHX Text
4897

AutoCAD SHX Text
4892

AutoCAD SHX Text
4887

AutoCAD SHX Text
4882

AutoCAD SHX Text
4877

AutoCAD SHX Text
4872

AutoCAD SHX Text
Edge of Gravel Access

AutoCAD SHX Text
Edge of Existing Landscaping

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.34 Acres

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 89°57'10" W  305.58'

AutoCAD SHX Text
19.59'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 00°01'42" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 89°33'42" W  203.64'

AutoCAD SHX Text
4977

AutoCAD SHX Text
4972

AutoCAD SHX Text
4967

AutoCAD SHX Text
4962

AutoCAD SHX Text
4957

AutoCAD SHX Text
4952

AutoCAD SHX Text
4992

AutoCAD SHX Text
4987

AutoCAD SHX Text
4982

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' Easement for Public Utilities, Roadway Slopes, and Drainage

AutoCAD SHX Text
Trampoline

AutoCAD SHX Text
Septic Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing

AutoCAD SHX Text
Broken Cap

AutoCAD SHX Text
No Cap

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RADIUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARC LENGTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHORD LENGTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHORD BEARING

AutoCAD SHX Text
DELTA ANGLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text
45.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
140.80'

AutoCAD SHX Text
90.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 00°34'32" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
179°16'00"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C2

AutoCAD SHX Text
45.07'

AutoCAD SHX Text
47.36'

AutoCAD SHX Text
45.21'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 60°04'29" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
60°12'43"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C3

AutoCAD SHX Text
45.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.91'

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.77'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 17°52'50" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
24°04'37"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C4

AutoCAD SHX Text
45.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
74.53'

AutoCAD SHX Text
66.30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 41°36'28" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
94°54'00"

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sheet:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Project:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Scale:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drawn By:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text
25036

AutoCAD SHX Text
SKW

AutoCAD SHX Text
 5-1-25

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
 1 OF 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
I, Stewart K. Ward, a Licensed Professional Land Surveyor in the State of Idaho do hereby certify that this plat is an accurate representation of this survey completed under my supervision.

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
A REPLAT OF LOTS 3 & 4 BLOCK 1 OF CINNAMON SPRINGS SUBDIVISION INSTR. #20010022 LOCATED IN SE 1/4 SECTION 19, TOWNSHIP 7 SOUTH, RANGE 35 EAST, OF THE BOISE MERIDIAN, IN THE COUNTY OF BANNOCK.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Set 1/2" Rebar with Plastic Cap PLS 15295

AutoCAD SHX Text
Set 5/8" Rebar with Aluminum Cap PLS 15295

AutoCAD SHX Text
Found 5/8" Rebar with Aluminum  Cap PLS 15295

AutoCAD SHX Text
Found 3" Brass Cap PLS 5074

AutoCAD SHX Text
Calculated Position

AutoCAD SHX Text
Parcel Boundary

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lot Lines

AutoCAD SHX Text
Fence Lines

AutoCAD SHX Text
Adjoining Parcels

AutoCAD SHX Text
Easements

AutoCAD SHX Text
Road Centerline

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing Asphalt 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Basis of Bearing per Idaho State Plane Coordinate System - East Zone.  GPS observation combination factor: 1.0002722400. Origin: Lat: N 41°38'29.72885"      Long: W 114°34'02.15448"      All distances are US Survey Feet.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15295

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
K

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
1. The purpose of the subdivision is to complete a Lot Line Adjustment between Lot 3 and Lot 4 of Cinnamon Springs Subdivision Instr. #20010022. 2. The Boundary of this subdivision was established from found monuments as shown per Cinnamon Springs Subdivision. 3. The adjusted line was determined by the owners of the Lots 3 and 4. 4. No Open Space is proposed for this subdivision. 5. Lots labeled "R" are restricted due to steep slopes. Development on steep slopes must follow Bannock County development requirements.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Areas with 20% Slope or greater 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing Gravel Road 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing Concrete Driveway 

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' Interval Contour Lines

AutoCAD SHX Text
4967

AutoCAD SHX Text
Found 1/2" Rebar with Plastic Cap PLS 5074 or as noted



EXHIBIT 2 

SCP-25-1 Recorded Findings 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 206 of 254



Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 207 of 254



Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 208 of 254



Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 209 of 254



EXHIBIT 3 

Cinnamon Springs Subdivision 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 210 of 254



Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 211 of 254



Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 212 of 254



Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 213 of 254



Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 214 of 254



Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 215 of 254



EXHIBIT 4 

HOA/ CCRs 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 216 of 254



No HOA or CCRs 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 217 of 254



EXHIBIT 5 

Ordinance Excerpts 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 218 of 254



BANNOCK COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE NO. 1998-1  Recorded #98004542  

Page 24 of 151 

 

320 RESIDENTIAL RURAL DISTRICT (RR) 

 
321 PURPOSE: 
 

The Residential Rural zoning district is established to provide low density, single–family 
residential areas in rural settings.  RR districts require lot sizes or sufficient open space to 
maintain a semi–rural setting. 

 
322 CHARACTERISTICS OF LAND IN THIS DISTRICT: 
 

The Residential Rural designation is to be applied to existing neighborhoods with larger, 
rural sized lots, and for areas of underdeveloped land which will serve as buffer areas 
between Agriculture districts and urbanizing areas.  Factors to be considered in 
designating land for RR districts should include, but not be limited to, availability of county 
services and roads, types of surrounding land uses, and suitability of land to safely handle 
individual well and sewage systems on lots 5 acres or more in size, or higher densities with 
central or municipal water and sewer systems. 

 

323 USES PERMITTED - WITH STAFF REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF SITE PLAN 

   (SECTION 503)  
 

A.  All uses listed as permitted in the RS district, except attached housing unless such 
housing is in an open space designed subdivision. 

 
B.  Commercial Agricultural uses for use on the premises, buildings, and structures, except 

hog farms, feed lots, and agricultural support uses. 
 

C.  State licensed day care homes or centers with up to six client children. 
 
324 USES CONDITIONALLY PERMITTED: 
 

The following land uses may be permitted conditionally in the RR district subject to 
conditions established in this section and elsewhere in this Ordinance. 

 
A.  All uses permitted by conditional use permit in the Residential Suburban district, except 

attached housing unless such housing is in an open space designed subdivision. 
 
325 PARKING STANDARDS: 
 

All residential development shall meet the parking standards set forth in the Residential 
Suburban District Section 335 inclusive. 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 219 of 254



BANNOCK COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE NO. 1998-1  Recorded #98004542  

Page 25 of 151 

 

326 SUBDIVIDING IN THE RESIDENTIAL RURAL DISTRICT:  The following methods of 
subdividing are permitted in the RR zone: 

 
A.  Open Space Designed Subdivision (see design standards of Subdivision Ordinance) 

with density of one dwelling to 2.5 acres. 
 

Open Space designed subdivisions are required in the RR zone if one or more of the 
following apply: 

 
1.  A proposed subdivision’s average net lot size is less than five acres; 

 

2.  If 25% or more of the subdivision is above 5000' elevation. 
 
  3.  If the proposed subdivision includes important wildlife habitat. 
 

B.  Conventional:  Five-acre minimum lot size if individual well or septic systems are used.  
Such subdivisions are prohibited from further division. 

 
C.  Planned Unit Development provided that municipal water and sewer are provided and 

limited to locations within Area of City Impact; density may be up to one dwelling per ½ 
acre; for residential uses or for mixed-use developments which include neighborhood 
commercial uses subordinate to residential uses in the same development. (Amendment 
#19 Ordinance #2008-4) 

 
1.   Minimum size for a planned unit development in the RR district shall be ten acres and 

the maximum size is 100 lots or dwelling units and 100 acres. (Amendment #19 
Ordinance #2008-4) 

 
D.  All subdivisions on a city boundary must apply to be annexed into that city which has 

designated that land to be within its “Area of City Impact.” 
 

1.  In the event the City declines in writing, to annex the development, the County shall 
hear the application in accordance with its Area of Impact Agreement with the City, or 
Idaho Code shall apply if none exists. 

 
 
 
 
 

 

REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 220 of 254



BANNOCK COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE NO. 1998-1  Recorded #98004542  

Page 26 of 151 

 

327  TABLE OF BUILDING BULK AND PLACEMENT STANDARDS: 
The following table sets forth building bulk and placement standards for the Residential 
Rural District: 

 
RESIDENTIAL RURAL DISTRICT 

 
MINIMUM SETBACKS (FT) 

  

FROM LOCAL 
ROAD R-O-W 

FROM ARTERIAL 

OR COLLECTOR 

 R-O-W 

 

REAR YARD 

 

SIDE YARD 

 

MAXIMUM 

STRUCTURE HT. 

PERMITTED USES:      

Single–family Residence
  

30 50 30 10 35 

Two-family Residence 30 50 30 10 35 

Residential Accessory  
 Structures 

30 50 20 20 35 

Agricultural Structures 30 50 20 20  

Farm Animal Structures 30 50 30 30 15 

Commercial Agriculture 
 Accessory Structures for  
 Farm Animals 

 
100 

 

100 

 
100 

 
100 

 
- 

Non-Residential Buildings 30 50 20 20 - 

(Amendment 63, Ordinance 2024-02) 
 
Setback for all structures shall be 100’ from any stream or riparian area 
 
Minimum Lot Size: Five acres; see Section 326.  Larger lot sizes may be required by the Health 
Department. 
 
 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 221 of 254



BANNOCK COUNTY SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE NO. 1997-4 RECORDED #97011338 

Page 17 of 43 
 

1. The proposed tentative plan is in conformance with the Bannock County Comprehensive 

Plan; is in conformance with all applicable provisions of this Ordinance, other County 

Ordinances, and Idaho Code. 

 

2. The proposed roads and bridges will be designed and constructed according to Section 

402 of this Ordinance. If a design deviation is requested, it shall equal or exceed those 

standards for its purpose. 

 

3. The proposed partitioning of land does not prohibit the extension of dedicated streets or 

roads. 

 

4. The proposed partitioning will not conflict with legally established easements or access 

within or adjacent to the proposed land partition. 

 

5. The blocks of lots are located and laid out to properly relate to adjoining or nearby lot or 

parcel lines, utilities, streets, or other existing or planned facilities. 

 

6. The proposed property is physically suitable for the type and proposed density of 

development and conforms to existing zone standards. 

 

302.F. CONDITIONS: The Council may place conditions upon the proposed plat to bring it into 

compliance with the comprehensive plan. If the developer accepts those conditions, the 

developer may then proceed to Preliminary Plat review. 

 

302.G. DIVISIONS OF LAND INTO FOUR OR FEWER PARCELS: A one-time division into four 

or fewer parcels if it meets the following criteria: (Amendment No. 5 Ordinance 2022-03) 

  -access for each lot is from maintained county road or a private shared driveway 

  -utilities are available 

  -a public hearing is not required 

  -all other Zoning and Subdivision requirements apply 

 

1. Such divisions must be filed as Records of Survey, and shall be prepared in accordance 

with Chapter 19, Title 55 of Idaho Code. All other standards, requirements, processes 

and criteria of this Ordinance shall be met. Survey notes and or other conditions may be 

required. 

 

302.H. TIME LIMITS: Approval of the Concept Plan is valid for one year from the date of 

approval by the Council. Concept or Master Plans not advanced to Preliminary Plat review 

by the Council within one year of Concept approval by the Council must be resubmitted for a 

new Concept/Master Plan approval. 

 

303 PRELIMINARY PLAT REVIEW: 

 

303.A. SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS: Preliminary Plat review will be considered by the 

Council as a business item at subsequent, regularly scheduled meetings of the Council. The 

following items must be submitted to the County Engineer and Planning Department at least 30 

days prior to the Council’s regular monthly meeting: 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 222 of 254



BANNOCK COUNTY SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE NO. 1997-4 RECORDED #97011338 

Page 18 of 43 
 

1. PLAT: The Preliminary Plat shall be drawn up to a scale of one inch equals 100 feet or 

one inch equals 200 feet, prepared by a land surveyor or engineer licensed to practice in 

Idaho. The scale may be increased or decreased provided such deviations obtain 

approval by the County.  

A copy, reduced to 11" x 17" shall be provided also. Map shall show: 

 

a. TITLE BLOCK: Date of submittal; north arrow; scale of drawing; tax parcel 

number(s); legal description sufficient to define the location and boundaries of the 

proposed subdivision by Section, Township, and Range; identification clearly 

stating that the map is a Preliminary Plat; plat name; engineering or surveying firm 

and license number of the surveyor or engineer. 

 

b. The location, width, and names of all existing or platted streets, ways, or public 

ways in the proposed subdivision or within 660 feet of the proposed subdivision; 

easements; railroad rights-of-way; and other important survey features, such as 

section lines and corners, found monument, and city boundary lines. 

 

c. Contour lines of existing grade shall be shown at the following minimum intervals, 

and shall be related to some established bench mark or other datum as approved 

by the County Engineer: (1) Five foot contour intervals for ground slopes between 

five and ten percent; (2) Ten foot contour intervals for ground slopes exceeding 

ten percent; and (3) For a rural area, contour lines shall be at intervals necessary 

to properly indicate the ground contour and to design the street pattern and lot 

layout, and shall be related to some established bench mark or other datum as 

required by the County Engineer. 

 

d. The location and direction of all water courses including a delineation of the high 

water mark. 

 

e. Natural features, such as rock outcroppings, marsh lands, wooded areas, bodies 

of water, preservable trees. 

 

f. Existing uses of the property, including the location of all existing structures or 

fences on the proposed plat and within 660' of its boundary, and proposal for use 

or removal of the structures and fences on the proposed plat. 

 

g. Proposed streets showing the location, widths, names, approximate grades, and 

approximate radii of curves and the relationship of all streets to any projecting 

streets. 

 

h. The location and width of all existing and proposed easements, including the 

purpose of such easement. 

 

i. Lot layout showing approximate (to within 10') dimensions, lot sizes within 5% of 

actual at Final submittal, and proposed lot and block numbers. 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 223 of 254



BANNOCK COUNTY SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE NO. 1997-4 RECORDED #97011338 

Page 19 of 43 
 

j. Any other information on plat requested by Council, Engineer or Planner during 

Concept review and approval. 

 

2. Drainage Plan in same detail as contour for existing grade described above. 

 

3. Other engineering or study data required by Council or County Engineer. 

 

303.B. REVIEW: The Council will review the Preliminary Plat as a business item, considering 

the plat for: 

 

1. Conformance to concept approval. Preliminary Plats which: 

 

a. alter water sources or delivery systems, or other utilities including sewage 

treatment, as approved in concept; 

 

b. increases the total number of lots by 10 percent or more, or 

 

c. change access points to existing collector or arterial roads or streets by a 

distance greater than 50' and not recommended by Staff or Council during 

concept approval, shall require a new concept review and a new review fee as 

established by the Board. 

 

2. Utility easements and facilities. 

 

3. Open space if required in concept approval: amount of land, location, use, ownership 

and management plan. 

 

4. Homeowners’ Association Codes, Covenants and Restrictions which carry out conditions 

imposed by the Council or the goals of the Ordinance and Comprehensive Plan. After 

approval by Council, County Legal staff will also review prior to recording of plat and 

codes. 

 

(a) Mainenance of facilities. The developer shall fund the Homeowners’ Association as 

follows: 

 

$5.00 per lot for the water system, if any 

$5.00 per lot for the sewage treatment facility, if any 

$15.00 per lot for road maintenance and snow removal. 

 

The number of lots in the total Master Plan shall be used to determine the funding. Funds may 

be held in an interest bearing account. At recordation of the plat or record of survey, the 

facilities will be transferred to the Homeowners’ Association for maintenance. The 

Homeowners’ Association will begin collecting an annual fee from all lot owners to add to initial 

funding. This fund will be used to repair and maintain utility systems and roads. Thereafter, all 

improvements shall be maintained by the Homeowners’ Association in perpetuity or until 

connection to a municipal system. 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 224 of 254



BANNOCK COUNTY SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE NO. 1997-4 RECORDED #97011338 

Page 20 of 43 
 

All conditions imposed by the Council will be printed on the plat. All codes, covenants and 

restrictions applying to infrastructure or public facilities to be provided by the developer will be 

printed on the plat. A change of such conditions, codes, covenants or restrictions is deemed a 

replat and must be submitted and processed according to this Ordinance. 

 

(b) Membership of Homeowner’ Association: All lot owners shall be voting members of the 

Association. Owners of multiple lots shall have one vote. 

 

5. Street names. A street name must not duplicate an existing street name in the County or 

its cities; it must not be derogatory to any person or group. 

 

6. Water Users Association organization and function. 

 

7. A Maintenance and Operation Plan for all commonly-owned improvements. 

 

303.C. CRITERIA FOR APPROVAL: The Preliminary Plat may be approved only if the 

reviewing authority finds that it satisfies the following criteria: 

 

1. The Preliminary Plat is in conformance with the Bannock County Planning and 

Development Council’s approved Concept Plan, all applicable provisions of this 

Ordinance, other County Codes and Ordinances, and Idaho Code. 

 

2. The street plan for the proposed subdivision will permit its development in accordance 

with this Code. 

 

3. The street plan for the proposed subdivision will permit the development of adjoining 

land by providing access to that land by right of way dedicated to the County, or a 

developed street to the property boundary. 

 

4. Lot lines and roads relate to land shapes and existing development. 

 

303.D. CONDITIONS ON PRELIMINARY PLAT: The Council may place conditions on the 

Preliminary Plat which enable the plat to meet criteria for approval. If the applicant accepts 

the conditions, he or she may proceed to Final Plat review. 

 

303.E. TIME LIMITS ON APPROVAL: Preliminary Plats not recorded as a final plat in 

accordance with Section 304 within two years of the date of approval by the Council as 

evidenced by the Council’s written decision shall become null and void unless a time 

extension is granted. Developer may apply to the Council for up to two time extensions of 

one calendar year each. The developer of any valid Preliminary Plat approved prior to the 

Subdivision Ordinance Amendment effective date may apply for up to two time extensions of 

one calendar year each from the date of Preliminary Plat approval. 

  

 Extension requests will only be granted if 100 percent of the engineering plans are 

submitted or upon a showing of “good cause.” The Council has the sole discretion to 

determine whether a showing of good cause has been made. The maximum number of 

extensions shall not exceed two (2) requests, or two years total. The maximum time from 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 225 of 254



BANNOCK COUNTY SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE NO. 1997-4 RECORDED #97011338 

Page 21 of 43 
 

Preliminary Plat approval to the recording of the Final Plat shall not exceed four years total 

except for valid Preliminary Plats approved prior to the Subdivision Ordinance amendment 

effective date. Council shall consider the request for an extension of time as a business 

item. 

 

304 FINAL PLAT:  

 

The County Engineer and Planner shall review the proposal to insure that any conditions the 

Council placed on the plat have been complied with, and that the performance standards of this 

Ordinance, and requirements of Idaho Code have been complied with. The Engineer will 

compare the submitted plat to the approved Preliminary Plat, and if it conforms, applicant and 

staff shall proceed as follows: 

 

304.A. SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS: In addition to the items required for the Preliminary Plat 

approval, the following must be submitted and approved by the County Engineer. See Section 

400 also. (Amendment No. 5 Ordinance 2022-03) 

 

1. As built engineering details for water delivery systems, both culinary and irrigation. 

 

2. Landscaping detail and fence cross sections, if applicable. 

 

3. Bridge, road and street cross sections and profiles, weight capacity calculations. 

 

4. Engineering for any other improvements on plat. 

 

5. Final Codes, Covenants and Restrictions. 

 

6. Maintenance and Operation Plans for commonly owned utilities and open space. 

 

7. Homeowner’ Association incorporation documents; codes, covenants and restrictions. 

 

8. A copy of the subdivision plat as approved with conditions, if any, will be submitted with 

a number assigned to every lot corner, and at all angle points and points of curvature 

compromising the boundary lines of said lots or the centerline of streets, roads and 

special easements. 

9. The bearing and distance, or two parts of curve (radius, length of curve, delta, etc.) in 

the case of curved lines will be down between coordinate pairs which traverse lot 

boundary lines or street centerline. 

 

10. Dedication statements on the plat. 

 

11. Plans and engineering detail for all work required by design standards found elsewhere 

in this ordinance. 

 

304.B. SIGNATURES and CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED: County Engineer will have example 

dedication statements required on plat. 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 226 of 254



FINDINGS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 227 of 254



BANNOCK COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL 
FINDINGS AND ORDER: SPP-25-3 

Page 1 

 

 

 

BANNOCK COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL 
FINDINGS AND ORDER 

 

PRELIMINARY PLAT–CHESTNUT HILL SUBDIVISION 

MEETING DATE: OCTOBER 22, 2025 

 

FILE #:   SPP-25-3    

LOCATION: RPRRCIN000401, currently addressed as 9595 Chestnut Hill Drive, Pocatello, ID 83204. 

RPRRCIN000301, currently addressed as 9498 Chestnut Hill Drive, Pocatello, ID 83204. 

 

APPLICANT: OWNER:                                                    
Dioptra Mark and Rosa Selover             Jordan and Emily Driscoll 
Stewart Ward  
4880 Clover Dell Road 
Pocatello, ID 83202 

9595 W. Chestnut Hill Drive    9498 W. Chestnut Hill Drive                              
Pocatello, ID 83204                     Pocatello, ID 83204                           

  
REQUEST & BACKGROUND: Stewart Ward proposes an amendment to Cinnamon Springs Subdivision for 

the purpose of adjusting a lot line.  The existing lots are 3.48 acres and 3.43 acres.  After the proposed 

adjustment, the lots will be 3.55 acres and 3.34 acre.  The development proposes individual septic systems and 

wells.  This subdivision is located ~ 1.25 miles from the City of Pocatello boundary. 

 
FINDINGS: 

JUSTIFICATION FOR THE DECISION/CRITERIA, STANDARDS AND FACTS RELIED UPON 
 

SITE CHARACTERISTICS AND ZONING: 

ZONE: Residential Rural 

PROPERTY SIZE: ~ 3.43 acres and 3.48 acres 

VIEWS: The property is visible from all directions 

IMPACT AREA: Not within impact area 

FLOOD ZONE: X, Minimal 

TERRAIN: Steep slopes 

EXISTING STRUCTURES: Dwellings and residential accessory structures  

OTHER: Located within Cinnamon Springs Subdivision 

 

 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 228 of 254



BANNOCK COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL 
FINDINGS AND ORDER: SPP-25-3 

Page 2 

CRITERIA FOR APPROVAL: 

1. The preliminary plat [is] [is not] in conformance with the Bannock County Planning and Development 
Council’s approved Concept Plan, all applicable provisions of the Bannock County Subdivision 
Ordinance, other County Codes and Ordinances, and Idaho Code. 

 
_________________________________________________________________________________________               

_________________________________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________________________________                

 
2. The street plan for the proposed subdivision [will] [will not] permit its development in accordance 

with the Bannock County Subdivision Ordinance. 
 

_________________________________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________________________________                

 

3. The street plan for the proposed subdivision [will] [will not] permit the development of adjoining land 
by providing access to that land by right of way dedicated to the County, or a developed street to the 
property boundary.  

 
_________________________________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________________________________                

 

4. Lot lines and roads [do] [do not] relate to land shapes and existing development.  
 

_________________________________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________________________________                

 

 

 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 229 of 254



BANNOCK COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL 
FINDINGS AND ORDER: SPP-25-3 

Page 3 

CONDITIONS (If any)  

 _________________________________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

ORDER: CONCLUSION AND DECISION 

The Planning and Development Council, pursuant to the aforementioned, finds that the request of the 

Preliminary Plat for Chestnut Hill Subdivision, as described in the application, shall be [approved] [denied] 

[tabled]. 

Motion by ________________________, seconded by ________________________to adopt the foregoing 
Findings and Order. 

ROLL CALL: 

Councilperson Dimick Voted [Yes] [No]  [Absent/Recused] 
Councilperson Madsen Voted [Yes] [No]  [Absent/Recused] 
Councilperson Selleneit 
Councilperson Ulrich 

Voted [Yes] [No]  [Absent/Recused] 
Voted [Yes] [No]  [Absent/Recused] 

Councilperson Ward Voted [Yes] [No]  [Absent/Recused] 
 

Motion carried by a _______ to _____ vote. 

Dated this ______________ day of ___________________, 2025. 

 
             __________________________________________________ 
             Signed by (Chairperson) (Vice Chair) 
 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT CERTIFICATE 
State of Idaho) 
S.S. 
County of Bannock) 
 
On this _____ day of _______________, in the year of 2025, before me ____________________________, a 
notary public, personally appeared ______________________________, personally known to me to be the 
person  whose name  is subscribed to the within instrument, and acknowledged to me that (she) (he) 
executed the same. 
 
S             ______________________________________________ 
E             Notary Public 
A              My Commission Expires on _____________ 20____ 
L  

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 230 of 254



MOTION 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 231 of 254



EXAMPLE MOTION 

Based on the record and the discussion this evening, I move to [approve] [deny] [table] the 

request for the preliminary plat of Chestnut Hill Subdivision, as described in the application 

materials as supplemented with additional information attached in the staff report and to adopt 

the proposed findings and order for signature by the Chair or Vice-Chair. 

(IF ADDING APPROVAL CONDITIONS) with the following conditions of approval, 
 
1. …. 
 
2. …. 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 232 of 254



AGENDA ITEM NO. 10 

Variance Extension Request – 

Dustin Holsten 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 233 of 254



PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 
5500 S 5th Ave | Pocatello, Idaho 83204 | 208.236.7230 | www.bannockcounty.gov 

 

STAFF REPORT 
VARIANCE EXTENSION - HOLSTEN 

Page 1 of 3 

 

 

VARIANCE EXTENSION 

MEETING DATE: OCTOBER 22, 2025 

STAFF REPORT 

 

FILE #:  VAR-25-6        

LOCATION:  RPR4227015901, currently unaddressed. 

APPLICANT:    OWNER: 

Dustin Holsten    Dustin Holsten   

757 Pebble Creek Road   757 Pebble Creek Road 

Bancroft, ID 83217    Bancroft, ID 83217 

 

REQUEST & BACKGROUND:  The applicant, Dustin Holsten, seeks a variance extension 

according to §540.7 of the Bannock County Zoning Ordinance.  The original variance was 

approved on June 18, 2025, and the six-month approval expires on December 15, 2025.  The 

applicant was approved a variance to build a duplex on a 1.0-acre parcel. He is now requesting a 

six-month extension of the variance due to weather and personal delays in construction.  

 

SITE CHARACTERISTICS AND ZONING: 

ZONING: Recreational 

PROPERTY SIZE: ~ 1.05 acres  

VIEWS:  The property is visible from the road 

EXISTING STRUCTURES:  None 

AREA OF CITY IMPACT:  None 

 

SURROUNDING LAND USES AND ZONING 

NORTH: The site is within the Recreational zoning district and consists of bare ground.  

EAST: The site is within the Recreational zoning district and consists of bare ground.  

SOUTH: The site is within the Recreational zoning district and consists of residential uses and 

bare ground.  

WEST: The site is within the Recreational zoning district and consists of residential uses and bare 

ground.  

 

APPLICABLE LAWS AND PLANS: 

1. Idaho Code §67-6516, Variance – Definition – Application – Notice – Hearing. 
2. Bannock County Comprehensive Plan, 2025-27 
3. Bannock County Zoning Ordinance, 1998-1, specifically: 

a. §540.7 LAPSE OF VARIANCE 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 234 of 254

http://www.bannockcounty.us/


STAFF REPORT 
VARIANCE PERMIT - HOLSTEN 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SITE MAP 

 

STANDARDS FOR GRANTING AN EXTENSION (ZONING ORDINANCE §540.7) 

A.  Unless a longer time period shall be specifically established as a condition of approval, a 
 variance shall lapse six months following the date on which the variance is issued, unless 
 prior to the expiration of the six months, a building permit and a zoning permit are issued. 

B.  A variance subject to lapse may be renewed by the Planning and Development Council 
 for an additional period of six months, provided that prior to the expiration date, a 
 written request for renewal is filed with the Planning and Development Council. 

C.  The Planning and Development Council may grant or deny an application for renewal 
 upon a showing by the applicant that circumstances beyond his control caused the delay 
 (Zoning Ordinance §540.7). 

STAFF COMMENTS: 
 
Dustin Holsten applied for a variance that was approved on June 18, 2025, and the six-month 

approval expires on December 15, 2025.  However, Section 540.7.A states that unless a longer 

time period is specifically established as a condition of approval, a variance shall lapse six months 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 235 of 254



STAFF REPORT 
VARIANCE PERMIT - HOLSTEN 

Page 3 of 3 
 

following the date on which the variance is issued unless a building permit and a zoning permit 

are issued prior to the six-month expiration. 

 

Dustin Holsten submitted a written request for an extension on September 8, 2025. Section 

540.7.B states a variance subject to lapse may be renewed by the Planning and Development 

Council provided that prior to the expiration date, a written request for approval is filed with the 

Planning and Development Council. As the ex officio clerk of the Council, Hal Jensen received 

written request for extension prior to expiration of the variance. 

 
 

REPORT BY:     REPORTED DATE:  October 8, 2025 

Annie Hughes Williams, Zoning Planner *Staff comments in this report are based solely 

annieh@bannockcounty.gov   upon evidence available at the time of the report.  

208-236-7230     Additional information may be brought to light  

      at or before the hearing. 

 

 

EXHIBITS: 

1. Original Variance Application 
2. Facts & Findings – Planning and Development Council Meeting June 18, 2025 
3. Letter from Applicant requesting extension 
4. Zoning Ordinance Section 540.7 – Lapse of Variance 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 236 of 254

mailto:annieh@bannockcounty.


EXHIBIT 1 

Application 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 237 of 254



Parcel & Variance Information

Application for Variance

Variance Application

VAR-25-6
Submitted On: May 14, 2025

Applicant

  DUSTIN HOLSTEN
 
 

Primary Location

0 NO STREET
00000

Parcel Number

RPR4227015901

My property is zoned:

Recreation

What variance are you requesting? Please select all that apply: Rear yard setbacks

--

Side yard setbacks

--

Riparian area setbacks

--

Right-of-way setbacks

--

Lot size

true

Other

--

Please describe your variance request in detail:

We are asking for a variance to build a duplex on less than 1.5 acres. My lot is 1acre.

Narrative addressing how your application meets criterion 1: The applicant has shown there is no reasonable alternative.

I can't change the size of the land. There isn't enough room to expand because Fishcreek pass and Fishcreek Rd. Surrounds me to
the north and south, with a road that connects the two highways to the east. I don't own the lot to the west of my property.  

Narrative addressing how your application meets criterion 2: The variance is not in conflict with the public interest.

No it does not conflict with public interests.  If the public interest is my surrounding neighbors, I have talked with them about the
plans for said duplex. And have submitted a signed document from all neighbors with shared property lines.

It IS in favor with the public interests of the nearby town of Lava Hot Springs because a lot of the town's small businesses rely on
tourism to stay open. With an ever growing Lava, housing will be needed, and this can help provide for that.

All setbacks will be met.

It is in compliance with the recreational zoned ordinance which states " to encourage" a compatible "blend" of recreation and "tourist
uses" with public recreational uses, in such a way as to preserve  Bannock counties recreational resources. This falls in perfect for
that. It allows housing for tourists to come check out our beautiful mountainous area all while stimulating bannock counties
economy. Conditional permits are granted for buildings such as hotels even. Im not asking for anything like that and am keeping the
footprint relatively small.

I also own a two family dwelling across the street from the build in question that I rent out in the same manner.  We have house
rules in place, and the small community stays quiet. We will implement the same house rules in the new build.
I have been in contact with Kathleen Price with the health department and had the ground tested for the septic system. The permit
will be granted for the build in question. 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 238 of 254



Certification

Narrative addressing how your application meets criterion 3: The variance will not adversely affect adjacent property.

No it will not adversely affect adjacent property. I have singed documentation from the only 2 neighboring properties stating they are
okay with the build in question. All setbacks will be met. I have neighbors to the east and west of the property in question.  They are
the ones who have signed attached document. I own the lot to the south and Fishcreek pass is on the north side.

Also it's predetermined that I am able to build on this lot. I could build a single family dwelling the same footprint as what I'm asking
to build. Which is only 2200 square ft.

Narrative addressing how your application meets criterion 4: If the variance is not granted, the applicant will suffer undue hardship
caused by the physical characteristics of the site.

I have already purchased the lot with this plan in mind. If not granted I will lose money on a property that i have already purchased.
This would hurt myself and my family's future. I'm surrounded by roads so I can't expand the property lines to get the extra 1/2 acre.
With Fishcreek pass, Fishcreek rd., and the road that connects the 2, the physical characteristics don't allow me to expand property
lines.

I'm not sure if this matters but I can't afford to build a single family dwelling with the price of building. If I can't do this small duplex,
my family and I will lose a lot of money we have already spent. 

Electronic Signature [Typed name of applicant]

Dustin Holsten

I agree that my electronic signature above is equivalent to a
handwritten signature and is binding for all purposes related to
this transaction

true

Date

04/30/2025

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 239 of 254



EXHIBIT 2 

Applicant Request 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 240 of 254



Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 241 of 254



EXHIBIT 3 

Recorded Findings 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 242 of 254



Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 243 of 254



Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 244 of 254



Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 245 of 254



EXHIBIT 4 

Ordinance Excerpts 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 246 of 254



BANNOCK COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE NO. 1998-1  Recorded #98004542  

Page 132 of 151 

 

 
540.4 STANDARDS: 
 

The Planning and Development Council may grant a variance if it makes affirmative 
findings of fact on each of the following standards: 

 
  1.  The applicant has shown that there is no reasonable alternative. 
 
  2.  The variance is not in conflict with the public interest. 
 
  3.  The variance will not adversely affect adjacent property. 

4.  If the variance is not granted, the applicant will suffer undue hardship caused by 
the physical characteristics of the site. 

 
540.5 EFFECTIVE DATE OF VARIANCE: 
 

A decision of the Planning and Development Council on a variance shall be effective 
ten (10) days after the date on which action is announced unless an appeal has been 
filed pursuant to Section 540.6. 

 
540.6 APPEAL TO BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS: 
 

The appeal procedure is the same as the procedure in Section 550 
 
540.7 LAPSE OF VARIANCE: 
 

A.  Unless a longer time period shall be specifically established as a condition of 
approval, a variance shall lapse six months following the date on which the variance 
is issued, unless prior to the expiration of the six months, a building permit and a 
zoning permit are issued. 

 
B.  A variance subject to lapse may be renewed by the Planning and Development 

Council for an additional period of six months, provided that prior to the expiration 
date, a written request for renewal is filed with the Planning and Development 
Council. 

 
C.  The Planning and Development Council may grant or deny an application for 

renewal upon a showing by the applicant that circumstances beyond his control 
caused the delay. 

 
540.8 SUSPENSION AND REVOCATION: 
 

A.  Upon violation of any applicable provision of this Ordinance or, if granted subject to 
conditions, upon failure to comply with conditions, a variance shall be suspended 
upon notification to the owner of the use or property subject to the variance. 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 247 of 254



FINDINGS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 248 of 254



BANNOCK COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL 
FINDINGS AND ORDER: EXTENSION VAR-25-6 

Page 1 

 

 

 

 

BANNOCK COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL 
FINDINGS AND ORDER 

 

VARIANCE EXTENSION - DUSTIN HOLSTEN 

MEETING DATE: OCTOBER 22, 2025 

 

FILE #:    VAR-25-6        

LOCATION:  RPR4227015901, currently unaddressed. 

APPLICANT:      OWNER: 

Dustin Holsten       Dustin Holsten   

757 Pebble Creek Road     757 Pebble Creek Road 

Bancroft, ID 83217      Bancroft, ID 83217 

         

REQUEST & BACKGROUND:  The applicant, Dustin Holsten, seeks a variance extension according to §540.7 

of the Bannock County Zoning Ordinance.  The original variance was approved on June 18, 2025, and the six-

month approval expires on December 15, 2025.  The applicant was approved a variance to build a duplex on a 

1.0-acre parcel. He is now requesting a six-month extension of the variance due to weather and personal delays 

in construction.  

 

FINDINGS: 

JUSTIFICATION FOR THE DECISION/CRITERIA, STANDARDS AND FACTS RELIED UPON 
 

SITE CHARACTERISTICS AND ZONING: 

ZONING: Recreational 

PROPERTY SIZE: ~ 1.05 acres  

VIEWS:  The property is visible from the road 

EXISTING STRUCTURES:  None 

AREA OF CITY IMPACT:  None 

 

 

 

 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 249 of 254



BANNOCK COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL 
FINDINGS AND ORDER: EXTENSION VAR-25-6 

Page 2 

REQUIRED FINDINGS FOR VARIANCE EXTENSION 

1. The proposal for extension [was] [was not] filed with the Planning and Development Council prior to the 
expiration date of the original variance. 

                             

                             

                              

ORDER: CONCLUSION AND DECISION 

The Planning and Development Council, pursuant to the aforementioned, finds that the request by Dustin 

Holsten for a variance extension to build a duplex on 1.0 acres, as described in the application, shall be 

[approved] [denied] [tabled]. 

Motion by ________________________, seconded by ________________________to adopt the foregoing 
Findings and Order. 

ROLL CALL: 

Councilperson Dimick Voted [Yes] [No]  [Absent/Recused] 
Councilperson Madsen Voted [Yes] [No]  [Absent/Recused] 
Councilperson Selleneit Voted [Yes] [No]  [Absent/Recused] 
Councilperson Ulrich Voted [Yes] [No]  [Absent/Recused] 
Councilperson Ward Voted [Yes] [No]  [Absent/Recused] 

 

Motion carried by a _______ to _____ vote. 

Dated this ______________ day of ___________________, 2025. 

 
             __________________________________________________ 
             Signed by (Chairperson) (Vice Chair) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 250 of 254



BANNOCK COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL 
FINDINGS AND ORDER: EXTENSION VAR-25-6 

Page 3 

 
 
 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT CERTIFICATE 
State of Idaho) 
S.S. 
County of Bannock) 
 
On this _____ day of _______________, in the year of 2025, before me ____________________________, a 
notary public, personally appeared ______________________________ as chair/vice-chair on behalf of the 
Bannock County Planning and Development Council, personally known to me to be the person whose name is 
subscribed to the within instrument, and acknowledged to me that they executed the same. 
 
S             ______________________________________________ 
E             Notary Public 
A              My Commission Expires on _____________ 20____ 
L  
 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 251 of 254



MOTION 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 252 of 254



DUSTIN HOLSTEN MOTION 
 

Based on the record and discussion this evening, I move to [approve] [deny] [table] the request 
for a Variance Extension for Dustin Holsten, as described in the application materials, as 
supplemented with additional information attached in the staff report, according to testimony 
received, and to adopt the proposed findings and order for signature by the Chair or Vice-Chair. 

(IF ADDING APPROVAL CONDITIONS) with the following conditions of approval, 
 
1. …. 
 
2. …. 
 

 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 253 of 254



AGENDA ITEM NO. 11 

Items of Interest 
a) Update on recommendations to Commissioners 

 
b) Discussion of upcoming hearing items 

 
c) Announcements 

Bannock County Planning & Development Council
October 22, 2025
Page 254 of 254


	Insert from: "1.2 Site Plan - 25047-Spring_Creek_Concept_Plan_9-18-25_Fri_Sep_19_2025_11-52-55.pdf"
	Sheets and Views
	Concept Plan


	Insert from: "4. Floodplain Memo_and_Exhibits_Mon_Sep_29_2025_07-46-45.pdf"
	Memo.pdf
	Exhibit 1.pdf
	Exhibit 2 Impoundment.pdf
	Exhibit 3.pdf

	Insert from: "1.2 Site Plan.pdf"
	Sheets and Views
	ROS


	Insert from: "2.2 Pre-Development Agency_Comments_Combined_Tue_Sep_2_2025_09-32-39.pdf"
	Inkom FD
	Idaho Div Aeronautics
	Williams Northwest Pipeline

	Insert from: "2. VAR-25-14 Site Plan.pdf"
	Sheets and Views
	000

	SK25098-001.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	001


	SK25098-002.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	002


	SK25098-003.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	003



	Insert from: "1.2 Site Plan.pdf"
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	Insert from: "3 Cinnamon_Springs_Subdivision.pdf"
	CINNAMON_SPRINGS_SUBDIVISION_20010022
	CINNAMON_SPRINGS_SUBDIVISION_RESOLUTION_201-065_ESTABLISH_BUILDING_RIGHTS
	CINNAMON_SPRINGS_SUBDIVISION_ROAD_NAME_CHANGE_20421536




